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The Group aspires to be a leading Chinese property developer
with a renowned brand backed by cultural substance.
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MISSION

The Group is driven by a corporate spirit and fine tradition that
attaches importance to dedication, honesty and integrity. Its
development strategy advocates professionalism, market-
orientation and internationalism. It also strives to enhance the
architectural quality and commercial value of the properties by
instilling cultural substance into its property projects. Ultimately,
it aims to build a pleasant living environment for its clients and
create satisfactory returns to its shareholders.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NRIER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

WAN Yuging (Chairman)

XUE Ming (retired on 4 March 2022)
WANG Jian (Managing Director)

YE Liwen

Non-executive Director
CHEN Yuwen (appointed on 10 March 2023)
GUO Jianquan (retired on 10 March 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors
IP Chun Chung, Robert

FUNG Chi Kin

LEUNG Sau Fan, Sylvia

WONG Ka Lun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

LEUNG Sau Fan, Sylvia (Chairlady)
IP Chun Chung, Robert

FUNG Chi Kin

WONG Ka Lun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

WONG Ka Lun (Chairman)
IP Chun Chung, Robert
FUNG Chi Kin

LEUNG Sau Fan, Sylvia

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

WAN Yuging (Chairman)
YE Liwen

IP Chun Chung, Robert

FUNG Chi Kin

LEUNG Sau Fan, Sylvia

WONG Ka Lun

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

FUNG Chi Kin (Chairman)

WANG Jian

YE Liwen

CHEN Yuwen (appointed on 10 March 2023)
GUO Jianquan (retired on 10 March 2023)
IP Chun Chung, Robert

LEUNG Sau Fan, Sylvia

WONG Ka Lun

BEExg
HITESE

BFB(ZEE)

EHR-F-—F=FIHHRF)

TREFHLE)
2R [

FHTES

MEX(R=ZF=Z=F=AF+HZHF)
BEE2R=_F=—=F=AFHRE)

BYFHTES
3
B
25

EEN

BEREEY

REZ (L)
EiRE
955 B

ERfh
YMEES

EENGREYY)
RS
RHEE

RES
REEES

BFB(ZEE)
22
iR &

EEN

EREEERES

HER(EE)
T2
22 [

MEN(R=—F=—=F=AF+HZ)
BEE2(R=ZF-Z=F=HFHREA)

TR &

N



COMPANY SECRETARY AND
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

WONG Cheuk Him

LEGAL ADVISER

Morrison & Foerster

AUDITOR

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Bank of China Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
China CITIC Bank International Limited
China Construction Bank Corporation
China Everbright Bank Co., Ltd.

China Zheshang Bank Co., Ltd.

Chong Hing Bank Limited

CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Malayan Banking Berhad

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONSULTANT

Wonderful Sky Financial Group

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Room 2503, Tower 1, Admiralty Centre
18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.polyhongkong.com
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHE

Corporate Background

The Group is one of the foremost property developers in China and is the real estate
offshore listed flagship of China Poly Group Corporation Limited (a state-owned enterprise).
Its major businesses include property development, investment and management. The Group
develops residential and commercial properties in the most active areas in terms of economic
development in China, including Yangtze River Delta, Pearl River Delta, Southwestern region,
other regions and Hong Kong. Projects of the Group are located in 30 major cities, including
Shanghai, Hong Kong, Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Wuhan, Suzhou, Jinan, Harbin, Ningbo,
Guiyang and Nanning, among others. The Group maintains a high-quality investment property
portfolio in various cities comprising landmark properties such as Shanghai Poly Plaza,
Shanghai Stock Exchange Building and Beijing Poly Plaza.
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TOTAL ASSETS
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RMB 203.1 billion
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, the downward risks of the world economy have
increased, along with the intensified geopolitical conflicts
and recurring outbreaks of the COVID-19 pandemic. Major
central banks were forced to tighten monetary policies due
to the surging inflation, leading to depressed global
demand. Under the grim external environment, China’s
economy has also been challenged by the spread of the
pandemic and extreme weather. Despite the three
pressures from the shrinking demand, supply disruption
and weakening expectation, China has struggled to
achieve positive economic growth. Its total economic
output has exceeded RMB120 trillion, and its
comprehensive national strength has reached a new high,
with GDP growth reaching 3%. As such, China continued
to stand out among major economies in the world.

The real estate industry has been facing unprecedented
challenges, and the depth of adjustment and bottoming
time were beyond the market’s expectation. According to
the National
commodity properties decreased by 26.7% to RMB13

Bureau of Statistics, the sales value of
trillion during the year, and the area of newly commenced
residential properties decreased by 40% on a year-on-year
Under
optimisation of the real estate regulation policy and the

basis. the background of the continuous
intensive support by the regulatory authorities, the local
governments have taken various measures tailored to
specific cities to boost confidence in the property market.
Thanks to the “three arrows” policy launched by the end
of the year, the developers could relieve their financial
pressure and optimise the capital structure through the
three main financing channels of bonds, credit and equity,
which provided prerequisite condition for the stable
recovery and improvement of the industry.
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The Group recorded profit attributable to shareholders of
RMB816 million for the year, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 60.4%. The gross margin of certain projects
with recognised sales significantly declined due to the
weak sales of the mainland real estate market, and the
provision for impairment of property inventory increased
due to the uncertain industry outlook. The core net profit
attributable to parent company after deducting the
changes in fair value of investment property and financial
assets and exchange gains and losses was RMB1,519
million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 17.3%.
The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
the Company recommended the distribution of a final
dividend of 4.8 HK cents per share to shareholders in
appreciation of their support.

In 2022, the Group recorded contracted sales of RMB50.2
billion, representing a year-on-year decrease of 11%, a
smaller decline than that of the industry. According to the
CRIC, the sales amount of the top 100 real estate
enterprises declined by more than 40% year on year.
Meanwhile, the Group ranked the 40th on the CRIC list in
term of the total sales amount, a significant rise of 20
rankings compared with that at the end of 2021, which
showed its strong development resilience despite the weak
market confidence and intensive industry competition. On
the one hand, Poly Property was recognised by customers
for its business strength and product services, as such, the
Group delivered 15,000 units throughout the year, among
which, Kunming Poly City was elected as the “Top 10
Delivered Ordinary Residential Works in 2022 (2022 K &
& /EVEm)" of CRIC. On the other hand, the Group has
implemented a comprehensive internal reform of marketing
organisation, strengthened the performance evaluation of
sales teams, and continuously enhanced the construction
of digital marketing and self-marketing teams.
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By adhering to the strict investment strategy and
discipline, the Group continued to invest and produce
based on sales. The contracted sales in Yangtze River
Delta and Greater
representing an increase of 10 percentage points as
in 2021. The increased sales
contribution of high capability cities led to a year-on-year
increase of 16% in the average price of the Group's
contracted sales, which has strengthened the Company’s
confidence in focusing on core areas of core cities. In

Bay Area accounted for 70%,

compared with that

2022, the Group acquired 10 development projects in
Shanghai, Shenzhen, Ningbo, Kunshan and other cities, and
entered Changshu for the first time. In particular,
Changshu Poly Longyue Mansion realised acquisition, sales
and sold-out during the same year. The sales conversion
rate of the projects acquired in the first half of the year
reached 18%, which was the result of precision investment
and development efficiency. By the end of 2022, the
percentage of attributable land reserves held by the Group
in Yangtze River Delta and Greater Bay Area was 43%,
representing an increase of three percentage points as
compared with that at the end of 2021; the percentage of
attributable land reserves in the first-tier cities was 22%,
representing an increase of two percentage points year on
year. The structure of land reserves has been improving
continuously.
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policy
represented a turning point of the financing of real estate

The implementation of the “three arrows”
industry. By keeping up with the policy, the Group
increased the proportion of direct financing. The Group
obtained approvals of issuance of a total of RMB10 billion
of corporate bonds and RMB5 billion of medium-term
notes, and has completed the issuance of RMBé billion of
corporate bonds and RMB2 billion of medium-term notes.
it has contributed to the reduction of the
average funding cost by 26 basis points to 4.27%. By the

Meanwhile,

end of 2022, the Group's proportion of trust loans was
8%, and the short-term debt ratio was 23%, both declined
4 percentage points year on year. The cash-to-short-term
debt ratio was 1.72. The Company’s outstanding overseas
bonds were only the US$500 million five-year senior note
in 2020, reflecting the sufficient liquidity and
solvency of the Company. The comprehensive finance cost

issued

continued to decline, and the structure of interest-bearing
liabilities was effectively improved.
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The Group has always adhered to customer-centric
philosophy,
competitiveness through products and services. During the

and focused on establishing its core

year, the Group initiated the three-year quality
improvement activity of “Poly Is My Hometown (R &
#8)" to promote the comprehensive upgrading of product
and service capabilities and continuously improve the
service quality and operating capacity of property services
and operational assets, so as to constantly meet people’s
expectations for a better life. The Group actively
responded to the national strategy of rural revitalisation
and consolidation of the achievements of poverty
alleviation. After winning the bidding for the property
management project of the new residential area of Ceheng
County, the Group helped 80,000 ethnic minorities who
moved from other places to start a wonderful new life in
the city and realise diversified employment and
entrepreneurship. “Poly Is My Hometown"” and “Poly Youth
Ambition” are the Group’s major brand IPs; the former
was selected as “China’s Social Responsibility(s) Cases in
2022" and “China Real Estate Brand Public Welfare Cases
in 2022”, and the latter won the first prize of
“State-owned Enterprises Excellent Story” from SASAC
and the 3rd “State-owned Enterprise Good News"” award,
which highlighted the Group’s obligation and social

responsibility as a state-owned enterprise.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The world is still suffused by a concern about economic
recession, the wave of interest rate rises in developed
countries may come to an end. As the pandemic
China’s
economy is gathering internal momentum. Leveraging on
its advantage as the world’s most promising super-scaled

market, China’s economic is expected to accelerate and

prevention and control enters a new stage,

achieve high-quality development in 2023.

The underlying development logic of China’s real estate
industry has undergone profound changes. The real estate
market needs to set a new balance between supply and
and further
differentiate among the markets and enterprises. Although
the old pattern of the industry has been broken, the new

demand, gradually stabilise and recover

one has yet established. During the reshaping of industry
logic, it will be a struggling process for the enterprises to
adjust from the old model to the new development model
and stabilise. In the next two years, real estate enterprises
shall operate business focusing on cash flow; strengthen
their research and judgement capabilities in industry,
policy and market, as well as regulate strictly investment
discipline and financial discipline; intensify destocking,
adjust the structure of land reserves and products to
improve the quality of capital and assets gradually. Poly
Property has the confidence to maintain its strategic focus
and operational resilience, and will strive forward by virtue
of its own credit and brand advantages, while ensuring
steady and sustainable development.

In 2023, the Group will continue to adhere to the concept
of lean management, capacity improvement, development
and risk prevention;
corporate goal of improving quality, reducing cost and
increasing efficiency, the Group will also ensure its

while focusing on the eternal

high-quality development through management innovation,
product innovation and service innovation.

Far as the journey is, we will still make it up; hard as it is,
it will be done. Despite the difficulties and challenges, we
will forge ahead bravely.
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PROJECTS PORTFOLIO
HEME
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3 Changzhou Poly Jingyue Palace
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1 Guangzhou Poly Moonlight Lake
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PROJECTS PORTFOLIO
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3 Nanning Poly Dream River
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PROJECTS PORTFOLIO
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2 Harbin Poly Time Lane
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PROJECTS PORTFOLIO
HEME

Tuen Mun
o

Kai Tak
R

Yau Tong

YR



RUEXREHRAT o
S

1 Hong Kong Pano Harbour

5 ER
1 Hong Kong Vibe Centro BEER

BERER

2 Hong Kong Villa La Plage
ERERE




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E 5w B AT

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”), the
Group recorded a revenue of RMB41,127 million (2021:
RMB30,305 million), representing an increase of 35.7%
when comparing to Profit attributable to
shareholders amounted to RMB816 million (2021:
RMB2,059 million), representing a decrease of 60.4% when
comparing to last year. Basic and diluted earnings per
share were both RMB21.71 representing

year-on-year decrease of 61.2%. The board of directors of

last year.

cents,

the Company recommended the payment of a final
dividend of 4.8 HK cents per share.

As at 31 December 2022, shareholders’ equity of the
Group amounted to RMB32.9 billion (as at 31 December
2021:
share of RMB8.62 (as at 31 December 2021:

RMB31.5 billion), along with a net asset value per
RMBS8.48).

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

The total GFA of newly commenced construction of Poly
Property Group (the Group, together with its joint
and associates) during

approximately 2,746,000 square metres.

the Year was
The GFA of
construction completed during the Year was approximately

ventures

4,765,000 square metres. The total contracted area sold
amounted to approximately 2,399,000 square metres.
There were 123 continual launches and 23 debut launches
during the Year. As at 31 December 2022, Poly Property
Group had 73 projects under construction or planning,
representing a total GFA of approximately 19,167,000
square metres.
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PROPERTY SALES

In 2022, contracted sales of Poly Property Group
decreased by 11% year-on-year to RMB50.2 billion.
Contracted area sold was 2,399,000 square metres. The
average selling price of contracted sales was RMB20,931
per square metre. The average selling price of contracted
sales in Mainland China was RMB20,250 per square metre,
which represented an increase of 16% as compared with
last year. 11 projects recorded contracted sales of over
RMB1
Kunshan East City, Nanning Poly Town Phase I, Ningbo

billion, including Shanghai Poly Vibe Centro,

Poly Brocade Scroll, Kunshan Moonlight Mansion, Suzhou
Tide Mansion, Jinan Poly Grand Joy I, Ningbo Poly Rising,
Shenzhen Poly Vibe Centro, Taicang Tianhe Mansion and
Jinan Huai Yin Project.
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BAREIVELHEEZINE  B8F L8R
AEE BLREER mERANEFTAH =
By - =R RFIER EED - EILPRIRRE « &R TE
B BREARAAE 8 ERRFMEBEB
EFRIRFEE AR RXMERMEEREZE
/A -

Contracted
Sales in
2022 by

Region
—Zg=-=
BREES
HEH D M

Percentage

it

Contracted
Area Sold
in 2022 by
Region
—E__F
EHRHER
BEHD M

Percentage

1t

(RMB ('000 square
million) (%) metres) (%)
(AR%
BETT (%) (FFHZK) (%)
Yangtze River Delta =7 24,700 49% 893 37%
Pearl River Delta ®=A 8,636 17% 355 15%
Southwestern igE] 6,803 14% 497 21%
Others Hth 8,332 17% 649 27%
Hong Kong BB 1,749 3% 6 0%
Total &5t 50,220 100% 2,399 100%
Notes: Kt &t -
1. Contracted sales include car park sales; 1. BHEESESEN

2. The totals may not equal to the sum of the figures due to round-off. 2.

BT LEN  BARMR T —ESERNATETF -
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NEW LAND RESERVES

In 2022, 10 development projects were acquired by Poly
Property Group in Shanghai, Kunshan, Ningbo, Shenzhen
and Jinan. The Group made presence in Changshu for the
first time. The planned GFA of new land reserves for the
Year was approximately 1,742,000 square metres. The cost
of land was considered reasonable.

List of Land Reserve Acquired in 2022

Project Site Area

HE 13 &

Planned GFA
REBREEE

I L R

TR BESEHARBI0EMRABIERE
AR EE - BN BE - RYIMERE - e
REANE R - FAFMW I W HEEBEEZEEAE
17428 F 75K LI ARBTESIEKFE -

“EC_FEHELHREBIR

Interests
Attributable to
the Group
BEASEES

Development Status

MRER

('000 square ('000 square
metres) metres) (%)
(T¥7 %) (FFHK) (%)

Ningbo Hai Shu Project Residential 29 71 100% Under construction
ERBEER E=E ERT
Ningbo Poly Rising Residential 47 185 100% For sale
EREMAFLE fFE EE
Ningbo Poly Villa Re Place Residential 70 234 100% For sale
EREMNER E=E EE
Changshu Poly Longyue Mansion  Residential 24 40 100% For sale
BARMEGE E=E EE
Jinan Poly Jade Commercial and 53 151 100% For sale

Residential
ERRNERE A EE
Shanghai Feng Xian Project Residential 30 107 100% Under construction
LBEEER E=E BRI
Jinan Poly Park TOD Commercial and 53 140 80% For sale

Residential
BERRNAE LR A EE
Shenzhen Yuling Road Project Commercial and 19 138 51% Under planning

Residential
RINEBEKER [): BElF
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Project Site Area

HH 3R

Planned GFA
REBERE

Interests
Attributable to
the Group
BEASE#ER

Development Status

MREE

('000 square ('000 square
metres) metres) (%)
(FFHXK) (FFHXK) (%)
Kunshan Tongfeng Road Project Commercial and 135 356 51% Under construction
Residential
B[R EIE B [kes BRI
Jinan Lixia District Project Commercial and 81 321 100% Under planning
Residential
EBEEETEER [kes HEF
Total At 540 1,742
Notes: B -
1. Since figures were rounded up to the nearest thousand, their total 1. BFRENERELINTAE AN —EER

may not equal to the actual sum;

2. As at 31 December 2022.

BB

2. HREERE T -_—F+_-_A=+—H-
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SUMMARY OF NEWLY ACQUIRED
PROJECTS IN 2022

——EHEEER N A

The project is located at Fuming Street, Yinzhou
District, Ningbo. The Northern Area of Jiangdong is
a traditional community with centralized resources in
the city with a full range of commercial, educational
and medical facilities. The site is 4 kilometres from
the municipal government office of Ningbo and
approximately 300 metres from the Zhongxing Bridge
South Station of Metro Line 3, enjoying convenient
transportation. The riverside green zone of Yongjiang
Park is 500 metres to the north of the site which has
a scenical advantage. The project, with a planned
total gross floor area of approximately 234,000
square metres, is intended to be developed into
high-rise residential buildings.

1. Ningbo Hai Shu Project 1. BERBEBIEAE
The project is located in Jishigang Town, Haishu BEURERMAEERELBHE BHE
District, Ningbo, which is 2.2 kilometres from the THEBEBRN22AE - REHAOHEAS T
government office of the Jishigang Town and the FIF - MR EAER KN AETR - IBRERK
west gateway to the central district of Ningbo. In HHTEE 2R B - %%@EE%% CHAB
proximity to well-developed residential communities, MBEERERE BEREE- HIRE
the site is approximately 2 kilometres from the outlet fAlRMR B ENREEER- IE B &
commercial district. The project enjoys full-fledged EEEEMBRTABT IR BERESE
ancillary facilities, abundant educational and medical EENE -
resources and convenient transportation. The south
side of the project is a river with certain landscape
values. The project, with a planned total gross floor
area of approximately 71,000 square metres, is
intended to be developed into high-rise residential
buildings.

2. Ningbo Poly Rising 2. EXRRFABBHMEE
The project is located at the Zhuanggiao Area in HEMRERMILEEFRE - I
Jiangbei District, Ningbo, which has geographical EEY RERMILEZBEAS L M
advantage and is the centre of transportation hub in 58 7 A R 30 3B A3 AR RO R BR Uk - T A
Northern Ningbo. Hongda Road Station of Metro RAHEE TN SEBER BEHER LS
Line 4 is south to the site and a river is west to the HRINHEBERE—RE - ABEERE
site which provides a scenic view. The site is only 1 TE EEREESSEPEE HENE
kilometre from Ningbo Shanghai World Foreign BEERTW BEHEEREETRELD
Language School. The site has a range of amenity 1858 F K HERESEEZENE -
facilities including Wanda Plaza and other centralized
businesses and has abundant of educational and
medical resources. The project, with a planned total
gross floor area of approximately 185,000 square
metres, is intended to be developed into high-rise
residential buildings.

3. Ningbo Poly Villa Re Place 3. ERRANRE

HBEMREEMEMEBAEE TR
RRBRESRRE KT EREF  ZFH
RARNEE HENMBEELZRE - iRk
BES R MBUN4AE - B8 B R BIHE
F K 1B R uh A93000K ¢+ RXGBE A o Hb ik
1t RIS00°K B BT AR BN &% - F —
EHSRBEZ BHERIEBREEDBEL
BABTH K BREREFABEEENE -



Changshu Poly Longyue Mansion

The project is located at Taishan North Road,
Honggiao Area, Changshu, which belongs to a prime
area of the city centre and close to the people’s
court, the natural resources and planning bureau and
other government authorities. The area has extensive
quality educational resources with Tianhong Shopping
Centre, Star Palace and other centralized businesses.
The project is located at the junction of Shiji
Boulevard and Huanghe Road and is planned to have
metro which is easily accessible. The project, with a
planned total gross floor area of approximately
40,000 square metres, is intended to be developed
into high-rise residential buildings.

Jinan Poly Jade

The three land parcels of the project granted in
bundle are located in Xianwen Area in Jinan
High-Tech Zone, a core area of the city centre. The
site neighbours CBD in the west, Olympic sports
governmental area in the south and is 2.8 kilometres
from the municipal government office, which has
geographical advantage. The area is well developed
with a range of quality educational and medical
facilities and is close to two core business circles.
The site enjoys convenient transportation and is
approximately 400 metres from Ding Jia East Station
of Metro Line 3. The project, with a planned total
gross floor area of approximately 151,000 square
metres, is intended to be developed into high-rise
residential buildings.

Shanghai Feng Xian Project

The project is located in Nangiao New Town,
Fengxian District, Shanghai, a high-quality core
district being developed by the Fengxian district
government. The site is south to Shanghai Fish and
close to Poly Moon Light and Poly Twilight Mansion,
two projects developed by the Group. The area is
well equipped with rich educational and medical
resources. The site is in proximity to Metro Line 5
and several bus lines which has convenient
transportation. The project, with a planned total
gross floor area of approximately 107,000 square
metres, is intended to be developed into high-rise
residential buildings.

RANBXREEBRAR
“e——sag 2/

ERERMNENE
BEUREATLEAERLEE  BR
mRREZLOME  EaARER AR
BREMREBERGHE - FEANEERE
WEEHEER UEKRLIBYHL £
RRWERFHE - HERNETHBHL
REWNEERER » AR BFHER
B HITERN - IRE R A EmEL4L.0
B¥LDA #HEREFEEEENE -

BrERNRE
HEA=ZFMBMHALE AR EETE
#ri|mE AR BT R B 78 A
PRAEEECBD - MMREBHSR - R
MHF2.8RE - EUERM - FRER
TR EERENRENEREE
SMMABM MO E - IREREHBR
BITAR T KRIK400K - X BERE - 1A
BRSEEERMBAOISNEFITK 5%
RIESEEENE-

LtB#EEIEHE

HRAURLEETEERMEBHN 2FE
BERAREEZRNSmEZRLERSE - iR
R EBzREAl YEAREEFED
RABAIHHA MR FIBAFEAXREERE -
FEERREXNP RENMEEERE
o I 3B 4P AT b ISR AR A Z R AR
BoRXBEE -BRERIREZEERELD
10 78F 0K BRERIFEEEENE -

Hol
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B E AT

Jinan Poly Park TOD

The project is located on the top of Jiangjiazhuang
parking lot of Rail Transit Line 2 in Lixia District,
Jinan, and is one of the first TOD metro
comprehensive development projects in Jinan. The
Shengfu Area where the plot is located is the key
building area of the city and also the hot
improvement area of Jinan in recent years. The
project relies on Jiangjiazhuang Station, with
convenient transportation. The surrounding business,
education and medical facilities are complete, and
the landscape resources are abundant. The project,
with a planned total gross floor area of
approximately 140,000 square metres, is intended to
be developed into high-rise residential buildings.

Shenzhen Yuling Road Project

The project is located at the north side of the
intersection of Yanlong Avenue and Yuling Road in
Longcheng Street, Shenzhen. The Longxi Wulian
District, where the project is located, focuses on the
development of leisure tourism and ecological
residential areas, while taking into account the
ecological industry, and plans to build it into the
back garden of Longgang Central City. It is
positioned with comprehensive facilities for
education, business and medical care. The project,
with a planned total gross floor area of
approximately 138,000 square metres, is intended to
be developed into high-rise residential buildings.

Kunshan Tongfeng Road Project

The project is located at Tongfeng Road, Kunshan
Development Zone, close to the city center,
belonging to the traditional residential area of the
development zone, with a strong residential
atmosphere. The surrounding areas are abundant in
commercial and medical resources and have certain
advantages in school districts, including Kunshan
International School and Kunshan First People’s
Hospital. The plot is 600 meters away from the
planned metro line S1, with convenient
transportation. The project, with a planned total
gross floor area of approximately 356,000 square
metres, is intended to be developed into high-rise
residential buildings.

BrEARNDE L

HEURNBEEME NRIERBARIRE
RAEFEELS LE - BEM AL TODME AR
ERBEBEBEZ— - HRAENEREHRE
W BRI E R bR R AES
HERE -RBEFEZRE  XB+D
BA-FAEEE HENBEELEES
REEREE HEMIBRERED
1408F 5K REREREEE/NE -

R Y| E &8 3% B
BRURNRImREREGBERENBEESE
BERIERILR - FTEMERARBA RER
BRKERE  ERER - [R5 E4ERE
T RITERERTLOMMNEKIER -
REESAAHEERNERME  #E -
BEMBERELEALEEZ -REMRIE
BREEBAIBSEF A RERESE
EE/E -

ELEZRER
BEMUREIIMHAERREE  #amP
O BRAZERESETSRE  EERE
=R FAEEMENBREEREE  BF —
TE2REY EESEELERERNE
I — ARBFTE o % 5B 3R 2 b i S
5 £R600K » X MEF - 18 B R &l 4 12 &
EER35.68FH K RERESERET
INE o



10. Jinan Lixia District Project
The project is located in Block 11, Science and
Technology City, Lixia District, Jinan, adjacent to the
urban CBD in the south and the high-tech core area
in the east, with a superior geographical location.
The southeast side of the plot is adjacent to the CBD
Silk Belt Park landscape area, with developed road
network and convenient transportation. The project
shares the core business district of the city center,
high-quality educational and medical resources, and
provincial-level cultural and sports supporting
facilities. The project, with a planned total gross floor
area of approximately 321,000 square metres, is
intended to be developed into high-rise residential

buildings

PROJECTS UNDER CONSTRUCTION
AND PROJECTS UNDER PLANNING

As at 31 December 2022, Poly Property Group had a total
of 73 real estate development projects in 29 cities. 45% of
the total GFA was located in Yangtze River Delta and
Pearl River Delta Region, 27% in Southwestern Region,
27% in Other Regions, and 1% in Hong Kong. Meanwhile,
64 projects were under construction, with a total GFA of
10,637,000 square metres (attributable area amounted to
8,176,000 square metres), and a total GFA of 8,529,000
square metres (attributable area amounted to 5,489,000
square metres) was under planning.

RANEBEXESEBR QA
— T _FFR 29

10. BB NTEHEH
HEMREBEEMETEREE AR
[E B TCBD  REEsFZEOE i
B BB - IR R QAL ACBDAS A
B SEE FEREsE BEER -8
BHEEMHRLZLEE  BERNHREMNE
BER URELEXBERERN -
BREBEEEBARABF K K3
RIEaBEE/NE -

EERGERERE

RZBZZF+—A=+—HB BEBEXEBEE29
B mERA7TIEEMEMREIBE - EdhHHh
EE=ZANK=-AMEMNEE AEETEHE
BELL B A 5T A45% ¢ D i 1E P R Hb @ A0 E A b
@ IE B BEERBEIL L D R B27%F27%
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Project

HH

List of Projects under Construction and R=-Z2=Z
under Planning as at 31 December 2022

GFA under
construction

Eg

BEEEE
('000 square

GFA under
planning
HE
HEEER

('000 square

Ft+ZA=+—Hz®
BEBRFEEAEBEIR

Interest
attributable

metres) metres) (%)
(FFAK)  (FFAK) (%)
YANGTZE RIVER DELTA REGION R=EZA®E
1. Shanghai Poly Moonrise Mansion 1. EBRFMAABRA 111 — 100%
2. Shanghai Poly Twilight Mansion 2. EBRFIBAAEN 101 — 100%
3. Shanghai Poly Vibe Centro 3. EBRMmEE 86 — 100%
4. Shanghai Feng Xian Project 4. FBFBIHAE 107 — 100%
5. Kunshan Moonlight Mansion 5. ELBAPRE 221 — 49%
6. Kunshan Moonlight Jade 6. EILAARIKS 194 — 49%
7. Kunshan East City 7. ELRER 270 — 32%
8. Kunshan Tongfeng Road Project 8. EILRZRIER 237 19 51%
9. Changzhou Poly Jingyue Palace 9. BMERNSIAM 227 — 51%
10. Taicang Tianhe Mansion 10. KB RMHEER 120 — 41%
11. Suzhou Poly Lake Mansion 1. & N AR F 218 B BR — 104 100%
12. Suzhou Urban Ideal Habitat 12. 8N L ERHE 28 161 — 20%
13. Suzhou Poly Poetic Dwelling 13. B MNR T EE A 76 101 — 100%
14. Suzhou Riverside Time Zone 14. BR MBI ETE 82 — 49%
15. Suzhou Tide Mansion 15. B M FE B R Jo 152 — 36%
16. Changshu Poly Longyue Mansion 16. F AARFIRES 40 — 100%
17. Ningbo Poly Riverview Mansion 17. BRRFT £ E) 175 — 70%
18. Ningbo Luxury Clivia 18. B E MR AL R 154 - 49%
19. Ningbo Poly Spring Poetry 19. ERRFMARET 88 — 100%
20. Ningbo Poly Brocade Scroll 20. ZR LR F 7 L ED 132 — 100%
21. Ningbo Hai Shu Project 21. E )R /BREIE B 71 — 100%
22. Ningbo Poly Rising 22. BRIRANEAFABE 185 — 100%
23. Ningbo Poly Villa Re Place 23. B R R A BRE 234 — 100%
24. Ninghai Poly Origin of Nebula 2. EBFRANBARERF 91 — 100%
25. Hangzhou Future Mansion 25. FL MOT 3B B 304 — 50%
26. Yuyao Poly Jordan International 26. RPHR T B B BB IER 13 299 100%
27. Deging Poly Origin 27. BB R T R 48 — 67 100%
Sub total i & /) 5t 3,655 588
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Interest
GFA under  GFA under attributable
Project construction planning to the Group
i3 =B x5H
HH HEEER HAREER FE 15 R &
('000 square  ('000 square
metres) metres) (%)
(FFAXK)  (FEAXK) (%)
PEARL RIVER DELTA REGION K=AtE
28. Guangzhou Poly Gratified West Bay 28. [& )il {R Fl| 78 1)1 /& 133 234 75%
29. Guangzhou Clover Shades 29. BN B EIEER 137 — 38%
30. Guangzhou Poly Glory 30. BMRFIBR A& 79 — 100%
31. Guangzhou Nan Sha Project 31. BMARFE 52 — 100%
32. Guangzhou Poly Polaris 32. BEMGRF E= 178 114 94%
33. Guangzhou Glory of City 33. BMAKE 186 — 40%
34. Guangzhou Poly Moonlight Lake 34. B MR T BA IR M % 88 129 100%
35. Guangzhou Poly Longyue 35. FE M AR FIBE 119 — 100%
36. Foshan Guangfo Poly City |l 36. B 1Ll & % 4R 7 50 = BA 108 — 100%
37. Foshan Poly Mansion 37. B LR T S 45 AT 109 100 100%
38. Shenzhen Poly Keenstar Super City 38. % JI{R FI| £ 5 3= 2 4B — 1,858 50%
39. Shenzhen Poly New Dream 39 R IR F ZE 1L 2D 183 — 51%
40. Shenzhen Poly Vibe Centro 40. R IR T BE B 171 — 51%
41.Shenzhen Poly Urban Cultural Bay  41. F IR FIBHIFH =€ E 251 — 100%
42. Shenzhen Yuling Road Project 42 7 553818 B — 138 51%
Sub total i B /) 5T 1,795 2,573
SOUTHWESTERN REGION Farih &
43. Guiyang Poly Park 2010 43. EHRF A l201o 68 225 100%
44. Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay 44. EI5 R T B — 206 51%
45. Guiyang Poly Bright Moon on Top 45. & [5 1% % B8 fﬂfiilll 108 193 100%
46. Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future 46. B R F R Rk T — 2,105 35%
47. Nanning Poly Town 47. 7 2= (R F) B 75 A 78 — 100%
48. Nanning Poly Town Phase I 48. F BRI A 5 A vk — B 491 359 100%
49. Nanning Poly Moon Bay 49. FERMBAATIL 344 — 100%
50. Liuzhou Poly Mountain Villa 50. M0 4R A BA 3R 1L & 44 — 100%
51. Kunming Poly City 51. B B 4R F1) 35K 460 317 90%
52. Kunming Poly Moonlight Mansion  52. & BA R F| 83 35 4= |y 168 87 51%

Sub total i & /)N FT 1,762 3,493
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Interest
GFA under  GFA under attributable
Project construction planning to the Group
TR B X

HH HEREER HAREER

('000 square  ('000 square
metres) metres) (%)
(FFAXK)  (FFAK) (%)

OTHER REGION H fth 3th &

53. Wuhan Poly City 53. EVE R F 3K 85 580 68%
54. Wuhan Poly Park 54. BOZRF A E — 286 55%
55. Wuhan Poly Emerald Mansion 55. B R H 25 R Aﬁg 227 — 100%
56. Wuhan Poly Bright Lights 56. BVER A BAE R K 230 — 100%
57. Harbin Guang Xin Project 57. REEEIER 608 — 100%
58. Mudanjiang Poly Landscape 58. # FHT R AT L4 134 34 100%
59. Jinan Phili House 59. BEEBEENEE — 83 25%
60. Jinan Poly Mountain Villa 60. BRI 5 86 — 60%
61.Jinan Huai Yin Project 61. EmIRIEEB 451 — 75%
62. Jinan Poly Grand Joy I 62. BERNKXEZH 335 191 100%
63. Jinan Poly Jade 63. BrmRNER 151 — 100%
64. Jinan Poly Park TOD 64. BRI A B £ 140 — 80%
65. Jinan Lixia District Project 65. BEmE NEIER — 321 100%
66. Yantai Poly Moon Mansion 66. E B IRFAFEFIL 184 — 51%
67. Weihai Poly Hanlin Mansion 67. BB R B ML 49 — 40%
68. Weihai Poly Moon Fenghua 68. BUB RN BAIA A 223 — 51%
69. Weifang Zoina Poly Mansion 69. 1 7 B R A T 139 — 30%
70. Tai'an Poly Yuelu Mansion 70. TL R F E BT 168 — 60%
71. Wanning Poly Peninsula No.1 71. BERFFES15R 71 379 100%

Sub total i & /) 5t 3,281 1,875

HONG KONG REGION FERBE

72. Hong Kong Chill Residence 72. BB 43 — 70%
73. Hong Kong Pano Harbour 73. BBER 102 — 35%

Sub total i & /) 5T 145 —

Grand total & &t 10,637 8,529

Note: Hiat -

WP EENERER
DHNFTEEF -

T8 BAEIMR TN —EER AR

Since figures were rounded up to the nearest thousand, their total may not

equal to the actual sum or the sum in each group.
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COMPLETED CONSTRUCTION

In 2022, Poly Property Group has achieved a total GFA of

approximately 4,765,000 square metres in completed K-

construction. The construction of all phases of 20 projects

has been completed in the Year.

FREEE TIER H20E -

Accumulated
Completed GFA completed GFA by

Project in 2022 the end of 2022
BE-Z-_FK
—®=-—f BB &5
H B BRIZEEE ERTEEHRRE
("000 square ("000 square
metres) metres)
(FF752K) (FF752K)

YANGTZE RIVER DELTA REGION =—AME
Shanghai Poly Moon Light FERFAFM K 93 93
Suzhou Wonderful Times # NI A B 105 105
Suzhou Above The Clouds HINEETEE 125 125
Suzhou Urban Ideal Habitat TJH%@?@?B 118 118
Ningbo Poly City R AR F I 77 668
Ningbo Poly Lake Imprint % R ) e ED 190 190

PEARL RIVER DELTA REGION R=AhE
Guangzhou Poly Gratified West Bay J& N 4R 1) 78 432 77 176
Guangzhou Nansha Poly City &M ’J\ﬁﬂﬁ 117 802
Guangzhou Clover Shades & N 2 i 2 TE 46 46
Guangzhou Poly Glory BEMRFEA AR K 65 65
Foshan Guangfo Poly City 188 1L & B 4R A1 45k 240 252
Foshan Guangfo Poly City Phase Il % L1 B B AR A3 — HB 123 123
Shenzhen Poly Keenstar Super City R YR F B o oz B AL 267 267
Huizhou Poly Lujiang Lane TN AR B BB T 2K 231 231

SOUTHWESTERN REGION AEthE

Guiyang Poly Park 2010 E 5 RF A E2010 142 1,667
Nanning Poly Dream River MERME N E 222 222
Nanning Poly Hearty AERMLE 21 304
Nanning Poly Town A 2 4R ) <8 75 AT K 234 1,668
Nanning Poly Town Phase Il A 2R F) <8 75 A 3 — & 466 845
Liuzhou Poly Mountain Villa M0 4R A 8A 35 1L 58 71 71
Kunming Poly City B2 BA 4R ) 302 302
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Project

HH

Accumulated

Completed GFA completed GFA by

in 2022

—E- =

WIEEMEE
("000 square

the end of 2022
BE-ZT_—_FK
BHHE &
ERIZEME

("000 square

metres) metres)
(FFHXK) (FFHXK)
OTHER REGIONS Hfth it &
Wuhan Poly Joyful Mansion EOE R AR A 88 178 178
Wuhan Poly Up Town EOE R A 35 179 826
Harbin Poly City he 7R & 1R 35 12 607
Harbin Poly Tin Yor Phase |l h& R & R R K 3 — B 1 143
Harbin Poly Time Lane ie BB R M BA 3R A Ot 233 233
Jinan Poly Mountain Villa B F AR A L R 99 99
Jinan Huai Yin Project EEIREIE B 208 208
Jinan Poly Grand Joy BERNKRE 131 223
Weihai Caixin Poly Masterpiece B8 B SR A &2 & 19 304
Weihai Poly Hanlin Mansion &k 8 1R I 8 AR5 72 72
Zibo Poly Mansion 18 R T 2 7 158
Zibo Poly City VS T8 AR ) 95K 165 234
Weifang Zoina Poly Mansion S R A 23 279
Tai'an Poly Yuelu Mansion RELRMINEBF 108 108
Grand total CEl 4,765
Note: Bt

Since figures were rounded up to the nearest thousand, their total may not

equal to the actual sum.

F o

BFEEMEREOON T ENRT - EERNEFE
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RECOGNISED PROPERTY SALES

The sales of 85 projects of Poly Property have been
recognised in 2022, with a total sales value of RMB39
billion and a total GFA of 2,308,000 square metres. The
recognised average selling price was RMB16,918 per
square metre. Among the sales recognised, ordinary
residential properties accounted for 92%, villas accounted
for 2%, retail shops accounted for 3%, offices accounted
for 0% and parking spaces accounted for 2% of the total
value. In terms of geographical distribution, Yangtze River
Delta Region, Pearl River Delta Region, Southwestern
Region, Other Regions and Hong Kong accounted for
19%, 33%, 29%, 16% and 3%, respectively.

List of Major Projects with Sales
Recognised in 2022

mEIEHE

TECCF O RABEEHEFSEBEEERHEE
HHE AESBH ARBINET HEBE
23088 F 5K £EHYE A ARK16,9187T,
FHK - IREE SR - TREEM2% - BIE
152% * EE1E3% * BFEE0% * BEAI152% °
BESMHE  R=A1519%  k=A1433% @ 7
7O M [ (H29% - E i R (516% &S & (h
3% °

EFFELFBEABIX

Sales recognized

Project in 2022
—E=_=

HE HHEEH
(RMB million)
(ANREBET)

Yangtze River Delta Region RZABE
1. Shanghai Jiading Affordable Housing Project 1. tEBEEREEER 1,073
2. Suzhou Poly Tianyue Mansion 2. BMNERFRBAR 364
3. Suzhou Wonderful Times 3. BT ARk 1,087
4. Ningbo Poly City 4. ERARTI 168
5. Ningbo Poly Lake Imprint 5. ZIRARFM S ED 4,704
6. Others 6. AMERIER 140
Sub total it & /)&t 7,535
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Sales recognized

Project in 2022
—E__F
B wESHE
(RMB million)
(AR BHET)

Pearl River Delta Region K=AME
7. Guangzhou Poly Gratified West Bay 7. BMNRF TG E 1,973
8. Guangzhou Nansha Poly City 8. BN m 2R 1,850
9. Guangzhou Poly Glory 9. BEMERNBAARK 1,075
10. Foshan Poly Tongji Mansion 10. % 1L R 7 B 7 1T 141
11. Foshan Guangfo Poly City 11, 8 1L B % 4R I35 2,311
12. Shenzhen Poly Keenstar Super City 12 R YR F 8 o95F B AR 4,235
13. Huizhou Poly Sunshine Town 13. M AR ARG e % 130
14. Huizhou Poly Lujiang Lane 14. BMRFIE TR 971
15. Others 15. A th #8218 B 97
Sub total 1 & /) &t 12,782

Southwestern Region AEitE

16. Guiyang Poly Park 2010 16. E5 R A2 E2010 368
17. Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future 17. BER R RRW 149
18. Nanning Poly Crescendo 18. FERMILEHE 173
19. Nanning Poly Town 19. F3 2 4R F| B 55 A 5K 2,631
20. Nanning Poly Town Phase |l 20. S E RN 22 75 B — 57 4,825
21. Liuzhou Poly Mountain Villa 21. DM R A B3R 1L B 111
22. Kunming Poly City 22. B BRARFIK 2,785
23. Others 23. EfhZ&IER 361
Sub total & /&t 11,403
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Sales recognized

Project in 2022
—E__—F
HA HELH
(RMB million)
(ARBHET)

Other Regions Hithith &
24. Wuhan Poly Joyful Mansion 24. BORRFR N 2 891
25. Harbin Poly City 25. M BB R M3 139
26. Harbin Poly Tin Yor Phase II 26. % RB R M KU = H 436
27. Harbin Poly Tin Yor 27. BB R AR 105
28. Harbin Poly Time Lane 28. R RB R A BRI X 536
29. Jinan Poly Mountain Villa 29. BRI E 113
30. Jinan Poly Sheng Jing Tai 0. BEERFERA 191
31.Jinan Huai Yin Project 3. BERERIEIAR 1,507
32. Jinan Poly Grand Joy 32. BERNXE 536
33. Yantai Poly Ocean Luxe BELRNEHE 383
34. Weihai Poly Hanlin Mansion 34. BB R T ML 187
35. Zibo Poly City 35. T 18 4R I 95K 562
36. Tai'an Poly Yuelu Mansion 36. RLRFEE 342
37. Others 37. HELEH 318
Sub total i & /)5t 6,245

Hong Kong Region BERiE
38. Hong Kong Vibe Centro B.EFHER 290
39. Hong Kong Villa La Plage .FERE 782
Sub total & /AT 1,072
Grand total A&t 39,037

Note: Bt

Since figures were rounded up to the nearest million, their total may not

equal to the actual sum or the sum in each group.

DN EF o

BFRENEREONBEML  #ANRT —EER AT



38 POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENwmEDT

Recognised Sales in 2022 by Property Type

CECCFEEYERRRIR

Sales

recognized in
Property type 2022 Percentage

—E—_—
MEER HEEH [Eil
(RMB million) (%)
(ANREBBEET) (%)
Ordinary residential property LTBEE 35,947 92%
Villa pall - 870 2%
Retail shop 725 &R 1,290 3%
Office BTE 62 0%
Parking space B 868 2%
Total &t 39,037 100%
Note: Bt it -

Since figures were rounded up to the nearest million, their total may not
equal to the actual sum or the sum in each group.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group has various investment properties and hotels
located in first-tier cities and second-tier provincial
capitals. The investment properties had a total GFA of
approximately 697,000 square metres and an asset value
of approximately RMB9,667 million.

HFRENEREANABMN  SUENET —ESRN &5k
DHENFTEET -

BREWR
AREFESELR —RATHN = REEHD

MREMEREE  HhREMEEEETE
#69.78F K BEBEBHARK.67E T -
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List of Major Investment Properties and
Hotels as at 31 December 2022

Project

HH

GFA held

BREEHR

('000 square

—E__H+ZA=+—H=EE

i
REWEKE L5 &

Average

occupancy

rate of 2022
—E-_

FHHEE

Interests
attributable to
the Group
rE

FE {5 %2

Average
occupancy
rate of 2021
—E-—F
¥ %

Property type

NERR

metres) (%) (%) (%)
(FF7XK) (%) (%) (%)
Investment properties
REME
Beijing Beijing Poly Plaza 15 68% 81% 75% Office
A EREMAE N -
Shanghai  Shanghai Poly Plaza (partial) 30 75% 78% 100% Office and
commercial
+g HEBRFES (B2) N YT
Shanghai  Shanghai Stock Exchange 48 60% 61% 100% Office
Building (partial)
LB LEBBESRE (D) N
Shenzhen  Shenzhen Poly Cultural Plaza 135 97% 100% 100% Commercial
(partial)
3l RIS B35 (5 2) GES
Wuhan Wuhan Poly Plaza (partial) 56 61% 75% 100% Office
HE RERMNES (B2) YN
Hotels
BIE
Beijing Beijing Poly Plaza Hotel 63 31% 36% 75% Hotel
p ERRFIAREE & B
Shanghai  Hyatt Regency Shanghai Jiading 69 60% 64% 100% Hotel
LB LEBREIGEE B
Wuhan Wuhan Poly Hotel 28 35% 51% 100% Hotel
B R R AE R B
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PROPERTY MANAGEMENT Y= EE

The Group has various property management companies ASBIFEEZRWEETE QR EBK S RE
engaging in the operation management service of E -FHE -MAE AEHNBEREZLEELY
residential, commercial, offices, hotels, theatres and other WKL ETEBRE E2EYWEETETEDL
property types. They have been the leading players in the PRI - WIS % (BB A 4218 o

property management industry of China and have received

numerous titles and awards.

In 2022, the Group's property management companies _—_ZE__—F AKEYESTELAIERIRARE
recorded total revenue of RMB1,077 million, representing A R®¥10.77/87C * RLIE K5.5% : BEEWMEIE
a year-on-year increase of 5.5%. The companies managed H2661E - EEEIEX4,688.98 FH K &EF
a total of 266 property projects with a GFA under 3£&K7.3% °

management of approximately 46,889,000 square metres,

representing an increase of 7.3% when comparing with last

year.



RANBXEBHR A A 4'|
—E - _FFR

SUMMARY OF MAJOR REAL ESTATE FEFHERBEAGN

PROJECTS

R=ZAHE

R-E-_—F+_A=+—8 BEX5£H8
ER=AMEEERFFIEFHERZIE
B HEAF2@EEE®T - 25@™EE E®
MEIPEE  2@EEREF -HFEEER
BEMEISSEF K SFREREREE
58.88FH K At LibfEH42438F H

1. Yangtze River Delta Region 1.
As at 31 December 2022, Poly Property Group had
49 projects in the Yangtze River Delta Region, of
which 22 were completed, 25 were under
construction and 2 were under planning. The total

GFA was 4,243,000 square metres, accounting for

22% of Poly Property Group’s total land reserves.
Among which, 3,655,000 square metres were under

construction while 588,000 square metres were under

planning.

Project

Location

Property type

K-IEEFEERLIMFEREN2% -

Current status

HH BN E MEER R R
Poly Deluxe Located in the prime area of Jiading | Residential Delivered with
Mansion District, close to Metro Line 11 buildings sales of remaining
RIXREFE | URBETERIWZLOE  BiENREL | % apartments

H R RIEBHE
Poly Elegant Residential Delivered with
Mansion buildings sales of remaining
RFRIEFE F= apartments

RNERHE

Jiading Project
REMHIEE

Residential and
commercial

Delivered with
sales of remaining

buildings, hotels | apartments
and theatres RNEBRHE

FE BE BRE
e

Shanghai Poly Greenland | Located at Dalian Road, Yangpu Residential Delivered with
+£8 Plaza District, CBD of waterfront Inner buildings, offices | sales of remaining
RFEMES | Loop, Golden Triangle of Lujiazui and commercial | apartments
fAGERERNEE BRAREL buildings RNEREE
CBDH it EXEE S = AR ETx -57E-
[GES
Poly Phili Located in Sijing, Songjiang, near Residential and Delivered with
House Sijing Station of Metro Line 9 with commercial sales of remaining
{RFI5E A | access to convenient transportation | buildings apartments
and full-fledged ancillary facilities Fx B% RNERIEE
i FARTOIE - 485 3th $95% 4R MK
i RBEMN EETE
Poly Phili Located within the Eastern Bund in Residential Delivered with
Regency Yangpu District buildings sales of remaining
RAUBBFE | URBEBRRIMERR E=x apartments

RYERHE




42 5

ROPERTY G
INUAL REPORT 20

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B A e

DT

Project

HE

Location

WEAE

Property type
mERR

Current status

BEMRR

Shanghai
T

Xijiao Jinmao Located in New Jiading, 800 metres from | Apartments and Delivered with sales
Palace New Jiading Station of Metro Line 11 villas of remaining
AB SN MRETHE  EENRERETHHS | 28 5Z apartments

800K INEREE
Jiading Located in Huangdu Town of Jiading Affordable housing | Delivered with sales
Affordable District, one kilometre from the east of RER of remaining
Housing Project | Jiading campus of Tongji University apartments
ETREFER | URETREER RAEAZETRER INERHEE

fil—ng

Poly Moon Light | Located on the east side of Fengxian Residential Delivered with sales
TR A High School, Nangiao New Town, buildings of remaining

Fengxian District, and is approximately £ apartments

400 metres from the waterscape of XNEEHEE

"Shanghai Fish”

UREBRERAATETIRA ER

LB ZBH400K
Poly Moonrise Located in the centre of Chenggiao Residential and For sale
Mansion Town, Chongming District, which is commercial rE
AR situated in the Chongming Chenggiao buildings

Town international eco-community Fx B%

designated by the government as a major

residential area

RSHARUBERZOES  BRHFE

HTENSARBRERAR R
Poly Twilight Located in Nangiao New Town, Fengxian | Residential and For sale
Mansion District, and is close to Fengxian commercial rE
RABAFE L Xincheng Station of Metro Line 5 buildings

UREBEEEBIIARE  ZOMESRR | £ A%

B

Poly Vibe Centro | Located in Dinghai Community, Yangpu Residential For sale
RIS District, which is the central area with buildings EE

convenient transportation and FE

comprehensive infrastructure in the

vicinity

RGHEEELE BRPLRE X
Feng Xian Located in Nangiao New Town Area, Residential Under construction
Project Fengxian District, in the south side of the | buildings and prepared for
ZBIA waterscape of “Shanghai Fish” and close | £ sale

to the Metro Line 5
UREEREEHIRE - Bz A
B3 3 EI5 4R

EREE
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Project Location Property type Current status
BH WwELE MERR B R OR
Moonlight Located in Lujia Town, approximately 200 | Residential For sale
Mansion metres from the proposed Kunshan S1 buildings EE
HIARE Line and situated in the Shanghai £
half-hour commuting circle
I RBES R - PR BEAE 22 7 M0 B 1L S 14 49200
KowE LB NERYER
Moonlight Jade | Located in Huagiao Town, adjacent to Residential For sale
HARRKG Jiading District of Shanghai in the east. | buildings EE
The project is close to Metro Line S1 £
under construction, which can be
connected to Shanghai Metro Line 11
RRTERE RABELEETER - 38
SOERDOSITR THELERR
SRAR
Kunshan East City Located at the border between the Residential and For sale
Bl REER central area of Yushan Town and the commercial e
eastern area, the project is 1.5 kilometres | buildings
from Metro Line S1 under construction, | % F%
and is equipped with necessary
educational and commercial resources in
the vicinity
IR ELEROHENARRAERR
FRARNSINGISARE AELERE
THHERNEEER
Tongfeng Road | Located in the old residential area in Residential and Under construction
Project development zone, adjacent to the commercial and prepared for
EE-37951E downtown with certain advantages of buildings sale
school district Fx m% ERGE
RAERESEERE  BEHHL
B-TRRED
Poly Jingyue Located in Fenghuang New Town and Residential and For sale
Palace adjacent to Qingyang Flyover, the project | commercial EE
RAZHRF is surrounded by well-developed buildings
Changzhou . - N
= residential communities with abundant FE @
natural and scenic resources
iR BEMHRE ERFFRR B
REAKF - BANRBERER
Tianhe Mansion | Located in Loujiang New Town in Residential For sale
AR High-tech District, the key planning area, | buildings EE
the project is 3 kilometres from the £
: municipal government office and is close
Taicang . .
A to Wanda commercial properties and

equipped with abundant educational
resources
IREHRIANSHEETHM  EHR
f3RE SOEERE HEERYE
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Project

HE

Location

WEALE

Property type
mERE

Current status

BERR

Suzhou
M

Poly West Bank | Located in the economic development Apartments and Delivered with sales

Villa zone of Wuzhong District, the project villas of remaining

RIBERRF stands on a peninsula of Dushu Lake NI apartments
URRPEERER  RARRBE MM INEBHE

Poly Lake Located in the economic development Residential, For sale (partially

Mansion zone of Wuzhong District and the commercial delivered)

R FI B # B B northern tip of Yinshan Lake buildings, offices EE(BHRHM)
R RPEERER  FILRLE and hotels

KB E

Poly Tianyue Located in Weitang Town, in proximity to | Residential and Delivered with sales
Mansion transportation terminal and with access to | commercial of remaining
RN KA K Metro Line 9 which is under planning buildings apartments
fRBEE ERTERREW RRAS | £ BF INERHE
A 95 &%
Majestic Located in Luzhi Town, close to Lake East | Residential Delivered with sales
Mansion of Industrial Park of Suzhou, with access | buildings of remaining
MIfER to Metro Line 6 which is under long-term | {% apartments
planning RNREHE
RAEE BHEMNIERRBRRER
i EHRE B EHE R
Poly Yue Ying Located in Shishan Street, Hi-Tech Residential Delivered with sales
Ting District, adjacent to the old town and in | buildings of remaining
R A8 E proximity to Metro Line 3 under F=E apartments
construction INEREE
fURBHEBLEE EBERE B0
B 0 1 35 AR
Wonderful Times | Located in Mu Du Town of Wu Zhong Residential Delivered with sales
TR District, close to Metro Line 5 which is buildings of remaining
under construction FE apartments
iR R RAER - BT R T 55 IRNEERHE
®
Above The Located in the IKEA business circle of Hu | Residential Delivered with sales
Clouds Shuguan, Hi-Tech District, with Beijing- buildings of remaining
EELE Hangzhou Grand Canal and scenic belts | £ apartments
of canals under construction situated in INEREE
the west
fIREHEFEREXEE  BAARM
RNET RERENEAT
Urban Ideal Located in the centre of Wangting Town | Residential For sale (partially
Habitat of Xiangcheng District, close to north buildings delivered)
ERRE Taihu and near Xiangcheng District % EE@BHRAM)

Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital
AR EEFREPOES - BRITIE A8
AR R B R
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Property type
mERR

Current status

BEHRR

Poly Poetic Located in the central park in Huanggiao | Residential For sale
Dwelling Street, Xiangcheng District, and is close to | buildings EE
wAEAEE Metro Line 4 in operation £
s =R EET RAERR - 0
47 1 3 45 AR
Riverside Time Located at Baofeng Road, Wuzhong Residential For sale
Zone District, the area is the old town centre buildings rE
BAETER and well developed with high-quality =z
education, commercial and healthcare
Suzhou
P resources \ \
fIRRPBEELR BRESGTLRE &
REAALFERENAE BENEREAR
Tide Mansion Located in the Shengpu Area of SIP, Residential For sale
EERI which is an emerging residential area buildings e
planned by SIP government and equipped | £
with improving educational and
commercial facilities
IR TXERBRRE - RERKMTR S
MEEERRE HENHEREZ AR
Poly Longyue Located in Honggiao District, which Residential For sale
Mansion belongs to a prime area of the city buildings EE
Changshu RABENE centre, and is 'equipped with a range of | F%
. quality educational and commercial
- facilities
fIRIRE BRHRREZOLLE  ZF
BENHENBHEEE
Poly City Located in the prime location of Zhenhai | Residential and Delivered with sales
R New Town, facing the new administrative | commercial of remaining
and cultural centre of Zhenhai buildings and apartments
R REFHZOR - BAEEHTEUE | offices INEERHE
b Fx BERETFE
Poly Wonderland | Located at Shuixiang Lane, Dongshang Residential and Delivered with sales
RAENL New Town, Ningbo commercial of remaining
Ningbo fiz 5 B 5 R Ak 2 2 buildings apartments
B FERNES XNERIHE
Prosperous Located in the central area of Eastern Residential and Delivered with sales
Reflection New City and less than two kilometres commercial of remaining
EHHE from the office of Ningbo Municipal buildings and apartments
Government with access to convenient offices RINERIHE

transportation and full-fledged ancillary
facilities

R RBHAEZOE - BER B2
RE RBEN EEER

e BERETFE
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Project

Location

Property type

Current status

Ningbo

i

"H wEyE MEER B R
Oriental Imprint | Located in the centre of Beilun District, Residential Delivered with sales
R A the project is close to the government of | buildings of remaining
Beilun District, with square boundary and | £% apartments
convenient transportation INEREE
R EMER D BRI mRET i
WHIE  RBREM
Poly Lake Located in the east of Eastern New City, | Residential Delivered with sales
Imprint 2.2 kilometres from the office of Ningbo | buildings of remaining
R FH S ED Municipal Government £ apartments
MURRBHFAZOEARFE  ERER INEREE
mkG222 8
Poly Riverview Located in Yinfeng, Haishu District, which | Residential and For sale
Mansion is a multifunction waterfront integrating commercial EE
fRFT _EED commerce, residence, and culture and buildings
leisure FE ®%
IREERSERE RE/HE EEN
XEREERKER YRR
Luxury Clivia Located in Kongpu Street, Jiangbei Residential For sale
EFRBETE District, which is a core area of Yongjiang | buildings EE
cultural and creative port, and is F=E
approximately 300 metres from Kongpu
Station of Metro Line 2
IR AREE  RBIXAENR
DR 88 - 55 R B125% 48 7L 3 49300°K
Poly Spring Located in Jishigang Town, Haishu Residential For sale
Poetry District, which is the west gateway to the | buildings EE
RMEAART central district of Ningbo, the project FE
enjoys full-fledged ancillary facilities and
certain landscape resources
fIREERELTER RERPLREM
AP £EEERE  FAERBE
iR
Poly Brocade Located in the Science Park, High-tech Residential For sale
Scroll Zone, Yinzhou District, which is buildings rE
R 7l 87 1 £ approximately 600 metres from the High- | =%

tech Zone Station of Metro Line 5,
enjoying a favourable geographical
location

fir P EB N 2 15 R R e B - R 30 S5 AR
=T R IE600K + 327 B B M




Project

HHE

Location

WEME
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—E - _FFR

Property type
MERR

Current status

BEMRR

Hai Shu Project | Located in Jishigang Town, Haishu Residential Under construction
BEIRE District, which is 2.2 kilometres from the | buildings and prepared for
Town Government, the project enjoys £ sale
well-established community amenities EERE
I EERE T/EE BRENM22A
B AERERE
Poly Rising Located in Zhuanggiao Area, Jiangbei Residential For sale
RFAFBE District, and close to Hongda Road buildings e
Ningbo Station of Metro Line 4 in the south F=E
Bk fir T R ARIE - 458 5 Al A 245
Y YN
Poly Villa Re Located in Fuming Street, Yinzhou Residential For sale
Place District, which is a traditional community | buildings e
RN EE with centralized resources, and close to | £%
Zhongxing Bridge South Station of Metro
Line 3
IRBMNERAGE BREGAR K
MERET  BOORIFRTEABEIL
Poly Origin of Located in Yuelong Street in the prime Residential and For sale
Nebula area, the project enjoys convenient commercial EE
o RAFBRERN | transportation and high-quality buildings
Ninghai . . i
g educational resources and professional FE BE
o medical services
fiREHEREGE RBRE %A
EENHEEARNEXNEREE
Future Mansion | Located in Fuchunwan New Town, Fuyang | Residential and For sale
LA ER District, which is situated in the planned | commercial EE
Hangzhou . : . g
fry I-Egh-ipeed jallwfx cqmmerual area b\mldmgs‘
REGREFLNN HERETHNE | £ BX
HRBRERRE
Poly Jordan Located in the southeast of the Residential and For sale (partially
International intersection of Chengdong Road and commercial delivered)
Yuyao RABEERIE | Tanjialing Road, Yuyao buildings and EEHHRNMN)
ok IR AHARBEBREBINEARE | offices

f

B2 BERET
2
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Project

HE

Location

WEALE

Property type
mERE

Current status

BERR

Poly Origin Located in the Eastern New Town in Residential For sale (partially
R IR Degqing, five-minute driving distance from | buildings, hotels delivered)
the Nanjing-Hangzhou High-speed Railway | and commercial EE(HHRNMN)
station and with superior scenery and buildings
landscape FE BEREE
MRRBHH - EEMSESH BER - B
BLE4HERE
Deqing Poly Prime Located in Fuxi Street, the central area of | Residential Delivered with sales
A Regency the Eastern New Town and the southwest | buildings of remaining
RMFERZEN | of the Poly Origin Project FE apartments
IRBRFRZOEEZEE  RARH INEERHEE
ERAmAEA
Poly Pearl Bay Located in Fuxi Street, Deging Old Town | Residential Delivered with sales
R AR A AL = is situated in the south buildings of remaining
fIRBELE BEAZBERLHE FE apartments
RNREHE
2. Pearl River Delta Region 2. BR=-AHME
As at 31 December 2022, Poly Property Group had RZB__F+_A=+—H EX5E

ER=AEEZEREIVEFHERZEE
B HEH16EDRT 13EEBERET
EER - 2EIBEEREF - IFEEEBEESE
HMBI7T958 T K SRS E
25738 F 5K » B ET L H436.88 F
FK HEXEEEA L FEEN23% -

31 projects in the Pearl River Delta Region, of which
16 were completed, 13 were under construction and
two was under planning. The total GFA was
4,368,000 square metres, accounting for 23% of Poly
Property Group's total land reserves. Among which,
1,795,000 square metres were under construction
while 2,573,000 square metres were under planning.



Project
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Location
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Property type
MERR

Current status

Guangzhou

B

Poly Golf Shire
ST P S

Located in Huadu District; adjacent to the
Asian Games New Stadium at Fengshen
Avenue and the Metro Line 9
fIREHE EHRBAETEGHES
88 R 9 R

Residential
buildings and
offices

FE BFE

Delivered with sales
of remaining
apartment

INERHE

Poly Zephyr City

Located in the centre of Xinhua Town of

Residential and

Delivered with sales

RATER Huadu District, east to the district commercial of remaining
government buildings apartment
fIREBEHEED L EHRBEARA | £ FX IRNEERHE

Poly Up House Located in Huadu District, in proximity to | Residential Delivered with sales

RAM B Metro Lines 3 and 9 which are accessible | buildings of remaining
to the whole city % apartment
fIRTEHE - AT HIRAMIRR - BESE INEERHE
bl

Poly Gratified Located in the South of Liwan District, Residential and For sale (partially

West Bay adjacent to the Guangzhou Metro Line 1 | commercial delivered)

RMEE with complete commercial and buildings and EEFH2RM)
educational facilities offices

fIRHEEEES  AMLENMNEEIRR &
ELNBEREER

E2 BERET
1

Nansha Poly City

Located in Toyota Auto City in Huangge

Residential and

Delivered with sales

DR A Town, Nansha connecting to a commercial of remaining
comprehensive transportation network buildings apartment
REYPERREAAEN RBBET | B BX% INEREE
2

Poly Jade Hills Located at the junction of North Jianshe | Residential Delivered with sales

kA Road and Sandong Avenue in Huadu buildings, offices of remaining
RIRTERHRRIRE=RRERR and commercial apartment

buildings RNEREE
ET BFERA
¥

Clover Shades Located in the north of Pingbu Avenue, | Residential and For sale (partially

ERNELE Huadu District and is 3.5 kilometres from | commercial delivered)
the office of Huadu District Government | buildings EE(BHRM)
IRTEHRTFSRERL  BRTEHRY | £ BF

fI3.5% 8
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Project

HE

Location

WEALE

Property type
mERE

Current status

BERR

Poly Glory Located in Xinhua Town of Huadu Residential For sale (partially
REFHAE K District, is approximately 2 kilometres buildings delivered)
from the office of Huadu District £ EE(BHRM)
Government and adjacent to Ma'anshan
Park Station of Metro Line 9 which is in
operation
IREHEHTER EREHRBFO2A
2 RABBEAMBEIRKFRLDE
&
Nan Sha Project | Located in Huangge Town, Nansha Residential For sale
R A& £ District, and is next to the Nansha Poly | buildings EE
City Project £
R RERE  EBEDRNHIER
Poly Polaris Located in the north of Huadu Avenue Residential For sale
RF LR and the east of Lianshan Road, Huadu buildings FE
District and is 5 kilometres from the £
office of Huadu District Government
MR TEHREBREAL - BIEAR -
R EBE BT E
Guangzhou
B Glory of City Located to the north of Jinghu Avenue in | Residential and For sale
xE Huadu District, the project is 1.5 commercial FE
kilometres from Qingtang Station of buildings
Metro Line 9, surrounded by well- Fx m%
developed residential communities
R TEBEHAAE AL - BRI ENR
RBREINSAE  FEREMKH
Poly Moonlight Located in Lihu Area in Zengcheng Residential For sale
Lake District and at the junction of buildings EE
{R MR 37 4 % Guangzhou, Dongguan and Huizhou, the | =%
project is 3 kilometres from the office of
Zengcheng District Government
MR EREHARE BREEE= R
Rk EREHRENAE
Poly Longyue Located in Xintang Area in Zengcheng Residential and For sale
R District, with Metro Line 23 under commercial EE
planning, well-equipped with buildings
comprehensive facilities FE wF
fir 7B H AR - KRR AR 818 1 #23
R ERRBTE




Project

HHE

Location

WEME

RMNEXxSEEER AT 5‘|

Property type
MERR

—E - _FFR

Current status

BEMRR

Foshan

il

Poly Cullinan
Garden
RMAEEH

Located at the centre of Chancheng
District, neighbouring the Asia Arts Park
in the west

URERET LR AHEERE

Residential
buildings, offices
and commercial
buildings

FE - BFER
(53

Delivered with sales
of remaining
apartment

INRRHE

Poly Prestige

Located in Longjiang Town, Shunde

Residential and

Delivered with sales

City District, with an extensive transportation | commercial of remaining
R A L3 network and thriving commercial activities | buildings apartment
fIREEEETIE RBEE BERR | £ BX INERHE
RE
Poly Central Located in the north of Shunde New City, | Residential and Delivered with sales
Park the project stands in the heart of Pearl commercial of remaining
RMBRAE River Delta and enjoys convenient buildings and apartment
transportation hotels RTERHEE
AR IBEE SIS SRR =AMk X | B BEREE
BEM
Poly Tongji Located in old town district in Residential and Delivered with sales
Mansion Chancheng, and adjacent to Tongji Street | commercial of remaining
R EE S Station of Guangzhou-Foshan Railway buildings apartment
fiREREHERE EBEFHERE | £ FF IRNEERHE
Bk
Guangfo Poly Located at the junction of Daliang Road | Residential and For sale
City Il and Lunjiao Street in Shunde District, east | commercial rEE
BEHRFM =5 | to the First People’s Hospital buildings
REERARGENGATERER | £ BX

F-ARERRR

Guangfo Poly

Located in Lunjiao Street, Shunde District

Residential and

Delivered with sales

City and close to Metro Line 3 commercial of remaining
E BRI I BEE AT iE - A3 IR | buildings apartment
FE BE INEREE
Guangfo Poly Located in Lunjiao Street, Shunde District, | Residential and Delivered with sales
City Phase I northeast to Poly Central Park Project commercial of remaining
E#RFM =5 | and adjacent to Lunjiao Secondary School | buildings apartment
fIRBEERBEE RAIFRRERE | £ BX INERHE
RILA EHmAHE
Poly Mansion Located in Ronggui Street, Shunde Residential and For sale
R A0 15 1 District and in proximity to the Riverside | commercial EE
Park, the project is 2 kilometres from buildings
Ronggui Station of Guangzhou-Zhuhai FE BE

Intercity Railway
R BEEREEE  BOERE &
BEAEHREMNE
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BEMRR

Shenzhen

A

Poly Up Town
RA LR

Located in the prime commercial area of
Longgang District, the project is easily
accessible by Metro Line 3 and is also
complemented with ancillary facilities
fIREEEEERZOMER B3RS -
RBEREM BETE

Residential and
commercial
buildings

FE BE

Delivered with sales
of remaining
apartment

RFTREHE

Poly Joy-Zone

Located in Longhua, Bao'an District, close

Residential and

Delivered with sales

fUREREEERANENTERRERL
fl £EREEEZ:

R EBIEE to the transportation terminal and the commerecial of remaining
metro station, with comprehensive buildings apartment
business and community facilities FE- -BE XTEEHEE
IRERERE EHRETEY HH
U BEEE KEXE

Poly Keenstar Located in the north to the center of Residential and For sale (partially

Super City Long Gang with prime location, commercial delivered)

RMEFEER | convenient transportation, and thriving buildings EE@H2RM)
commercial activities and living Fx m%
environment
I RBER P OILE R B - RAERE
HENEERERE

Poly New Dream | Located at the junction of Longgang Residential and For sale

fRMZE L Street and Pingdi Street, the project is commercial EE
only 1 kilometre from the Metro Line 3 buildings
extension under construction FE BHE
iR EmEERITHEHEIRE  BHE
REMERGREREEIRE

Poly Vibe Centro | Located in the business centre of Residential and For sale

R ES Shenzhen North Railway Station area, the | commercial EE
project enjoys convenient transportation | buildings
and high-quality commercial and FE ®%
educational facilities in the vicinity
wRANLEEBR LR RBERE
FEBERANAFARLEE

Poly Urban Located in Shahu Community, Biling Residential and For sale

Cultural Bay Street, Pingshan District, only one commercial EE

RMEAFR = kilometre from Shahu Station of Metro buildings

EE Line 14 under construction FE- -BE
fiRFLREEHED AR ERER
M E14F R M EIR R

Yuling Road Located in the north of the intersection Residential and Under planning

Project of Yanlong Avenue and Yuling Road in commercial He

FHERER Longcheng Street, with comprehensive buildings
facilities FE m%
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BEMRR

Poly Deutch Located in the prime area of Huibo and | Residential and Delivered with sales
Kultur the northern bank of East River, only commercial of remaining
AR 7K 10-minute drive from downtown of buildings apartment

Huizhou EE B INEREE

IR EERL  RILE  BEMNROR
EEI0DEER

Poly Sunshine

Located next to the Shenzhen Shantou

Residential and

Delivered with sales

. Town Expressway and Palm Island Golf Course, | commercial of remaining
Huizhou o s . . . -
= R F B the project enjoys an environment of buildings apartment
natural scenery FE -HE RNERBEE
fIRFNBEREE EEGFEERAX
B5 BRREEE
Poly Lujiang Located in the centre of Shuikou, Residential and Delivered with sales
Lane Huicheng District, Huizhou and adjacent | commercial of remaining
RM BT R to Lujiangli Wetland Park buildings apartment
iR EREKARLRE EBEIER | £ BF INERHE
R E
Southwestern Region 3. AMHE

As at 31 December 2022, Poly Property Group had R-ZTEZ—_F+-_A=+—H BE¥5H

21 projects in the Southwestern Region, of which 11
were completed, 8 were under construction and two
were under planning. The total GFA was 5,255,000
square metres, accounting for 27% of Poly Property
Group's total land reserves. Among which, 1,762,000
square metres were under construction while

3,493,000 square metres were under planning.

FErEEEZHE21EREHE R ZE
BE-HEFANMEERIT sEABEBENEL
FEER - 2BIBEERER - HEERBIESE
mE17628 P K FELEERBE
34938 F 5K + A ET L #525.58 F
HAK (REEEBELHEEN27% -

Project Location Property type Current status
HH WENE NEER BRI
Poly Clouds Hill | Located in Yunyan District and a five- Residential and Delivered with sales
International minute drive from the downtown, which is | commercial of remaining
TR A1 L B R convenient and easily accessible buildings apartments

- REER  BHHROSHEER  £E87 | £ BF INEBREE

uiyang |

e E3S7
Poly Spring Located in the south of Wudang District | Residential and Delivered with sales
Street and is one kilometre from the centre of | commercial of remaining
N E- P VNE] the district buildings apartments

UREEREHN ESERFUMAREE | £ BX INEREE
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"H WwELE MEER BRI
Poly Park 2010 Located in Wudang District and in close | Residential and For sale (partially
R FI 2 E2010 proximity to the district administration commercial delivered
centre and enjoys comprehensive buildings EE(BHRMN)
community facilities in the Fx B%
neighbourhood
URSERBTHPLE  FAEEERET
=
Poly The Place of | Standing against the backdrop of Huaxi Residential and Delivered with sales
A Lake National Wetland Park and in the prime | commercial of remaining
RAZ location in the scenic eco-tour zone of buildings apartments
Huaxi District e A% INERHEE
IR EERERKBERSES DI 5
SRR KERMLDE
Guiyang Poly Phoenix Located in Nanming District built on the | Residential and For sale (partially
&R Bay site previously occupied by Guiyang commercial delivered)
RAHEEE Power Plant, the project is a buildings and EE(BHRMN)
transportation hub linking the downtown | offices
of Guiyang, Xiaohe and Huaxi Districts in | % BELEF
the south -4
fRfERE wEREGEREL =&
BERMHORER N EEORBE
"%
Poly Bright Located at Shuanglong Area of Nanming | Residential and For sale
Moon on Top District, adjacent to Guiyang Forest Park | commercial EE
RAABF WL and surrounded by comprehensive buildings
facilities EE B%
fiRfREEERE BBEG DAL
B HEEER2
Poly Metropolis | Located in the south of Zunyi, the project | Residential and For sale (partially
of Future is close to the centre of transportation commercial delivered)
Zunyi PR A R 7 hub developed by the government and buildings and & (#HH M)
B linked to the old town of Zunyi offices
UREEEE EBRATENERESE | £ BERERT
ERENRBBR g
Poly Crescendo | Located in the north of Nanning, the Residential and Delivered with sales
RMWLEE project is approximately 20-minute drive | commercial of remaining
from the city centre buildings apartments
REETRILE ETRA0SEER | £ HE INERHEE
Nanning Poly Aegean Sea | Located in Xiuxiang Avenue in Nanning Residential and Delivered with sales
Mg RUEEE and adjacent to the Lion Hill Park, the commercial of remaining
project enjoys convenient transportation | buildings apartments
and community facilities FE m% RETBRHEE
UREENERAL EAMURE X
BEMN EKEEZ
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Nanning

BH WwELE MERR B R OR
Poly Hearty Located at Mingxiu Road near the original | Residential and Delivered with sales
RN LR site of Chongzuo CPC Academy, the commercial of remaining
project is a premium residential buildings and apartments
development in Beihu Subdistrict offices RTEREE
IRAFBRSTERELIE =W | £ BERBF
FEEEER g
Poly Dream Located in the heart of the Liusha Residential Delivered with sales
River Peninsula, the project neighbours the buildings of remaining
RAE 1 E state guesthouse Liyuan Resort and Qing | =% apartments
Xiu Mountain Golf Course in the east, RfTEEEE
Liusha Eco Park in the west with a
planned gross floor area of over a
thousand acres, as well as a spectacular
view of river in the south, enjoying a
favourable geographical location
R EER LB REREEHE
WHEABAUSBRRS AERETR
MWD ERLE AELEIR B
EEY
Poly Town Located at the junction of Qinghuan Road | Residential and For sale (partially
RM BRI and Fengling South Road in Qingxiu commercial delivered)
District, in proximity to the three CBDs of | buildings and EE(BHRM)
Dongmeng, Longgang and Wuxiang, offices
facing Qingxiushan Park in the west and | £  HERET
overlooking Yong River in the south 12
UREFEERREREMERER R
B R DRZACBDH L BHEAWL
AR EEEIL
Poly Town Phase | Located in the arm of Yong River in the | Residential and For sale (partially
Il eastern region of Dongmeng Business commercial delivered)
RMEFRIM = | Zone in Qingxiu District, and is adjacent | buildings and TE(BHRNMA)
i to Qing Xiu Mountain, a 5A-level scenic offices
area Fx HERRT
UREFEREBBRERFHETER | £
HHBEFLSARRRRE
Poly Moon Bay | Located in Wuxiang District, close to Residential and For sale
R BT 1L Lianggingxu Station of Metro Line 4, 300 | commercial kS
metres from Yong River buildings
URARE EM0ERGRRETE E | £ 8%
BETI=AX
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BERR

(RN SES

Poly Merization | Neighbouring the old town of Liubei on | Residential and Delivered with sales
World the west and the business district on the | commercial of remaining
RAMATE south, and standing on the Liu River bank | buildings, offices apartments
with a shoreline of more than 200 and hotels XNEREE
metres, the project boasts a prime Fx #% 278
location and natural scenery BB
Liuzhou AEMitZRE ARATEE BIE
T EEBBAN0K L EEH BHES
Poly Mountain Located in Hedong District of the central | Residential and For sale (partially
Villa business district and adjacent to the commercial delivered)
RMEAIA L E Lianhua Mountain Scenic Area in the buildings EE@ARM)
north Tx J%
ik REBEOTRAE L EETL
A&
Poly Lakeside Located in Ninghu Xincheng of Datun Residential and Delivered with sales
Mansion District in Anning City and is one block commercial of remaining
RAERER away from Ninghu Park buildings apartments
URLEAEHRERID  BEHLE | £ BF RNERHE
— B2
Poly Sky and Situated in the prime area of Renmin Residential and Delivered with sales
Earth Road in the downtown area, the project | commercial of remaining
RERE XA is next to the City Stadium Station buildings and apartments
serviced by Metro Line 3 offices RNREHE
RERRARBZOMER BN | £ BERRT
BMEE R -4
Poly One Family | Located in the intersection of Er Huan Bei | Residential and Delivered with sales
One World Road and Puji Road commercial of remaining
RMAK R —REBREEERRER buildings and apartments
Kunming offices INERHE
& ET BERRT
g
Poly City Located in Fangwang Area, Guandu Residential and For sale (partially
R A5 District. Standing at the intersection of commercial delivered)
the airport highway and the East Third buildings EEHHRN)
Ring, well-positioned with convenient Fx BE
transportation. Fangwang Area has
abundant educational resources
REERFERE HREESRRER
ZRRXA - RBREA -RRHAEFERY
=
Poly Moonlight | Located in Guandu District and is close to | Residential and For sale
Mansion Jinmasi Station of Metro Line 3 commercial 'EE
RAMBFFE L fIRERE REHEIFREFFU buildings




Other Regions

As at 31 December 2022, Poly Property Group had
45 projects in other regions, namely Wuhan, Harbin,
Jinan and other cities, of which 26 were completed,
16 were under construction and three were under
GFA was 5,156,000 square
metres, accounting for 27% of Poly Property Group's
total land reserves. Among which, 3,281,000 square
construction while 1,875,000

planning. The total

metres were
square metres

under

RFIBXEEBR QA
—E - _FFR

4, Hipih &

were under planning.

Project

Location

Property type

5/

R-_E-_—_F+_A=+—H8 BEX&£H
FRE BRENEESHGHWEEXZR
B4 EHEMZEIEE - HA26E 2 &
T 16[IBERRIELIREE  3EIEB R
Bl AT RBELEEE3LIBF S
Ko FEBEEAEE187.58F K A&t
T EES15.68F K HEXEELL
Hh (5 1 927 % o

Current status

HH

WEME

NEBR

Poly Plaza Located in Wuchang District, the project | Offices and Delivered for lease
RMES is a comprehensive commercial complex | commercial and for sale
integrating commerce, fashion and buildings INER EE
culture BFE BXE
URRER ARAL HH XtA—#
WEAtEEES
Poly City Located in Hongshan District and is Residential For sale (partially
R complemented by a full range of buildings, offices delivered)
community and educational facilities and commercial EEHHRMN)

finlE AEEERABREKRD

buildings
FE BFERAE
S

Wuhan
2

Poly Blue Ocean
District
RN E B

Located at the prime area of Wuchang
District, the project boasts unparalleled
panoramic lakeside views. Close to
Wuhan Metro Line 2

MIREERLE  —&REH - AR
B25% &%

Residential and
commercial
buildings

FE mE

Delivered with sales
of remaining
apartments

INRBHE

Poly Riverview

Located in Wuchang, the central district

Residential and

Delivered with sales

R 5 of the city and near the Yangtze River commercial of remaining
RFHERS BART buildings apartments
EE BE RNERRHE
Poly Park Located at Hongtu Avenue in Dongxihu Residential and Under planning
LY UPNEER District close to Metro Line 2, the project | commercial FE
is surrounded by numerous ancillary buildings
facilities Fx B%

IR REANREEAS  HESRRER
FAARERE
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BEHRR

LR A TIRT
TENEERE

W BRBNER

Poly Up Town Located in the newly emerging Residential and Delivered with sales
R Baishazhou area, the project neighbours | commercial of remaining
the Metro Line 5 under construction buildings and apartments
RHEOADMA R BBEZMBE | offices INEREE
55 AR EE BER
B¥E
Poly Emerald Located in Airport Economic Zone and Residential and For sale
Mansion close to Jinghelu Station of Metro Line 1 | commercial EE
RMBEBARE fIRGEEEEERMAEE  Bans buildings
22“ 15T % 06 R
- Poly Joyful Located in Airport Economic Zone and is | Residential and Delivered with sales
Mansion close to Sandian Station of Metro Line 1 | commercial of remaining
RAE 2R MIREGRZE B E R AR - 4 buildings apartments
15 R =5 EE BF INERHEE
Poly Bright Located in Wujiashan New Town, Residential and For sale
Lights Dongxihu District and is close to Sandian | commercial EE
RAMAFR Station of Metro Line 1 buildings
IRRERRRKILTERE B0l | £ FF
1R R = E
The Tsinghua Situated in Nangang District, the central | Residential and Delivered with sales
Summer Palace | district and the cultural and education commercial of remaining
of Poly base for higher education, the project buildings apartments
RFBEERE enjoys well-established community Fx mE RNERHEE
amenities
. u%¢wﬁEﬁn[ REBERER:
Harbin EERERHR
REE
Poly Up Town New residential community located Residential and Delivered with sales
R £ alongside Songhua River in Harbin West, | commercial of remaining
designated by the government as a major | buildings apartments
residential area Fx m% RETERHEE
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Poly The Water's
Fragrant Dike
RAKBRE

Located in Songbei District, the project
neighbours major provincial government
offices in Harbin, with improving
municipal facilities in surrounding areas
fRRIEE BERBEETREHRAR -
AETBREELZES &

Residential and
commercial
buildings

FE B

Delivered with sales
of remaining
apartments

INRRHE

Poly City Located in Daoli District at the junction of | Residential and Delivered with sales
R A West Youyi Road and Langjiang Road commercial of remaining
fREERRAAKENIBRRER buildings apartments
FT BE RNERHE
Poly Tin Yor Located on the west of Qunli New Area | Residential and Delivered with sales
Phase Il in Daoli District, a key development area | commercial of remaining
RMA 8 of Harbin buildings apartments
NREERFNNERD RRBEEH | £ BF INEREE
EREY
Harbin Poly Tin Yor Located on the west of Qunli New Area | Residential and Delivered with sales
KEE RAR A in Daoli District, a key development area | commercial of remaining
of Harbin buildings apartments
NRERRMNTERY RRBEENR | AT W% INEREE
FRESE
Poly Time Lane | Located in the old city of Pingfang Residential and Delivered with sales
R A BRI District, enjoys convenient transportation | commercial of remaining
and is well surrounded by educational buildings apartments
and medical facilities EE BE INEREE
URTEERERR XBFERE AEXE
NEBREEES
Guang Xin Located in the Songbei New District and | Residential and For sale
Project is 2 kilometres from Harbin Grand commercial EE
EEEE Theatre, with convention and exhibition buildings
centre under construction situated in the | % B%
southeast
IR AR - RS BB ABIF2RE -
REABERERT L
Poly Landscape | Located in Jiangnan New District, the Residential and For sale (partially
Mudanjiang RANT LR project is adjacent to Mudanjiang and commercial delivered)
H T Convention and Exhibition Center buildings EE(#HHRf)
URAIEHE EAETINMSERL | FE B
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EE
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"H wELE MERR BRI
Poly Hyde Located in Licheng District, a commercial | Residential and Delivered with sales
Mansion centre of the new district in the east of | commercial of remaining
RIEGERE Jinan buildings apartments
RERE REERBHEBERL EE B% INEBHE
Poly Center Situated at West Market renowned as a Residential and Delivered with sales
R R L hundred-year-old commercial market in | commercial of remaining
the west of the city buildings apartments
IR AR A B F R RAM S FERES RNRBHE
Poly Elegant Neighbouring the Honglou business area, | Residential and Delivered with sales
Garden the project is located in Lixia District with | commercial of remaining
RMERE convenient transportation buildings apartments
URETE BOLEmE SBEM EE B% INERHE
Phili House Located at a prime location within a Residential and For sale (partially
EBNE distance of 3.5 kilometres from the New | commercial delivered)
Jinan East Station and surrounded by four | buildings and EE@HB2RHM)
metro lines offices
IREEMREBSAREHBEN FE | £ BERETF
REANGRERAR RUEM -4
Poly Mountain Located at Changging District, with Residential For sale (partially
Villa extensive scientific, education and human | buildings delivered)
R L 7B resources, excellent environment and F=E EE(HH )
convenient transportation
iR kER FRANMBHANEREE
REBR RBER
Poly Sheng Jing | Situated at Changging District and in Residential Delivered with sales
Tai proximity to Metro Line R1 under buildings of remaining
FAERA planning, Changqing Huanghe Bridge and | £ apartments
Huayi Studios RNREHE
R RIB R - 438 M1 AT 7 818 BLER5E
B REBIABURERZER
Zhong Lu Located at the downtown of Zhanggiu Residential Delivered with sales
Mansion District, surrounded by a number of high | buildings of remaining
FET schools with comprehensive ancillary F=E apartments
facilities and convenient transportation INEREE
UREIRIRE BERRERE EE
TE AR
Huai Yin Project | Located in West Railway Station of Residential For sale (partially
HWEEA Huaiyin District and is a key investment buildings and delivered)
promotion project of the government of | offices and EEHHRNMN)
Huaiyin District commercial
URRERARMA R ZEERGEHR | buildings

EER-E 2

Fe BFE BE
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Poly Grand Joy | Located in the western old city centre of | Residential Delivered with sales
RMKXE Huaiyin District, with convenient buildings and of remaining
transportation and comprehensive offices and apartments
facilities commercial RTEREE
IRNRERAEDERZ LR RBEF - | buildings
EERER2 EE BFE BX
Poly Grand Joy | Located in the western old city centre of | Residential For sale
Phase I Huaiyin District, adjacent to the city buildings and EE
RAIXE=H artery and Rail Transit Line 4 under offices and
construction commercial
URRERERLERZLOE  BBHRTE | buildings
BEMNEROH 4R R EE BFE BE
Poly Jade Located in Xianwen Area in High-Tech Residential and For sale
RAEE Zone, a core area of the city centre, commercial EE
Jinan which is close to Ding Jia East Station of b\uildings‘
T Metrg Line 3 \ Fx B%
. IR EHREXRE  BRTRZOERS -
BEBMIBRRT RRU
Poly Park TOD Situated above the parking lot of Residential and For sale
RADE E Jiangjiazhuang Station of Rail Transit Line | commercial EE
2, surrounded by comprehensive facilities | buildings
and abundant scenic resources Fx m%
RETEH2RGERREFES LE
FAEREE: SBEREE
Lixia District Located in Science & Technology City, Residential and Under planning
Project Lixia District, sharing the core business commercial (£
FETRIER circle of the city centre with high-quality | buildings
education, healthcare and cultural and Ex BE
sports facilities resources
fIRETEMESA R AEHHRORL
HE - BEMHE BEAXERE
Poly Champs Located next to the Phoenix Mountain Residential Delivered with sales
Elysees Mansion | Reservoir, the project enjoys a convenient | buildings of remaining
RABFBEREE | transportation network £ apartments
ZREBLKE  ZBEF INERHE
Yantai Poly Blossom Located in the core area of the Southern | Residential Delivered with sales
& & Garden New City, the project is about 500 buildings of remaining
RMRBEE metres from Guanzhuang Station of £ apartments
Yantai section of the planned Qingdao- RNERHEE

Rongcheng Intercity Railway
iR BRI OE  EREARRE KRR
HIRE 8 BB H U #5005k
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easily accessible with convenient
transportation and comprehensive
ancillary facilities

fir 7 48 7 £ 1 B % @%MP/DWE EX
MAORE -XBEE EET

"H WwELE MEER B R
Poly Ocean Luxe | Situated in the core area in High-tech Residential Delivered with sales
RN E =8 District, the project is north to Binhai buildings of remaining
Road and is approximately 300 metres £ apartments
from fche coastline, offering unparalleled SHREYE
sea views
Yantai fineHRROMLE  LEREENR  EY
B o BERBH0K  EEBEEE
Poly Moon Located in the residential areas in Laishan | Residential and For sale
Mansion District and is close to Guangdanghe commercial EE
RIARPEFL Park, with comprehensive facilities buildings
fIRFILBERLEERR  EBEFAL | £ BF
CEEREER
Poly Triumph Situated in the Huancui District, the Residential Delivered with sales
Mansion project is close to the Xianguding Scenic | buildings of remaining
RS B 2 58 Spot and is east to the ocean, offering £ apartments
unparalleled sea views INEREE
URERR HBURERREEBRE R
HiEE EEREEX
Poly Maple Located in the heart of Huancui District, Residential Delivered with sales
Valley the project is surrounded by hills in three | buildings of remaining
RILEAR directions and is easily accessible with % apartments
comprehensive ancillary facilities in the RNREHE
neighbourhood
URRERFHE  ZERIL - RBEFN
FREEREE 2
Caixin Poly Situated in the old town centre of the Residential Delivered with sales
Masterpiece economic and technology development buildings of remaining
Weihai BiERTAE zone which is densely populated with FE apartments
s robust business activities, the project is RERHE

Poly Hanlin Located in the centre of Lingang District, | Residential and For sale (partially
Mansion and adjacent to Weihai No. 4 High commercial delivered)
RM @M School and Weihai Lingang Hospital buildings EEHHRMN)
REERTLRE BOREENTE | £ BX
MEER R
Poly Moon Located in the torch hi-tech industrial Residential and For sale
Fenghua development zone in the traditional commercial EE
RMBHRE downtown buildings
fIRNERRMERRER BRERT | £ BX

i &
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Poly Mansion Located at Linzi District with convenient | Residential Delivered with sales
RMER transportation, comprehensive ancillary buildings of remaining
facilities and abundant nature resources, | % apartments
the project is situated in a densely INEREE
populated area
IR  RBRH EETE - BAE
Zibo REE AXRERE
1 Poly City Located in the core business circle of the | Residential Delivered with sales
R F central business district of Zibo, the buildings of remaining
project is well supported by educational | F% apartments
resources, convenient transportation and RTEEEE
well-developed facilities
R OREROERE  BEEEERE
R XBEN - BEEKH
Zoina Poly Strategically located at the intersection of | Residential For sale (partially
Weifang Mansion Baotong Street and Weixian Road in k{ullfiings deliveied) N
. H A R A S High-iefh District \ FE EE(HBHRMA)
" XSS R RS R ER - B
B
Poly Yuelu Located in the core area of the High- Residential and For sale (partially
Mansion Speed Train New District and adjacent to | commercial delivered)
Tai'an R EE R the Affiliated Experimental School of buildings EE(BHRM)
L Taishan University T B
RBENEROES  EBRLERM
BERSR
Poly Peninsula Located in the resort district of Shenzhou | Residential and For sale
No. 1 Peninsula in Wanning City, Hainan commercial rEE
Wanning RAEB15% Province, the project enjoys beautiful buildings
BE coastal resources Fx mE
REEEEETHMNEEREERE
FHEMBEXNERER
Hong Kong and Overseas 5. BEERRINIME

As at 31 December 2022, Poly Property Group had
five projects in Hong Kong and overseas regions, of
which three were completed and two were under
construction. The total GFA was 145,000 square
metres, accounting for 1% of Poly Property Group's

total land reserves.

R-E-_—_F+-_A=+—H BX5H8
£ BB R IF N R 15 B 51E 55 i 2 F 3% 18
B EHR3EEEERT @ 2[EEE ERHE
TEE -Gt T HFE®EI45BFE K (h
BEEEA T HEENI% o
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drive from Central London
NRAREZARE  NEEEFREH
REEA - STI5HE @ nE L - Ee
HMARLNFNEETR

"H wELE MEER B R
Kai Tak Vibe Located in the Kai Tak Development Area | Residential Delivered with sales
Centro of Kowloon near the Kai Tak Station buildings of remaining
MiEEs along the Shatin — Central MTR line £ apartments
under construction and will take only 10 INEBHE
minutes by MTR to reach the core areas
of Hong Kong Island
N NBEEREHERER  BOEZNM
HphRRELY  RRI0DBERATER
B LE
Villa La Plage Located in the Castle Peak Bay section of | Villas Delivered with sales
HFEE Castle Peak Road, Tuen Mun, the project | BIZ of remaining
is a low-density beachside residential apartments
project encircled by ancillary facilities RNREHE
such as Harrow International School Hong
Kong, Gold Coast and Tuen Mun Hospital
Hong Kong in the neighbourhood
A GRERBELABELES  BELH
EXEETHER BAEERERE F&
BREREMBRERERE
Yau Tong Chill Located in Yau Tong District, Kwun Tong, | Residential and For sale
Residence Kowloon East, about 10-minute walk commercial EE
HERE distance from Yau Tong MTR station buildings
URNERBRERAESR STERE | £ BF
4109 &
Kai Tak Pano Located in the runway of the former Kai | Residential and For sale
Harbour Tak airport, Kowloon, Hong Kong, the commercial FE
MEER project enjoys the fascinating Victoria buildings
Harbor view with great development Fx m%
potential
UREENERRERSGNE ZH—&K
wEER BERREN
Cambium Located in Wandsworth, Southwest Residential Delivered with sales
Project London, which is well-known for its buildings of remaining
i BIEE high-quality school district and € apartments
tranquillity, the project is approximately XNEREE
London 15-minute walk from the nearby subway
(GES station and approximately 30-minute




FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2022, total equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company amounted to
RMB32,930,244,000 (2021: RMB31,500,827,000), while the
net asset value per share was RMB8.62 (2021: RMB8.48).
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s gearing ratio (on the
basis of the amount of total liabilities divided by the
amount of total assets) was 79.4% (2021: 80.3%).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had an outstanding
bank and other borrowings (including the notes payable) of
RMB80,047,656,000. In terms of maturity, the outstanding
bank and other borrowings (including notes payable) can
be divided into RMB18,363,445,000 (23%) to be repaid
within one year, RMB19,111,052,000 (24%) to be repaid
after one year but within two years, RMB33,693,834,000
(42%) to be repaid after two years but within five years,
RMBS8,879,325,000 (11%) to be repaid after five years. In
terms of currency denomination, the outstanding bank and
other borrowings (including the notes payable) can be
divided into RMB71,591,455,000 (90%) in Renminbi,
RMB3,471,000,000 (4%) in United State dollars, and
RMB4,985,201,000 (6%) in Hong Kong dollars.

38.9% of the bank and other borrowings (including the
notes payable) of the Group are subject to fixed interest
rates and the remaining 61.1% are subject to floating
interest rates. Therefore, under circumstances of interest
rates uncertainty or
appropriate, the Group will consider the use of hedging

fluctuations or otherwise as

instruments (including interest rates swaps), in order to
manage interest rate risks.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a net current
assets of RMB81,544,307,000 and total bank balances of
RMB31,617,971,000 (2021: RMB67,347,980,000 and
RMB30,013,282,000, respectively). With the available
banking facilities and cash revenue from business
operations, it is believed that the Group has sufficient
resources to meet the foreseeable working capital

demands and capital expenditure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E AT

The monetary assets and liabilities and business
transactions of the Group are mainly carried and
conducted in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United
States dollars. The Group maintains a prudent strategy in
its foreign exchange risk management, where foreign
exchange risks are minimised via balancing the monetary
assets versus monetary liabilities, and foreign exchange
revenue versus foreign exchange expenditures. The
management believes that the foreign exchange rate
between Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars is
relatively stable. Due to recent fluctuation of Renminbi
exchange rate against Hong Kong dollars, the Group
closely monitors the fluctuation and adopts policy to
minimise exchange rate risks, if necessary.

Pledged Assets
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying value of
the Group’s assets which were pledged to secure credit

facilities granted to the Group are as follows:

AEBEZEREERABREBRIETENS
T ARBEETREMIERET - AEE
EHONERBREE T EAFEEZTEH - EBF
BMEBKEERTE B E A RIMNE WA EIHME R
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CHEAEE
RBERK  CEREATEEERNEER
EMERNFIEEAERTEDT

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARET T

(Restated)

(Fr&51)

Investment properties &Y= 6,519,329 4,854,790
Hotel properties B JE ) 2 1,536,000 389,000
Buildings BT 233,396 126,335
Right-of-use assets EREEE 221,523 222,943
Properties under development BRAME 30,735,407 24,863,272
Properties held for sale BEHEYE 489,665 3,598,417
Bank deposits RITIF R 444,639 265,431
40,179,959 34,320,188




In addition to above pledge of assets, at 31 December
2022 and 2021, the Group’s interests in certain subsidiaries
were pledged to secure credit facilities granted to the
Group. The details of net assets value of subsidiaries are
as follows:

RMNEXxSEEER AT
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RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt AR T T

(Restated)

(&= E3)

Total assets BERE 47,803,727 13,068,660
Total liabilities BE®LH (46,028,476) (11,164,317)
Net assets value BEFE 1,775,251 1,904,343

Contingent Liabilities

The Group arranged mortgage loan facilities with certain
banks for purchasers of property units and provided
guarantees to banks to secure obligations of such
purchasers of repayment. The maximum guarantees given
to banks amounted to RMB23,443,910,000 as at
31 December 2022 (2021: RMB23,230,684,000). Such
guarantees terminate upon the earlier of (i) issue of the
real estate ownership certificate; and (ii) the satisfaction of
the mortgage loans by the buyers of the properties. The
Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of these guarantees as its fair value is considered to be
minimal by the Directors. The Directors also consider that
the fair value of the underlying properties is able to cover
the outstanding mortgage loans generated by the Group in
the event the purchasers default payments to the banks.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had given guarantees
to certain banks in respect of credit facilities granted to
certain associates and joint ventures of the Group
amounting to RMB8,130,800,000 (2021: RMB6,785,084,000),
of which RMB5,586,393,000 (2021: RMB4,502,183,000) had
been utilised by associates and joint ventures.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed about
9,220 employees with remuneration for the year amounted
to approximately RMB1,497 million. The Group provides its
employees with various benefits including year-ended
double-pay, contributory provident fund and medical
insurance. In addition, share options and discretionary
bonuses are also granted based on the Group’s and
individual’'s performance. Employee trainings are also
provided as and when required.
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This corporate governance report (“CG Report”) presents
the corporate governance matters of Poly Property Group
Co., Limited (the “Company”, and together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2022 (“CG Period”). The Company devotes to
the best practice on corporate governance, and to comply
to the extent practicable, with the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
acknowledges that it is tasked with preparing the CG
Report. The Board recognizes the importance of sound
corporate governance practice and is of the view that
maintaining a high level of corporate governance practice
is essential to the development of the Company. The
Board will continue to review its corporate governance
practice
standards, comply with the increasingly complicated

in order to raise its corporate governance
regulatory requirements and meet the rising expectations
from shareholders and related investors. Throughout the
year under review, the Company has complied with the
code provisions as set out in the CG Code contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, other than code
provision F.2.2 of the CG Code. The reasons for deviation

from such provision are explained below:

Code Provision F.2.2 of the CG Code —
Attendance of Chairman of the Board at the

Annual General Meetings

Under code provision F.2.2 of the CG Code, the chairman
of the board should attend annual general meetings. Due
to COVID-19 measures in 2022, Mr. Wan Yugqing, the
chairman (the “Chairman”) of the Company at the relevant
time, was unable to attend the annual general meeting
("AGM") of the Company held on 25 May 2022. Mr. Ip
Chun Chung, Robert was appointed as the chairman of the
meeting and addressed questions raised by shareholders
at the meeting.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.
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The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code"). Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code and the code of conduct regarding directors’
transactions

securities adopted by the Company

throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

Board Independence

The Company recognises that Board independence is key
to good corporate governance. As part of the established
governance framework, the Group has in place effective
mechanisms that underpin a strong independent Board
and that independent views and input from Directors are
conveyed to the Board. The governance framework and
mechanisms are kept under regular review to align with
international best practice, ensuring their effectiveness.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors
("ED(s)"), one non-executive Director (“NED(s)”) and four
independent non-executive Directors (“INED(s)”). The four
INEDs, representing not less than one-third of the Board,
have constituted a proper balance of power maintaining
full and effective control of both the Group and its
management. The Company has received from each of the
INEDs a written confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules and has
considered that all INEDs are independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules. Biographical particulars of the Directors are set out
on pages 94 to 101 of this annual report.
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Chairman and Managing Director

In order to reinforce their respective independence,
accountability and responsibility, the role of the Chairman
is separated from that of the managing director (the
“Managing Director”) of the Company. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board
corporate governance practice and ensuring the
effectiveness of the Board. With the support of the
management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring
that the Directors receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on
issues arising at Board meetings.

in accordance with good

The Managing Director focuses on managing the Company
and its subsidiaries, developing and implementing
objectives, policies and strategies approved and delegated
by the Board. In addition, the Managing Director is in
charge of the Group’s day-to-day management and
operations and is also responsible for developing strategic
plans and formulating the organisational structure, control
systems and internal procedures and processes for the
Board's approval.

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board collectively takes responsibility for all major
matters of the Company, including the approval and
monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies, internal
control and risk management systems, financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters. The day-to-day
management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Managing Director and the
management. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transaction entered into by the
officers.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Company’s consolidated financial statements for each
financial year which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and the Company and the results
and cash flows of the Group for that year. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022, the Board has selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently; made
judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis.
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The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and
necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and
to prevent and detect frauds and other irregularities.

Nomination of Directors

The Board shall be composed of members with mixed skills
and experience with appropriate weights necessary to
accomplish the Group’s business development, strategies,
operation, challenges and opportunities. Each member of
the Board shall possess, be recognised for and be able to
exhibit high and professional standard of a set of core
criteria of competence.

During the CG Period, the Company had adopted a
nomination policy for the nomination procedures and
selection criteria regarding the appointment of directors.

Under the nomination policy, the nomination committee
(“"Nomination Committee”) has been delegated the full
power to the administration of the nomination policy and
the appointment and the termination of directors, where
the full Board remains to have the full and overriding
power and absolute right thereover.

Diversified Composition of the Board

The Board has adopted the board membership diversity
policy since March 2015, which was amended in March
2019.

Vision

The Company understands and believes the diversified
composition of the Board is a crucial element in sustaining
the competitiveness of the Company. It enables the Board
to maintain the appropriate skills and experience required
by the Company’'s business and a diversity of
perspectives.

Policy Statement
In order sustainable and balanced
development, the Company has considered the diversity of
the Board as one of the major elements in achieving its
strategic goals and sustainable development. In reviewing
and evaluating the composition of the Board, a series of
diversity scopes will be considered, including but not
limited to gender, age, and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge,

and industry and regional experience.

to achieve a

cultural

EXERERD—YVEBRABLIRERLAEER
MEE  ARBIEREERFREMEZRER -

REES
EEGANABEBTRKERERZKEMR
o MHEMRERERZ HEARUBY S
BrEBRE K- 28 KBRBE -ES
EEMEEREAFEBHEORLER - P&
BRY BRERSEEEEE.

REXRERREHAM[ ARRAREEEENR
2REFRBEENRA—HERBEK -

REREZBE REZE@(RE2ZE2E
EREREERLBRURZEIRRREST L
EH HK2BREFQNREEZERERES
AR B EREF o

EEEHEZ T
EEEN -_FT-AF-ARERMNEEERE
%ﬁ/ﬂ:ﬂﬂ% ’ jﬁﬁ/\\\:%_ﬂéﬁzﬂf‘%g—f R

B =
ARRIHABY R EEFEKREZTTIEIREFA
RABEFEZN—EERTR UERESFS
AEBNAARREBMBERNES R &Rk
ZHRIENBHEAE -

BEREH

REBABBEROERRE ARAREESE
HENZTAEAXKEERBBEERERARSE
ZERMN AR IR - - ERSAFGBES
SHARE EFERUZEATEERE BEE
TRRER  Fik  XERBEES FEXE
1o EBE B RITEMN RS ER -



Measurable Objectives

The selection of candidates will be based on a series of
diversity scopes, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge, and industry and regional
experience. The final decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates may bring to the
Board.

When the Nomination Committee proposes a resolution
for the election of a candidate for INED at a general
meeting, the Company should disclose how the candidate
will contribute to the diversity of the Board.

The Company should not have a single gender board
composition and the Board should aim to have at least one
female director. As at the date of this annual report, the
Board includes one female director.

Monitoring and Reporting

The summary of this policy, the measurable objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee for the
implementation of this policy (if applicable) and the
progress of the objectives will be disclosed in the CG
Report of the Company annually. The Company will
continue to diversify the gender balance of the Group's
employees (including senior management), review the
effectiveness of the policies adopted and ensure that
recruitment and selection practices at all levels (from the
Board downwards) are well structured so that a wide range
of candidates are considered. The gender balance of
employees (including senior management), progress
towards achieving targets; and factors affecting the
achievement of targets should be disclosed annually in the
Company’'s CG Report. The composition of the Board of
the Company covers different gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge, and industry and regional experience. The
Nomination Committee will review this policy and its
implementation annually to ensure its effectiveness and
relativity. The Nomination Committee will review diversity
of the Company, including gender proportion of the
Board, senior management and employees, as well as the
Company's progress in achieving diversification goals.

We highly value gender equality and hence have already
maintained a balanced gender ratio at the Board and the
senior management level. For all employees, our gender
ratio is maintained at a reasonable level that relates to the
nature of our operations.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of
approximately 9,220 all employees (including senior
management) (2021: approximately 8,862), located in Hong
Kong and Mainland China.

The total number of all employees and their gender ratio
are approximately as follows.

31 DECEMBER 2022
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Male 5,184 56% 3,909 44%
S

Female 4,036 44% 4,953 56%
g

9,220 100% 8,862 100%

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

The appointment of the directorship is subject to, as to
EDs, retirement, rotation and re-election at the AGM in
accordance with the Company's Articles of Association
and, as to NED and INEDs, their specific terms of office or
their retirements by rotation at the AGM in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association, at which they,
being eligible, can offer themselves for re-election.

Separate resolution is proposed for the election of each
Director. One-third of the Directors, or if the number is
not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-
third, must retire from office at each AGM and their re-
election is subject to a vote of the shareholders. Any
Director appointed during the year to fill a casual vacancy
is subject to re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with Article 99 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Chen Yuwen shall retire and, being
eligible, offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM.

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Ye Liwen, Mr. Fung Chi Kin and Miss
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia shall retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with code provision B.2.3 set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, Miss Leung Sau Fan,
Sylvia has been an INED of the Company for over nine
years, her re-election shall be approved by the
shareholders by way of a separate resolution.

ZE -EERBRES

FIZEEZHTESARBARREZERAN
RIRBFEFRSG LWESRLBEEE Mk
HOTESKBYUFATEFUBEARETHR
ARBAAFREASERADURERBFAS L
WESE WREANERAIRE LEEBE-

BREE-REFTHREEBIUNRBZR -BEK
REAFARGLVRE=D2—NEF(XEE
EABAUF=Z2BE MUAERO=02—2
BARE)RE WERALERREZENER
HAEE B MBEERTRMERZREN
EEANEERRBEFRAGLER -

REARAABERZARFGRORE RE
XEEBEREEBERBEFAE LRI KA
BRUBEEEEST-

REARFEEERZMAENGRNRTE - 22
HMEL BEBELERRFSNEARERER
RBFRERE ERECERLMEERE
£

RiZ £ AR AUM SR+ IO prE A T R X B.2.3
R RESZNECEEARRBILIIFATES
BF  HEARETRABLRBRREL A HK
REZBBE -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
REAME

Directors’ Training and Continuous
Professional Development

All Directors, including NED and INEDs, should have good
understanding as to their collective responsibilities as
directors and the businesses and activities of the Group.
Each newly appointed Director would receive an induction
package covering the Group’s businesses and the statutory
and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed
company. The Group also provides briefings and other
training to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge
and skills, and updates all Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance
and to enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. During the CG Period, all existing
Directors have received relevant trainings on topics
relating to corporate governance and regulations and have
provided their training records. The Company is of the
view that all Directors have complied with code provision
C.1.4 of the CG Code based on the above.

The information about training received by Directors
during the year is set out below:

Name of Director
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Xue Ming (retired on 4 March 2022)
ER(R-_F-—F=HIHLRE)

Wang Jian
Ry

Ye Liwen

22 [

NED

FHTES

Chen Yuwen (appointed on 10 March 2023)
REX(R=—FB-=ZF=FA+HZFE)

Guo Jianquan (retired on 10 March 2023)
BED2 (R =—F-—=F=FH+HREF)
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Name of Director

RINEBEXEEBR QA
— —FFR 76

Briefing
ILE: 8-

Reading
MEEH

EEpns

INEDs
BYFHBTES

Ip Chun Chung, Robert
BEiRE

Fung Chi Kin

R ER

Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia
REL

Wong Ka Lun

xR fm

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance
The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liabilities insurance in respect of legal action
arising from the business of the Group against the
Directors and officers.

Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and
operating performance of the Group and to discuss future
strategy. Four physical Board meetings were held in 2022.
At the Board meetings, the Board reviewed significant
matters including the Group’s annual and interim financial
statements, proposals for interim and final dividends,
interim report and annual report, and amendments to the
terms of reference of the remuneration committee
("Remuneration Committee”). At least 14 days’ notice is
given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings and all
Directors are given the opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. The agenda and Board papers
for each meeting are sent to all Directors at least three
days in advance of every regular Board meeting. All
minutes of the Board meetings are kept by the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) and
are available to all Directors for inspection. In addition, the
Chairman had an annual interchange with all the non-
executive Directors (including the INEDs) of the Company
without the other EDs present.
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The attendance record of each Director at the Board

meetings and AGM in 2022 is set out below:

Name of Director

Ex=gs

Wan Yuging

oo E

=FR

Xue Ming (retired on 4 March 2022)
ERR=ZZF=Z=—F=HAWHRE)

Wang Jian
Ry

Ye Liwen

22

Chen Yuwen (appointed on 10 March 2023)
MEN(R=ZF=-Z=F=A+HZA)

Guo Jianquan (retired on 10 March 2023)
NEE2 (R —_F-_=F=H+HREF)

Ip Chun Chung, Robert
IR A

Fung Chi Kin
HER

Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia

Wong Ka Lun

EEN

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration
Committee since 1999 and consisted of four INEDs, being
Mr. Wong Ka Lun (Chairman), Mr. Ip Chun Chung, Robert,
Mr. Fung Chi Kin and Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia during

the year under review.
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The role and function of the Remuneration Committee

include:
o formulating remuneration policy;
° recommendation to the Board on the remuneration

policy for the Directors;

o review of, approval of and recommendation for (if any)
the remuneration package of each Director including
benefits in kind, pension right, performance bonus
payment and compensation payable;

o review and approval of the compensation payment to
any Director upon his/her cessation of directorship in
or employment with the Company;

o engagement of external professional advisers to assist
and/or advise the Remuneration Committee on its
duties when necessary; and

o review and/or approve matters relating to share
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
had been compiled since the establishment of the
Remuneration Committee and were revised in December
2015 , March 2019 and October 2022 and were endorsed
and adopted by the Board. It
Company's website.

is available on the

The summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee for the financial period under review is as
follows:

o endorsement to the remuneration policy for the
Directors; and

o review and approval of the remuneration package of
each Director including benefits in kind, pension
right, bonus payment and compensation payable
taking in to account of their performance.

FMEZEeAERBENT

o HIEFMER

s MNEFEHREFTIHMBRRREHREERE
=

e EMH MERKEBIESTZHHMES (W
B) BREDEN  EARSERN - RIFIE
AR ENREE

s EHNERHWEREFNEEIATFHEEEHT
BRXERARARKRAE N ZEE

s REFERZBIAZXEEMUBHR
AERFHEZEERTHBE Rk

o FHR A LTRAUNETLERIE
RT3 ER -

THMEE e RESEETNEE SR IEE
RETHR_-_Z—AF+=-A =—Z—hNL&F=A
TECF+ABE KREFSEMRALK
W HEH R AR RBIL -

FMEZE XM R ARMAET 2 TES
e

s BREFZHFMMEER K

s EREFRR FHNLMESERZH
MES BREEDEN RAKSEN X
RICAL R EATREE -



POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED
78 ANNUAL REPORT 202

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEARE

DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid to and/or entitled by each of the
Directors for the financial period under review is set out in
note 11 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

In 2022, the Remuneration Committee held one physical
committee meeting. The composition of the Remuneration

Committee and the respective attendance of the

committee members are presented as follows:

EEME

REEFBPRE REEEINR/AEES
FHEZHeERNAFRESTHHRRMEN -

R-FB-_—F HFHWEESRETT —RZER
GHFEZZEECZ -FMER S 2EARUR
ZEEZERBAZHEERNMAT

Name of Members Board Capacity Attendance
ZEHE REZSZ54 HE R
Wong Ka Lun (Chairman) INED 1/1
BEXRMm(EE) BIUERITES
Ip Chun Chung, Robert INED 1/1
ER& BIFERITES
Fung Chi Kin INED 1/1
B R BIUERITES
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia INED 11
RES BIFERITES

AUDIT COMMITTEE BEREES

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit ZAABZEZZES(EZZE )R

Committee”) was established on 19 March 1999 and
currently consists of four INEDs, being Miss Leung Sau
Fan, Sylvia (Chairlady), Mr. Ip Chun Chung, Robert, Mr.
Fung Chi Kin and Mr. Wong Ka Lun.

In 2022, the Company had maintained the Audit
Committee. The major functions of the Audit Committee
include serving as a focal point for communication
between Directors and the external auditor, reviewing the
Company's financial information as well as overseeing the
Company's financial reporting system and internal control

procedures.
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For the financial period under review, the Audit
Committee had performed the following duties:
J reviewed and commented on the audited full year

financial statements and the unaudited interim
financial results of the Group of the financial period
under review before submission to the Board for

adoption and publication;

o proposed and recommended new external auditor for
approval at Board meetings;

o endorsed the policy on the engagement of external
auditor for non-audit services;

° met with the auditor to discuss the financial matters
of the Group that arose during the course of the
the findings,

audit process, and reviewed

recommendations and representations of the auditor;

o reviewed and approved the remuneration and the
terms of engagement of the auditor for both audit
services and non-audit services for the financial
period under review; and

o reviewed the internal audit reports and the Company’s
statement on internal control.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee had been
compiled since the establishment of the Audit Committee
and revised by the Board in January 2009, December 2015
and March 2019. It is available on the Company’s website.

Acknowledgement of Responsibility for the
Financial Statements

The members of the Audit Committee acknowledged their
responsibilities for reviewing the financial statements of the
Group.
financial period under review, the members have:

In reviewing the financial statements for the

o based on a going concern basis;

o selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

o made judgements and estimates that were prudent,
fair and reasonable.
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External Auditor and Their Remuneration
The external audit provides an objective assessment of the
financial information presented by the management. Baker
Tilly Hong Kong Limited was engaged as the external
auditor of the Company. Their independence and audit
process are reviewed and monitored by the Audit
Committee which considered the scope of the audit work,
audit fees, non-audit services as well as their appointment
and retention.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the fees paid or
payable by the Group to the auditor (including
disbursements) in respect of their audit services amounted
to approximately RMB8,700,000. In addition, the Group has
also paid RMB690,000 to the auditor’s and its network firm
in respect of other services provided to certain subsidiaries
in Mainland China. Other non-audit services mainly consist
of advisory and other professional services.

In 2022, the Audit Committee had held two physical
meetings to (i) review and discuss the key audit matters,
audited full year financial statements and the unaudited
interim financial results of the Group of the financial
period under review before submission to the Board for
review and publication, and (ii) review the internal audit
reports and the Company’s statement an internal control.

The composition of the Audit Committee and the
respective attendance of the committee members are
presented as follows:
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Name of Members Board Capacity Attendance

EEHR REEZEEZ25H HE =

Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia (Chairlady) INED 2/2
B (EE) BYFERTES

Ip Chun Chung, Robert INED 2/2

B i BYFATES

Fung Chi Kin INED 2/2

55 B BYFATES

Wong Ka Lun INED 2/2

N BYFATES



The risk management committee of the Company (the
“Risk Management Committee”) was established in
2015. Currently,
Committee consists of two EDs, being Mr. Wang Jian and
Mr. Ye Liwen, one NED, being Mr. Chen Yuwen, and four
INEDs, being Mr. Fung Chi Kin (Chairman), Mr. Ip Chun
Chung, Robert, Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia and Mr. Wong
Ka Lun.

December the Risk Management

In 2022,
Management Committee. The major role and function of

the Company had maintained the Risk
the Risk Management Committee are as follows:

o monitor and review the process of the risk
management and advise to the Board about the

effectiveness of and improvements to be made to the
existing risk management system;

o provide guidelines to the management on risk
management and set up procedures to unveil, assess
and ensure

and manage material risk factors;

management discharges its responsibility to

implement an effective risk management system;

o review and report to the Board the effectiveness of
the risk management system; and

° review with the Group’s management, external auditor
and internal auditor, the adequacy of the Group's
policies and procedures regarding risk management
system and any relevant statement by the Directors
to be report prior to
endorsement by the Board.

included in the annual

The terms of reference of the Risk Management
Committee has been compiled since the establishment of
the Risk Management Committee and has been set out on
the Company’s website.

During the CG Period, the Risk Management Committee
had held two physical meetings for discussing matters in
relation to the risk management of the Group.

ApralzERERZRE € ((RRERERES®])
RIE—RAF+ AR - BATHMBHAITE
ZE(XRAELEMMRERL) —BFATES
(BREXAE) REEBIERTES OFERE
E(ERE) EREELE REFZNDEERERR
A -

RZEBE-_—_F - ARaREEREELZEE -

FREREZEG I 2AERBEAENT
e ERERIEREEMNBRE RHEKE

BRERRGHNERERFTREN A ME
FERHER

. ﬁMEE?HAﬂEET%% T 2
RAEREEERRBRRZNERF &

ﬁ%EEF@ﬂHMAﬁEﬂWHME
/% WL

. RETHEFRERDRERZKOHEXR
MR

o HEAKENEEE - INEZBED A%
AN AN R B B R B IR R AT RR
LiEFRBRANNERREZSHEA
ENEAESRENFHRANEMEBA -

EREEZEe v HESELRAKREEZE S
Wi%ﬁ%%°ﬁaﬁ%$ﬁjﬁﬁ

REXELRRESHE RREEZTESH
MAHEER@ZERGHEZEH  UidmA
SECEAREEEASEE-



LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

In 2022, the Risk Management Committee reviewed macro R-ZT-—F AREEZESHE TREME
risks of the real estate industry and internal risks including EXMEEER R AL S ER R - 85 RAR
operating risks, financial risks and compliance risks and R A& F R M E F G IR T KSR B IE S A E
made recommendations on improvements of risk control to & °

the Board.

In 2022, the composition of the Risk Management R =
Committee and the respective attendance of the &
committee members are presented as follows:

- _HFRAREEZEGZAKNUREZER
BEXBZHEENMT

Name of Members Board Capacity Attendance
ZEHR REZEEZ254% HE =
Fung Chi Kin (Chairman) INED 2/2
HER(LE) BIYFRITES

Wang Jian ED, Managing Director 2/2
FhE BITES EFHAKRE

Ye Liwen ED 2/2
22 BITES

Chen Yuwen (appointed on 10 March 2023) NED 0/0
MEX(R=ZF-—=F=A1+HZF) EMITES

Guo Jianquan (retired on 10 March 2023) NED 2/2
BREER-_F-_=ZF=A1THRE) FERITES

Ip Chun Chung, Robert INED 2/2
EiRE BIYERITES

Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia INED 2/2
RFEL BYFATES

Wong Ka Lun INED 2/2
=R M BYFATES



The Nomination Committee of the Company was
established on 22 December 2021. Currently, the
Nomination Committee consists of two EDs, being Mr.
Wan Yuqing (Chairman) and Mr. Ye Liwen, and four INEDs,
being Mr. Ip Chun Chung, Robert, Mr. Fung Chi Kin, Miss
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia and Mr. Wong Ka Lun.

The major role and function of the Nomination Committee
are as follows:

o review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at
least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company'’s corporate strategy;

o develop and maintain a nomination policy for the
Board, including the nomination procedures and the
process and criteria adopted by the Nomination
Committee to select and recommend candidates to
become a Director of the Company, and to review
regularly and disclose the policy in the Company's
CG report. The Nomination Committee should ensure
that the selection process is transparent and fair, and
that it considers a wide range of candidates who are
outside of the Board’s circle and is in accordance
with the Company’s diversity policy;

o identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Directors, assess the suitability and qualification of
the candidates for directorship (including the
perspectives, skills and experiences that the
individual can bring to the Board and how the
individual can promote the diversity of the Board),
report to the Board on the assessment results, and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

o make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular, the
Chairman and the Managing Director of the
Company; and
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o assess the independence of INEDs.

The Nomination Committee assumes its supervisory duties
by assisting the Board. The Nomination Committee will
oversee nominations of Directors to join the Board to
ensure that all such nominations are made in accordance
with Company policy and are fair and transparent. The
Nomination Committee shall consider a number of factors
in making nominations, including but not limited to the
following:

o The candidate should be able to devote sufficient time
to attend Board meetings and participate in
induction trainings and other Board associated

activities. In particular, if the proposed candidate will

be nominated as an INED and will be holding his/her
seventh (or more) listed company directorship, the

Nomination Committee should consider the reason

given by the candidate for being able to devote

sufficient time to the Board

J the perspectives, skills and experience that the
individual can bring to the Board and how the
individual contributes to diversity of the Board

J Assessing the independence criteria of candidates
nominated for INEDs

If the Nomination Committee determines that an additional
or replacement director is required, the Nomination
Committee may take such measures that it considers
appropriate in connection with its identification and
evaluation of a candidate. The Nomination Committee may
propose to the Board a candidate recommended or
offered for nomination by a shareholder of the Company
as a nominee for election to the Board. On making
recommendation, the Nomination Committee may submit
the candidate’s

consideration. The Board may appoint the candidate(s) as

personal profile to the Board for
Director(s) to fill a casual vacancy(ies) or as an addition to
the Board or recommend such candidate to shareholders
for election or re-election at the general meeting.
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The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee has
been compiled since the establishment of the Nomination
Committee and has been set out on the Company’s
website.

In 2022, the composition of the Nomination Committee
and the respective attendance of the committee members
are presented as follows:
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Name of Members Board Capacity Attendance
ZEMA REEE257 H E =
Wan Yuqing (Chairman) ED, Chairman 11
BFE(FEE) BWITES TR

Ye Liwen ED 11
- 22 [ HITES

Ip Chun Chung, Robert INED 1/1
EiRA BYFATES

Fung Chi Kin INED 1/1
s B BUEMITES

Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia INED 1/1
255 BUFAITES

Wong Ka Lun INED 1/1
=R fm BUFAITES

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Risk management and internal control are essential parts of
corporate governance. The Board acknowledges that it is
its responsibility to ensure that appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems are
established and maintained, and to oversee the systems on
an ongoing basis and to review the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems at least
annually, while the management ensures sufficient and
effective operational controls over the key business
processes are properly implemented with regular reviews

and updates.
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The Board has put in place risk management and internal
control systems which enable the Group to respond
appropriately to significant business, operational, financial,
compliance and other risks. This includes safeguarding
assets from inappropriate use or from loss and fraud, and

ensuring that liabilities are identified and managed.

To ensure that all major risks are properly identified,
evaluated and monitored for achieving a sound and
effective risk management system, the Risk Management
Committee of the Group is required to report the risk
review exercises regularly. It shall report, on a regular
basis, the effectiveness and details of the key risks of the
risk management system which covered all material control
aspects, including, finance, operation, compliance and risk
management. The Board, the Risk Management Committee
and the Audit Committee acknowledge that they have
reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the year and are
satisfied with the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group. The risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group complies with requirements of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") and the Listing Rules.
The Group discloses inside information to the public as
soon as reasonably practicable unless the information falls
within any of the Safe Harbours as provided in the SFO.
Before the information is disclosed to the public, the
Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential.
If the Group believes that the necessary degree of
confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality
may have been breached, the Group would immediately
disclose the information to the public. The Group is
committed to ensure that information contained in
announcements is not false or misleading as to a material
fact, or false or misleading through the omission of a
material fact in view of presenting information in a clear
and balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both
positive and negative facts.
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The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping detailed
minutes of each meeting of the Board and the committees
including any dissenting views expressed by the Directors,
which should be available to all Directors for inspection.
He is also responsible for ensuring that the Board
procedures comply with all applicable laws, rules and
regulations and advising the Board on corporate
governance matters. All agenda, relevant materials and
documents are required to be sent out at least three days
prior to the intended dates of the Board meetings or
committees’ meetings. It is the responsibility of the
Company Secretary to send the draft minutes of the
meetings of the Board or the committees to all Directors
for comments within a reasonable time after the aforesaid
meetings. Final versions of minutes of meetings of the
Board and the committees are also required to be sent to
all Directors for record. All Directors have accessed to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure
that the Board procedures and all applicable laws are
followed. Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible
for keeping all Directors updated on the Listing Rules,
regulatory requirements, as well as internal codes of
conduct of the Company.

During the CG Period, the Company Secretary had
confirmed that he had taken relevant professional training
in accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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The Company adopted a dividend policy in 2019. Pursuant
to the dividend policy, in considering the payment of
dividends, there shall be a balance between maintaining
sufficient capital to grow the Group’s business and
rewarding the shareholders of the Company. The Board
shall also take into account, among other things, when
considering the declaration and payment of dividends:

J the Group’s overall results of operation, financial
position, capital requirement, cash flows and future
prospects;

o the amount of distributable reserves of the Company;
and

J other factors that the Board deems relevant.

Whilst the dividend policy reflects the Board's current
views on the financial and cash flow position of the Group,
such dividend policy will continue to be reviewed from
time to time.

To encourage employees and relevant third parties who
have serious concerns about any aspect of the activities
of the Group to come forward and voice those concerns,
the Company adopted a whistleblowing policy in October
2022. The Audit Committee has delegated the audit &
risk management department to be responsible for the
day-to-day implementation. This policy provides employees
and the relevant third parties who deal with the Group (e.g.
customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors) with guidance
and reporting channels on reporting any suspected
improprieties in any matters related to the Group. The
suspected matters are directly addressed to the designated
head of the audit & risk management department. An
email account (whistleblowing@polyhongkong.com.hk) has
been set up for this purpose. All reported matters will
be investigated independently and, in the meantime, all
information received from the whistleblower and its identity
will be kept confidential. The Audit Committee will regularly
review the whistleblowing policy and mechanism to improve
its effectiveness.

A copy of the whistleblowing policy has been published on
the Company’s website for public information.
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In its business dealings, the Group does not tolerate any
form of bribery, whether direct or indirect, by, or of, its
Directors, officers, employees, agents or consultants or any
persons or companies acting for it or on its behalf. The
anti-fraud and anti-bribery policy, which outlines the
Group’'s zero-tolerance stance against bribery and
corruption, assists employees in recognising circumstance
which may lead to or give the appearance of being
involved in corruption or unethical business conduct, so as
to avoid such conduct which is clearly prohibited, and to
promptly seek guidance where necessary. The discipline
the daily
implementation of this policy. When necessary, report any

inspection office is responsible for
actual or suspected incident of bribery, corruption, theft,
fraud or similar offences to the discipline inspection office

for independent analyses and necessary follow up.

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
shareholders of the Company:

Procedures for Convening a General

Meeting

Shareholder(s) holding not less than 5% of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders have a right to vote at
general meetings and can submit a written requisition to
convene a general meeting in accordance with Section 566
of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of
Hong Kong).
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The written requisition must:

(i) state the general nature of the business to be dealt
with at the meeting;

(i)  contain the signatures of all the requisitionists (which
may be contained in one document or in several
documents in like form); and

(iii) be deposited at the Company’'s registered office
(Room 2503, Admiralty Centre, Tower 1, 18 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong) for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

If Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
general meeting for a day not more than 28 days after the
date on which the notice convening the general meeting is
given, the requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a general meeting, but any
general meeting so convened shall not be held after the

expiration of 3 months from the said date.

The Company considers that effective communication with
the shareholders is essential for enhancing investor
relations and investor understanding of the Group's
business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with the
shareholders and in particular, through AGM and other
general meetings. All INEDs and the chairmen of all Board
committees will make themselves available at the AGM to

meet the shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The shareholders’ communication policy of the Company
sets out the Company's procedures in providing the
shareholders with prompt and equal access to information
about the Company, in order to enable the shareholders
to assess the Company’'s overall performance, exercise
their rights in an informed manner and engage actively
with the Company.
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The 2021 AGM was held on 25 May 2022. INEDs and the
chairmen of all Board committees or other members of the
respective committees and the Company’s independent
auditor attended the AGM to answer the shareholders’
questions.

At the AGM and other
substantially separate issue has been/will be considered by
a separate resolution, including the election of individual
Director, and the poll procedures have been/will be clearly

general meetings, each

explained.

To promote effective communication, the Company
maintains its website at http://www.polyhongkong.com,
where up-to-date information and updates on the
Company's financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are posted.

The Company continues to enhance communication and
relationships with its investors. The designated persons of
the Company are responsible for responding to the
enquiries from the shareholders/investing public or the
media from time to time.

The Board has
effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy.

reviewed the implementation and
Having considered the multiple channels of communication
and engagement in place, it is satisfied that the
shareholder’s communication policy has been implemented
during the year and is effective.

Shareholders’ Enquiries
Shareholders may at any time send their enquires to the
Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary
through the following methods:

(i)  in writing to the Company’s registered office at Room
2503, Admiralty Centre, Tower |, 18 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong; or

(i) Afill in the enquiry form set out in the “Contact Us”
section of the Company’s website.
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Proposing Directors for Election at General
Meetings

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for
election as a director are laid down in Article 120 of the
Company's Articles of Association:

No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for
election as a Director at any general meeting, unless there
shall have been lodged at the registered office of the
Company a notice signed by a shareholder (other than the
person to be proposed) entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his/her intention
to propose such person for election and also a notice
signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to
be elected. The period for lodgement of such notices shall
be no less than seven days and shall commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and no later
than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

Accordingly, if a shareholder wishes to nominate a person
to stand for election as a director of the Company at the
general meeting, the following documents must be validly
served on the Company Secretary at the registered office
of the Company:

(i) his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution at
the general meeting; and

(i)  a notice executed by the nominated candidate of the
candidate’s willingness to be appointed together
with:

(a) that candidate’s information as required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules and such other information; and

(b) the candidate’s written consent to the

publication of his/her personal data.
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It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure sufficient and
appropriate communication with shareholders based on
transparent and effective corporate governance principles.
Shareholders’ communication policy and other corporate
governance principles of the Company could be reviewed
at Company’s website.

Information shall be communicated to shareholders mainly
through: the Company’s financial reports (interim and
annual reports), AGMs and other general meetings that
may be convened, as well as by making available all its
corporate communications submitted to The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on the website of the Company and the website of the
Stock Exchange. Information published on the website of
the Company shall be updated regularly.

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2022. A
resolution to amend the Company’s Articles of Association
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the amendments
of Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong, and the proposed
of the
shareholders of the Company by way of a special

amendments are subject to the approval
resolution at the forthcoming AGM. Details will be set out
in the circular to be dispatched to shareholders together
with this annual report.

The Articles of Association are available through Stock
Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk and the
Company's website at www.polyhongkong.com.

EXZCRERRREVRENDEERRAE
BRRETRD MEERE - NATZ KRB
BREEMEEERRANATRARBBIEER

ARAABRREBEEANTEZRER AR T
WP BRE(FFRFERS) BRRBEFAE
LAgEARNEMBRRAS® EHMEZXT
EEBMARZMARAR (BAT])HQRE
S T B AN 1 ) Ak K B X BT Ak o AR
REMU ETENER G ERESR -

BE_T-__F+_-_A=1t—BLEFE AR
ABREXHLEEMES - RIELTHRUEE
BIEDIF622E MER] - AR AR EBRE
FASLREEAANAABRZIZMARH
E BFEITAFARABRRNEREBRRES
RE EEBRRARRDRBRRT A ER T A E
BE-ABHER - DEAFHE -RIRELER

48 45 25 12 40 R # pA Bk A2 AT AR Swww. hkexnews.hk
782X B 48 Siwww.polyhongkong.com ©


www.hkexnews.hk
www.polyhongkong.com

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, COMPANY SECRETARY AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
55 ArANERSREEARGN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

WAN Yugqing, aged 47, holds a MBA from Wudaokou School
of Finance, Tsinghua University. Mr. Wan Joined China Poly
Group Corporation Limited (“China Poly Group”) in July 1997.
He has been engaged in real estate industry for more than 20
years and has successively served as deputy general manager,
executive deputy general manager and chairman of the
subsidiaries of Poly Southern Group Company Limited and the
Company. Mr. Wan was appointed as the deputy general
manager of the Company in July 2016. Mr. Wan was
appointed as the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company in October 2021 and was appointed as the chairman
of the Company’s nomination committee on 22 December
2021. Mr. Wan is also the secretary of the Party Committee of
Poly Property Group Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Poly Property”) and
the chairman of Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Company Limited
(“Poly Hong Kong").

WANG Jian, aged 50, holds a master’s degree in Architecture
from South China University of Technology and is a senior
engineer. Mr. Wang joined China Poly Group in August 2006.
Mr. Wang has been appointed as the managing director of the
Company and the managing director of Shanghai Poly
Property since December 2018. As the managing director of
the Group, Mr. Wang is primarily responsible for the operation
and management of the Group. Mr. Wang is also a director of
Poly Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wang was
the deputy general manager of Poly Developments and
Holdings Group Co., Ltd. (“PDHGCL"), the substantial
shareholder of the Company, for over 10 years. Mr. Wang is a
member of the risk management committee of the Company.
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YE Liwen, aged 52, holds a bachelor’'s degree of Economics
from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics and a
master’s degree in Business Administration from Peking
University. Mr. Ye joined China Poly Group in June 1994.
Mr. Ye was a senior manager of China Poly Group for the
period from 1994 to 2001 and joined the Company in June
2001 as the manager of investment department. Mr. Ye was
appointed as the deputy general manager of the Company in
July 2003. He has been appointed as an executive director of
the Company since November 2006, and currently also serves
as a deputy general manager of Poly Hong Kong, and a
deputy general manager of Shanghai Poly Property, and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Ye was
appointed as a member of the Company’'s nomination
committee on 22 December 2021 and is currently also a
member of the risk management committee of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

CHEN Yuwen, aged 58, holds a bachelor's degree in
economics majoring in agricultural finance from the
Agricultural Economics Department of Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics. Mr. Chen has been engaged in
accounting for more than 23 years and has extensive working
experience in financial control and accounting. Mr. Chen
served as the chief accountant of Shanghai Poly Technology
Company from 2000 to 2002, the general manager of the
finance department of Poly Technology Company Limited
("Poly Technology”) from 2002 to 2009, the assistant to chief
accountant of Poly Technology from 2005 to 2009, and a
supervisor of several subsidiaries of China Poly Group from
2009 to 2020. He was the deputy supervisor of the audit and
supervision department of China Poly Group from 2012 to
2013, and served as the supervisor of the audit and
supervision department of China Poly Group from 2013 to
2016. Mr. Chen is currently also a full-time external director of
China Poly Group's subsidiaries, namely, PDHGCL, Shanghai
Poly Property, China National Arts and Crafts Group
Corporation Limited and Poly Investment Holdings Company
Limited.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

IP Chun Chung, Robert, aged 66, joined the Company in
January 2001 as an independent non-executive director and a
member of audit committee and was re-designated to a
non-executive director in July 2004. He has been a member of
risk management committee since December 2015. Mr. Ip has
been re-designated to an independent non-executive director
and a member of remuneration committee since February
2019 and Mr. Ip was appointed as a member of nomination
committee on 22 December 2021. Mr. Ip has been a
practising solicitor in Hong Kong since 1985 and is a
consultant of Messrs. Cheng, Yeung & Co. Mr. Ip has over 36
years of experience in legal aspects and more than 20 years of
experience in listing related and corporate takeover, mergers
and acquisition areas. He was an independent non-executive
director of Changhong Jiahua Holdings Limited (Stock code:
08016), a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

FUNG Chi Kin, aged 73, has joined the Company since May
2021 as an independent non-executive director. Mr. Fung was
appointed as a member of the nomination committee on
22 December 2021 and is currently the chairman of the risk
management committee and a member of each of the audit
committee and the remuneration committee. Mr. Fung is the
honorary permanent president of the Chinese Gold & Silver
Exchange Society and a director of Fung Chi Kin Consulting
Limited. Mr. Fung has over 34 years of experience in banking
and finance. Prior to his retirement, he was the director and
deputy general manager of Po Sang Bank Limited (merged
into Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited in 2001), managing
director of BOCI Securities Limited and chief administration
officer of BOC International Holdings Limited. From October
1998 to June 2000, Mr. Fung served as a council member of
the first Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. He also held offices in various public
organisations and was the president of the Chinese Gold &
Silver Exchange Society, vice chairman of the Stock Exchange,
director of the Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, director
of Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited and Hong
Kong Affairs Advisor.
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Mr. Fung has been appointed as an executive director of
LOCO Hong Kong Holdings Limited (“LOCO HK Holdings”,
stock code: 8162, the shares of which are listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange) since June 2019 and has also been
appointed as the compliance officer of LOCO HK Holdings in
August 2019. Mr. Fung has been appointed as a
non-executive director of Sang Hing Holdings (International)
Limited (stock code: 1472, the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from March 2020) since
July 2018. Mr. Fung has been an independent non-executive
director of Chaoda Modern Agriculture (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 682, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange) since September 2003.

Mr. Fung also served as an independent non-executive
director of Geotech Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 1707, the
shares of which are listed on Main Board of the Stock
Exchange) from September 2017 to July 2020.
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LEUNG Sau Fan, Sylvia, aged 59, is an independent
non-executive director of the Company. Miss Leung has joined
the Company since August 2010 as an independent
non-executive director, and is currently the chairlady of the
audit committee and a member of each of the remuneration
committee, the nomination committee and the risk
management committee. Miss Leung holds a bachelor’s
degree in Accountancy from City University of Hong Kong and
had studied as an external student and passed the accredited
examinations and obtained a bachelor of laws degree from the
University of London. During the period from 1 January 2022
to 29 November 2022 and since 2 March 2023, Miss Leung is
a responsible officer of an entity licensed to conduct type 6
(advising on corporate finance) regulated activity under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance. She was an independent
non-executive director of China Aerospace International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 00031), the shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange until she retired from that office
upon the conclusion of their annual general meeting held on
24 June 2022. She has over 20 years of experience in
company secretarial and corporate finance advisory.

WONG Ka Lun, aged 73, has joined the Company since
November 2012 as an independent non-executive director.
Mr. Wong was appointed as a member of the Company's
nomination committee on 22 December 2021 and currently is
the chairman of the remuneration committee, a member of
each of the audit committee and the risk management
committee. Mr. Wong holds a bachelor's degree in Social
Sciences from The University of Hong Kong majoring in
Economics and Psychology. Mr. Wong had held various
executive and management positions with Cathy Pacific
Airways Limited, John Swire & Sons (China) Limited and Swire
Travel Limited. Mr. Wong is also a director of The Hong Kong
International Film Festival Society Limited. Mr. Wong retired as
a council member of The Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra on 24
October 2022.
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE

WONG Cheuk Him, aged 57, joined the Group in 2007 and is
currently the deputy financial controller and the company
secretary of the Company. He holds a bachelor's degree of
Social Sciences awarded by The University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Wong is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, and is a member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wong
has extensive working experience in the areas of accounting,
auditing, financial control, compliance and corporate finance.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Wong had over ten years of
working experience in international certified public
accountants firms and had previously held the positions of
financial controller, company secretary and authorised
representative in other listed companies, the shares of which

are listed on the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LIU Chen, aged 45, holds a bachelor’s degree in Accountancy
from Nankai University and holds a master's degree in
Business Administration from Sun Yat-Sen University and is a
senior economist and an accountant. He joined China Poly
Group in July 2004. Mr. Liu was the assistant general manager
of PDHGCL and the director of certain subsidiaries of
PDHGCL during the period from January 2014 to November
2019. Mr. Liu was appointed as the deputy general manager
of the Company and the deputy general manager of Shanghai
Poly Property in November 2019. He is currently the chief
accountant and chief legal counsel of Poly Hong Kong, the
deputy general manager, chief legal counsel and financial
controller of the Company, the deputy general manager and
chief accountant of Shanghai Poly Property and a chief
compliance officer of the Group.
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PENG Yi, aged 40, holds a master's degree in Business
Management from Sun Yat-sen University, and is an
economist. Mr. Peng joined China Poly Group in July 2006
and joined the Company in October 2007, and served as the
chief officer of the investment management department from
September 2010 to August 2015. From September 2015 to
November 2021, he served as the managing director of
Guangdong Poly Property Co., Limited. Since November 2021,
he has been the chairman of Guangdong Poly Property Co.,
Limited and the chairman of Poly Guizhou Property Group Co.,
Limited. Mr. Peng was appointed as the deputy general
manager of the Company and the deputy general manager of
Shanghai Poly Property in November 2021, and is currently a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

LIU Yu, aged 41, holds a master's degree in Business
Administration from Wuhan Institute of Technology. Mr. Liu
joined China Poly Group in August 2000. From April 2013 to
August 2019, he served as the deputy managing director of
Poly Shandong Property Group Co., Ltd. and the managing
director of Poly Property Group Heilongjiang Co., Ltd. and has
been appointed as the chairman of Poly Property Group
(Shanghai) Investment Co. Ltd., Poly Yunnan Property Co., Ltd.,
Hubei Poly Investment Co., Ltd. and Guangxi Poly Property
Co., Ltd. since July 2019. Mr. Liu was appointed as the deputy
general manager of the Company and the deputy general
manager of Shanghai Poly Property in November 2021, and is
currently a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
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ZU Dayong, aged 47, holds a bachelor’'s degree in
Accounting from Beijing Wuzi University and a master’s
degree in Business Administration from the School of
Economics and Management of Tsinghua University. Mr. Zu
joined China Poly Group in July 1999. From December 2009
to January 2020, he served as deputy general manager of
Shenzhen Poly Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., managing
director and chairman of Hubei Poly Investment Co., Ltd. From
January 2020 to November 2021, he served as the chairman
and general manager of Shenzhen Poly Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. Since November 2021, he has been the
chairman of Shenzhen Poly Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.,
the chairman of Shanghai Poly Property Hotel Management
Group Co., Ltd., the chairman of Hainan Poly Property Co.,
Ltd., and the chairman of the hotel and business operation
management platform company of Poly Property Group.
Mr. Zu was appointed as the deputy general manager of the
Company and the deputy general manager of Shanghai Poly
Property in November 2021, and is currently a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group.

PUN Chi Ping, aged 56, holds a master's degree in Finance
Management from the City University of Hong Kong. He is a
Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Pun joined Poly Hong Kong in May 1994 and

member of Hong Kong

joined the Group in April 2000. He was appointed as an
assistant to the general manager of the Group in October
2009 and is currently the managing director of Poly Property
(Hong Kong) Co., Limited and a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group.

Note: Certain companies are Chinese entities incorporated in China and

their names have been translated into English for reference only.

The list of directors of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company during the financial year is available on the
Company's website at www.polyhongkong.com under the
“Corporate Governance” section.
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The board of directors (the “Directors”) presents its annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of
Poly Property Group Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 49
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on page 139 of this annual report.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2021: nil).
The Directors recommend payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.048 per share for the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: HK$0.135).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
FOR ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
(IIAGMII)

In order to determine the entitlement of shareholders to
attend and vote at the AGM of the Company which is
scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 30 May 2023, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 24 May 2023 to Tuesday, 30 May 2023, both
days inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will be
registered. All properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged for registration with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on

Hopewell

Tuesday, 23 May 2023. Shareholders whose names are

recorded in the register of members of the Company on
Tuesday, 30 May 2023 are entitled to attend and vote at
the AGM.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
FOR PAYMENT OF FINAL DIVIDEND

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 13 June 2023 to Thursday, 15 June 2023
(both dates
transfer will be registered.
identity of the shareholders who are entitled to the

inclusive), during which period no share

In order to establish the

proposed final dividend, all duly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged for registration with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Rooms 1712-16, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 12 June 2023. Shareholders whose names
recorded in the register of members of the Company on
Thursday, 15 June 2023 are entitled to receive the final

dividend in cash for the year ended 31 December 2022.

DONATIONS

During the year,
donations of approximately RMB7,004,000
RMB18,723,000).

the Group made charitable and other
(2021:

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital
in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

of the Company are set out

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2022, the investment properties of the

Group were revalued by an independent firm of
professional surveyor and property valuer on an open

market value basis at RMB9,666,939,000.

Details of these investment properties of the Group and
other movements during the year are set out in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 17
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserve available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2022 represented the
accumulated profits of RMB1,649,996,000 (2021:

RMB971,854,000).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the
Group for the preceding five financial years is set out on
page 367 of this annual report.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The business overview for the year ended 31 December
2022 of the Group in the
Statement” on page 6 and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on page 24 of this annual report.

is set out “Chairman’s

POTENTIAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES OF THE GROUP

The financial position, operating results, business and
prospects of the Group may be affected by various risks
and uncertainties. Major risks and uncertainties identified
by the Group are set out below. However, there may be
other material risks or uncertainties which are not known
to the Group or which may not be material now but could
turn out to be material in the future.
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BUSINESS RISK

A majority of the operational assets of the Group are
located in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), and
the Group expects that a substantial portion of its
turnover will continue to be generated from the operations
in the PRC. Operating results and prospects are subject, to
a significant extent, legal
development in the PRC. The PRC economy differs from

the economies of most developed countries in many

to economic, political and

respects including the level of government involvement,
the level of development, growth rate and government
control of foreign exchange. The Group is unable to
predict whether changes of the political, economic and
social conditions, and laws, regulations and policies of the
PRC will have any material adverse effect on the current or
future business, operating results or financial position of

the Group.

FINANCIAL RISK

The financial risk management of the Group is set out in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Wan Yuging (Chairman)

Xue Ming (retired on 4 March 2022)
Wang Jian (Managing Director)

Ye Liwen

Non-executive Director:
Chen Yuwen (appointed on 10 March 2023)
Guo Jianquan (retired on 10 March 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Ip Chun Chung, Robert

Fung Chi Kin

Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia

Wong Ka Lun

In accordance with Article 99 of the Company’s Articles of
Chen Yuwen shall retire and, being
eligible, offer himself for re-election at the AGM.

Association, Mr.

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Ye Liwen, Mr. Fung Chi Kin and Miss
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia shall retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

According to code provision B.2.3 of the Corporate
Governance Code in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”), as Miss Leung Sau Fan,

Sylvia has served as an
Director for more than 9 years, her reappointment should
be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by
shareholders.

independent non-executive
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The term of office of Mr. Chen Yuwen, the non-executive
Director, is three years from 10 March 2023, subject to
retirement by rotation as required by the Company's
Articles of Association.

The term of office of Mr. Ip Chun Chung, Robert, the
independent non-executive Director, is three years from 1
February 2022,
required by the Company’s Articles of Association.

subject to retirement by rotation as

The term of office of Mr. Fung Chi Kin, the independent
non-executive Director, is three years from 28 May 2021,
subject to retirement by rotation as required by the
Company's Articles of Association.

The term of office of Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia, the
independent non-executive Director, is three years from 11
August 2022, subject to retirement by rotation as required
by the Company’s Articles of Association.

The term of office of Mr. Wong Ka Lun, the independent
non-executive Director, is three years from 23 November
2021, subject to retirement by rotation as required by the
Company's Articles of Association.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive Directors
concerning their independence and considered that the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
the Listing Rules.

A list of all the directors who served in the board of
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries during the year
under review is available on the Company’s website at
www.polyhongkong.com.
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Changes to Information in respect of

Directors

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules,
pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2),
the changes in Directors’ information for the year ended
31 December 2022 and as at the date of this report are
set out below:

1.  Mr. Wong Ka Lun retired as a council member of The
Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra on 24 October 2022.

2. During the period from 1 January 2022 to 29
November 2022 and since 2 March 2023, Miss Leung
Sau Fan, Sylvia is a responsible officer of an entity
licensed to conduct type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) regulated activity under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO").

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and their associates in the shares of the
Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
were as follows:

Long position

Ordinary shares of the Company
Mr. Wan Yuging is holding 301,604 options to subscribe
301,604 (0.01%) shares of the Company.

Mr. Wang Jian is holding 408,053 options to subscribe
408,053 (0.01%) shares of the Company.

Mr. Ye Liwen is holding 301,604 options to subscribe
301,604 (0.01%) shares of the Company.

Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia is holding 33,000 (0.001%)
shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as at 31 December
2022.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

In order to provide incentives or rewards to the directors
and certain employees of the Company and certain eligible
persons (the "“Eligible Participants”) to contribute to the
long term success of the business of the Group, the board
of directors of the Company considers that it is in the best
interest of the Company to adopt a share option scheme.

At the AGM of the Company held on 28 May 2014, the
shareholders of the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”), pursuant to which
the Eligible Participants may be granted a maximum of
364,463,704 options to subscribe for shares of the
Company upon and subject to the terms and conditions of
the rules of the Share Option Scheme. The Share Option
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing on the adoption date of 28 May 2014
and expiring on 27 May 2024.

According to the Share Option Scheme, the board of
directors of the Company may grant options to (i) any
director and employee of the Company or subsidiaries, or
an entity in which the Group holds an interest (“Affiliate”);
(i) any customer, supplier, agent, partner, consultant,
adviser or shareholder of or contractor to the Group or an
Affiliate; (iii) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of
which or any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of
which include any director, employee, customer, supplier,
agent, partner, consultant, adviser or shareholder of or
contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; or (iv) a company
beneficially owned by any director, employee, consultant,
customer, supplier, agent, partner, shareholder, adviser of
or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate to subscribe for
shares in the Company for a consideration of HK$1 for
each lot of share options granted.

Share option granted should be accepted within 28 days
from the date of grant. The board of directors may at its
absolute discretion determine the period during which a
share option may be exercised; such period should expire
no later than 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant option. The board of directors may also provide
restrictions on the exercise of a share option during the
period a share option may be exercised.
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The exercise price is determined by the board of directors
of the Company, and shall not be less than the highest of:
(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date
of grant; (i) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not, in
aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of shares in
issue.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each individual under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company (including both exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue
of the Company.

The fair value of share options granted to Eligible
Participants is recognised as staff costs with a
corresponding increase in share option reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using the
Binomial model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the Eligible Participants have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
years is charged/credited to the statement of profit or loss
for the year under review, unless the original staff costs
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
share option reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is included in the amount recognised in share
capital for the shares issued) or the option expires (when it
is released directly to accumulated profits). During the
financial year under review, no share options has been
granted under the Share Option Scheme.
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As at 31 December 2022, 27,293,364 (2021: 87,211,058) W-T-—F+-F=+—H REBRE:
share options were outstanding under the Share Option &/ 27,293,364 Bl KT FE(ZF = —
Scheme. The total number of options available for grant is 4 : 87,211,0583) * AJ & H KB E A A
254,713,704 (2021: 254,713,704), representing 254,713,70415 (== = — 4 : 254,713,7041% ) -
approximately 6.67% (2021: 6.86%) of the issued shares of {h 7" A Al E B 1T 0 896.67% (= F = —F :
the Company. Details of such interests and movements of  6.86% ) ° & A& A A AR #& 18 B #E 51 213% 1 9 2
share options granted by the Company under the Share EEZNMBRESHFHBLOT :

Option Scheme are shown below:

Number of share options

BRERA
Adjustment
Balance as at due to scrip Cancelled Exercised  Balance as at
Name or category of Date of  Exercise price? 1 January Granted during shares during the Lapsed during during the 31 December
grantees grant (HKS)  Vesting period Exercise period 2022 the year allotted? year® the year year' 2022
-%-C RERS g g
TRE -A-H RERRT t-B=t-A
RRARAAEA RHAH (Bn) BEA TS LESiX:d FRRkE  FHHORE FREH FRER ERTHE LESiXd
Directors:
£z
Mr. Wan Yuging* 10/1/2019 2415 10/1/2019-31/12/2020  10/1/2021-9/1/2023 284,483 - 8,250 (292,733) - - -
ERARL 10/1/2019-31/12/2021  10/1/2022-9/1/2024 284,483 - 8,250 (292,733) - - -
10/1/2019-31/12/2022  10/1/2023-9/1/2025 293,104 - 8,500 - - - 301,604
Mr. Wang Jian* 10/1/2019 2415 10/1/2019-31/12/2020  10/1/2021-9/1/2023 384,889 - 11,161 (396,050) - - -
ThEE 10/1/2019-31/12/2021  10/1/2022-9/1/2024 384,889 - 11,161 (396,050) - - -
10/1/2019-31/12/2022  10/1/2023-9/1/2025 396,552 - 11,501 - - - 408,053
Mr. Ye Liwen 10/1/2019 2415 10/1/2019-31/12/2020  10/1/2021-9/1/2023 284,483 - 8,250 (292,733) - - -
HRELE 10/1/2019-31/12/2021  10/1/2022-9/1/2024 284,483 - 8,250 (292,733) - - -
10/1/2019-31/12/2022  10/1/2023-9/1/2025 293,104 - 8,500 - - - 301,604
Sub-total 2,890,470 - 83,823 (1,963,032) - - 1,011,261
it
Employees:
ER:
In aggregate 10/1/2019 2415 10/1/2019-31/12/2020  10/1/2021-9/1/2023 27,825,794 - 739,298 (28,565,092) - - -
A 10/1/2019-31/12/2021  10/1/2022-9/1/2024 27,825,794 - 739,298 (28,565,092) - - -
10/1/2019-31/12/2022  10/1/2023-9/1/2025 28,669,000 - 761,701 (3,148,598) - - 26,282,103
Sub-total 84,320,588 - 2,240,297 (60,278,782) - - 26,282,103
gt
Total 87,211,058 - 2,324,120 (62,241,814) - - 27,293,364
CF:S
Notes: Bt
1. During the year ended 31 December 2022, no share option granted 1. HE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—HIFE LEEMAKR
was exercised or vested, and accordingly, no weighted average HEBRETESRE  FtEAREEEERET
closing price of the share immediately before the date on which the kBB A RO MEFIIRTE -

share option exercised or vested has to be disclosed.
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2. As a result of the issue and allotment of scrip dividend shares

disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report, the exercise price of the share options granted was
adjusted from HK$2.485 to HK$2.415 and the number of share
options granted were adjusted as the above table.

3 The options granted under the Share Option Scheme were cancelled
due to non-realization of certain performance conditions and
resignation or retirement of employees.

4. Mr. Wang Jian were appointed as a Director of the Company on 1
February 2019, and Mr. Wan Yuging was appointed as a Director of
the Company on 26 October 2021, and accordingly, they were
classified as employees when the relevant share options were
granted on 10 January 2019.

The number of exercisable
31 December 2022 was nil.

share options as at

The closing price of the shares of the Company
immediately before the date of grant as quoted on the
Stock Exchange was HK$2.49 per share.

Other details of the Company’s Share Option Scheme are
set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the option holdings set out above, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

As at 31 December 2022, the register of substantial B ENFIHBEEEETES ZERDIN R_Z
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Z—Z—HF+ZHA=+—H REAQAABREZSFRK
Section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than the  EIEIX(IZE3I36EMIFE 2 EZMRERAMATE -
interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors, TFIBRREMEARBENARAEETRD
the following shareholders had notified the Company of Z & Bz :

relevant interests in the issued shares of the Company:

Ordinary shares of the Company XAREBER

Number of shares
ROHE
Approximate
percentage
Held by of the issued

Beneficial controlled Total number  share capital of

Name of shareholder owner corporation(s) of shares the Company
RN

HEEH BRTREZ

ARKE BABD L

Long position

HE

China Poly Group Corporation Limited 253,788,246 1,583,738,058 1,837,526,304 48.09%

HEFRFEEERA A (Note 1)(f1i£1)

Poly Developments and Holdings Group Co., Ltd. — 1,583,738,058 1,583,738,058 41.45%

RAMNBEREREBERHERA A (Note 2) (ff1i£2)

Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited 120,381,544 1,463,356,514 1,583,738,058 41.45%

RAM(BEB)ERERA A (Note 3) (K7:%3)

Ting Shing Holdings Limited — 1,463,356,514 1,463,356,514 38.30%
(Note 4) (Wi it4)

Congratulations Company Ltd. 1,111,578,283 — 1,111,578,283 29.09%

Source Holdings Limited 244,594,241 107,183,990 351,778,231 9.21%

(Note 5) (fft:#5)
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Notes:

1. China Poly Group Corporation Limited directly beneficial holds
253,788,246 shares of the Company and owns 50% issued share
capital of Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited, and is accordingly
deemed by the SFO to be interested in the shares directly and
indirectly owned by Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited.

2. Poly Developments and Holdings Group Co., Ltd. owns 50% of the
issued share capital of Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited and is
accordingly deemed by the SFO to be interested in the shares
directly and indirectly owned by Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited.

3. Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited is deemed by the SFO to be
interested in 1,583,738,058 shares of the Company as a result of its
direct holding of 120,381,544 shares and indirect holding of
1,463,356,514 shares through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Ting Shing
Holdings Limited.

4. Ting Shing Holdings Limited is deemed by the SFO to be interested
in 1,463,356,514 shares of the Company as a result of its indirect
holding of 1,463,356,514 shares through its subsidiaries, Source
Holdings Limited and Congratulations Company Ltd., of 351,778,231
shares and 1,111,578,283 shares, respectively.

5. Source Holdings Limited is deemed by the SFO to be interested in
351,778,231 shares of the Company as a result of its direct holding
of 244,594,241 shares and indirect holding of 107,183,990 shares
through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Musical Insight Holdings
Limited and Wincall Holding Limited, of 47,825,571 shares and
59,358,419 shares, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in
the issued shares or underlying shares of the Company as
at 31 December 2022.

Bt

FERNIESEERAGNEEE = %ﬁZK"E
253,788,246kt R EB RF (B E)ERAER A
50% B EITHRA - At BEZHFRBER ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁi%
BERA (BB ERERARMAEE KEEREE 2K
2 e o

RAERZEREBERDBERABDEERA (FE) 24
BRATFS0%E FETRA - Bt - RIEE %&Hﬂfﬂm
PIRRBFERY (BB ZERBERABDMEE REE
BRI RS -

RIRFEFH REE GO - BRI (FB) ZREB AR
BE#H120,381,544 IO REBE 2 EME R A
Ting Shing Holdings Limited [ #: 5 51,463,356,514
AR AR () + B8 I 348 A 15 8 2 2 811,583,738,058 % AR 19
Mz o

RIEEF KRB E KM - B RTing Shing Holdings
Limited % #8 H [ff /& /A &]Source Holdings Limited &
Congratulations Company Ltd.% Al & A& 2
351,778,23 10 % 13 & 1,111,578,283% A% 13 1M & % #5
514633565140 R 3 AL R AFH A AR A
1,463,356,5140% I% 17 2 #E 7 ©

BIEE % R HIE &0 - B Source Holdings Limited
HEHH244,594 24RO REBE 2 KM E R A
Musical Insight Holdings Limited &2 Wincall Holding
Limited % 5ll #5 5 2 47,825,5718% i 3 1 59,358,4198%
fi& 17 T 1 B2 £5 5 107,183,9900k ik 15 - B LR AHEH
351,778,231 i ) -2 #E &5

frEXHBEEIN  ARABALEEBANEBR
TR+ A=+ - REBERRARD#T
Bk ERER O 2 TR EMBRERIXE -



RFIBXEEBR QA
—E - _FER —H5

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 9 September 2019, the Company, a 70% indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia)
Limited entered into a facility agreement for a term
loan up to HK$2,900,000,000. The final maturity date
shall be the earlier of (i) the date falling 60 months
after the date of the facility agreement; and (ii) the
date falling 9 months after the date of the certificate
of compliance of the government grant concerned.
Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the facility
agreement, the Company shall provide the facility
bank with the guarantee in proportion to its ultimate
beneficial interest in the said subsidiary.

Pursuant to the facility agreement, if, among other
things, China Poly Group Corporation Limited (“China
Poly Group”) ceases to (a) be the single largest
shareholder of the Company; (b) maintain
management control of the board of the Company;
or (c) be under the control of the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of the
State Council of the People’s Republic of China
("SASAC"), the bank may declare that all or any part
of the advance(s) made by the bank under the facility
agreement together with interest and any other
amounts accrued thereunder be immediately due and
payable.
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2. On 27 December 2019, the Company (as the

borrower) and Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
Hong Kong Branch (as the lender) entered into a
facility agreement for an uncommitted revolving loan
facility of up to HK$400,000,000. The final maturity
date of the banking facility shall be the date the
bank reviewing the banking facility, which shall fall on
or before the date falling one year from the date of
the facility letter or at such other times as the bank
deems fit. On 22 December 2020, the Company and
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
entered into a supplemental facility agreement to
renew the banking facility. The maturity date is
falling 364 days from the date of acceptance of the
supplemental facility agreement or 27 December
2021, whichever is the earlier. On 25 January 2022,
the Company and the lender entered into the second
supplemental facility agreement to renew the facility
agreement. The lender agreed to provide the
Company with an uncommitted revolving loan facility
of up to HK$400,000,000 with the maturity date of
27 December 2022. On 19 April 2023, the Company
and the lender entered into the third supplemental
facility agreement to renew the facility agreement
with the maturity date of 27 December 2023.

Pursuant to the banking facility, supplemental facility
agreement, the second and third supplemental
facility agreements, if among other things, China Poly
Group ceases to: (a) be the single largest
shareholder of the Company, or, directly or indirectly
through its controlled corporations, hold at least 40%
of the issued share capital of the Company; (b)
maintain management control of the Company; or (c)
be under the control and supervision of the SASAC,
all outstanding principal, accrued interests and any
other monies owing by the Company to the bank
under the banking facility shall be repaid in full

immediately.
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On 24 July 2020, a joint venture company (“JV") of
the Group in which the Company holds 35%
beneficial interest (as borrower), the Company (as
one of the guarantors) and Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China (Asia) Limited (as facility agent),
among others, entered into a facility agreement for a
5-year term loan facility of a principal amount of up
to HK$9,437,400,000. Pursuant to the facility
agreement, the Company (as one of the guarantors)
severally guarantees the due and punctual payment
and performance of all obligations of the JV under,
among others, the facility agreement, up to 35% of
all sums owed by the JV under such obligations. The
final maturity date of the loan facility shall be the
earlier of the date falling: (@) 60 months from the
date of the facility agreement; and (b) 6 months after
the completion date of the development of the land

held by the JV.

Pursuant to the facility agreement, if, among other
things, China Poly Group ceases to: (a) be the single
largest shareholder of the Company; (b) maintain
control (as defined in the facility agreement) of the
Company; and (c) be under the control of the
SASAC, the facility agent may declare all or any part
of the borrowings together with the interest accrued
thereon and all other sums payable by the debtors
(including the Company) under the finance
documents (as defined in the facility agreement) be
immediately due and payable.

On 10 November 2020, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company (as the issuer), the Company (as the
guarantor) and China Poly Group entered into a
keepwell deed in relation to US$500,000,000 4.00%
notes due 2025 (the “Notes Due 2025").

Pursuant to the keepwell deed and the terms and
conditions of the Notes Due 2025, if China Poly
Group (a) ceases to be the single largest shareholder
of the Company or ceases to hold, directly or
indirectly through its controlled corporations (as
defined under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571) of the laws of Hong Kong) at
least 40% of the issued share capital of the Company
or (b) ceases to maintain management control of the
Company, this will constitute an event of default
under the Notes Due 2025.
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5. On 7 April 2021, the Company (as borrower) entered

into a facility agreement with (1) Bank of
Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch, China
CITIC Bank International Limited, China Everbright
Bank Co. Ltd., Hong Kong Branch, Agricultural Bank
of China Limited Hong Kong Branch, Chong Hing
Bank Limited, CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited,
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia)
Limited, Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co.,
Ltd., acting through its Hong Kong Branch and
Malayan Banking Berhad (as mandated lead
arrangers, bookrunners and lenders); and (2) China
CITIC Bank International Limited (as facility agent) for
a term loan facility in an aggregate amount of
HK$3,900,000,000. The final maturity date of the
facility shall be the date falling 36 months after the
first utilisation date of the loan under the facility.

Pursuant to the facility agreement, it shall be an
event of default if, among other things, China Poly
Group ceases to: (a) (together with its controlled
corporations) be the single largest shareholder of the
Company, or directly or indirectly through its
controlled corporations, to hold at least 40% of the
issued share capital of the Company; (b) maintain
management control of the Company; or (c) be under
the control and supervision of the SASAC. If an event
of default under the facility agreement occurs, the
facility agent may declare that all or part of the loans
under the facility, together with accrued interest, and
all other amounts accrued or outstanding under the
facility be immediately due and payable, whereupon
they shall become immediately due and payable.
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On 23 May 2022, the Company as borrower and China
Zheshang Bank Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch as
lender entered into a facility letter. Pursuant to the
facility letter, the bank agreed to make available to
the borrower an uncommitted revolving loan facility
of US$100,000,000 or its equivalent in Hong Kong
dollars. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
facility letter, the facility is available from the date of
the facility letter to 1 March 2023 with the final
maturity date being one year from the date of
acceptance of the facility letter.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the facility
letter, the Company undertakes to ensure and
procure that China Poly Group shall: (a) remain as a
direct or indirect largest single shareholder of the
Company and hold not less than 40% (calculated and
determined in accordance with Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) of the issued share capital of
the Company; and (b) maintain management control
of the Company during the whole period of the
facility; and (c) be under the supervision of the
SASAC.

On 30 November 2022, the Company as borrower and
Malayan Banking Berhad, Hong Kong Branch, as
lender entered into a facility agreement. Pursuant to
the facility agreement, the bank agreed to provide
the Company with an uncommitted short-term
revolving credit facility of up to HK$400,000,000 with
the maturity date falling 364 days after the date of
the Company’s acceptance of the facility agreement.

Pursuant to the terms of the facility agreement, it
shall be an event of default if, among other things,
China Poly Group ceases to: (a) directly or indirectly
through its controlled corporations, hold at least 40%
of the issued share capital of the Company; (b)
together with its controlled corporations, in
aggregate remain as the single largest shareholder of
the Company; (c) maintain management control of the
Company; or (d) be under the control and
supervision of the SASAC. If an event of default
under the facility agreement occurs, the facility or any
part thereof may be cancelled, whereupon all
outstanding principal, accrued interests and any other
monies owing by the Company to the bank under the
facility agreement shall be repayable on demand.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Set out below the continuing connected transactions of the

Group during the year pursuant to the Listing Rules:

(1)

Office Lease Framework Agreement,
Theatre and Cinema Box Office Income
Sharing Framework Agreement and
Theatre and Cinema Lease Framework

Agreement

On 20 September 2021, the Company and China Poly
Group entered into (i) the office lease framework
agreement, (ii) the theatre and cinema box office
income sharing framework agreement and (iii) the
theatre and cinema lease framework agreement (the
“Framework Agreements”), each with a term
commencing from 20 September 2021 and ending on

31 December 2023.

(i) Office Lease Framework Agreement

According to the terms and conditions of the
(1) the
leased properties shall be used for the purpose

office lease framework agreement,

of office premises and ancillary services; and (2)
the Group and China Poly Group will set out
the specific terms and conditions and enter into
separate lease agreements according to the
principles provided in the office lease
framework agreement. The maximum aggregate
annual amount of the office lease framework
agreement for the three years ending 31

December 2023 shall be RMB10,000,000.
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(ii)

(iii)

Theatre and Cinema Box Office
Income Sharing Framework
Agreement

According to the terms and conditions of the
theatre and cinema box office income sharing
(1) the Group will
provide theatre and cinema premises to China

framework agreement,

Poly Group for the purposes of China Poly
Group operating its theatres and cinemas and
providing ancillary services; (2) the Group and
China Poly Group will set out the specific terms
and conditions and enter into separate
agreements according to the principles
provided in the theatre and cinema box office
income sharing framework agreement; and (3)
the Group and China Poly Group will split the
net theatre and cinema box office income (i.e.,
box office income net of taxes including value-
added tax and special fund for national film
development) generated from performances and
movie screenings based on an agreed ratio, and
the China Poly Group shall pay the Group any
theatre and cinema management fee, energy
charge and other facilities fees. The maximum
aggregate annual amount of the theatre and
cinema box office income sharing framework
agreement for the three years ending 31
December 2023 shall be RMB%,000,000.

Theatre and Cinema Lease

Framework Agreement

According to the terms and conditions of the
theatre and cinema lease framework agreement,
(1) the leased properties shall be used for the
purposes of theatre and cinema operations and
ancillary services; and (2) the Group and China
Poly Group will set out the specific terms and
conditions and enter into separate lease
agreements according to the principles
provided in the theatre and cinema lease
framework agreement. The maximum aggregate
annual amount of the theatre and cinema lease
framework agreement for the three years
ending 31 December 2023 shall be

RMB10,000,000.

(i)

(iii)
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As at 20 September 2021, China Poly Group
and its associates hold approximately 47.89% of
the total issued ordinary share capital of the
Company. China Poly Group and its associates
(other than the Group) are therefore connected
persons of the Company. Accordingly, the
transactions contemplated under the Framework
Agreements constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

As all the applicable percentage ratios for the
annual caps contemplated under each of the
framework agreements are less than 5%, the
transactions contemplated thereunder are
subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule
14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, (i) the actual
rentals for the year ended 31 December 2022
under the office lease framework agreement
amounted to RMB6,673,000 and did not exceed
the maximum aggregate annual amount of
RMB10,000,000; (ii) the actual box office income
sharing for the year ended 31 December 2022
under the theatre and cinema box office income
sharing framework agreement amounted to
RMB1,796,000 and did not exceed the
maximum aggregate annual amount of
RMB9,000,000; and (iii) the actual rentals for the
year ended 31 December 2022 under the
theatre and cinema lease framework agreement
amounted to RMB6,289,000 and did not exceed
the maximum aggregate annual amount of
RMB10,000,000.
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(2)

Financial Framework Agreement

On 5 December 2019, the Company and Poly
Finance Company Limited (“Poly Finance”) entered
framework agreement (the
“Financial Framework Agreement”) for a term of

into the financial

three years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2022. Thereafter the 2019 Financial
Agreement was replaced and superseded by the
2022 Financial Framework Agreement dated 19 May
2022 to increase the annual caps in relation to the
deposit services offered by Poly Finance.

Framework

According to the terms and conditions of the 2022
Financial Framework Agreement, the Group will place
deposits with Poly Finance from time to time, and
the interest rates should be higher than the interest
rates offered by independent third parties for the
similar services obtained in the PRC. The Group and
Poly Finance will monitor the deposit of the Group's
member entities from time to time.

The annual caps of the deposit services (i.e.
maximum daily deposit balance) under the 2022
Financial Framework Agreement is RMB2,500,000,000
for each of the three years commencing from 19 May
2022.

Poly Finance is owned as to 82.83% by China Poly
Group, the controlling shareholder of the Company,
and its associates. Therefore, Poly Finance is an
associate of a connected person of the Company.
The 2022 Financial Framework Agreement and the
deposit services contemplated thereunder therefore
constitute a continuing connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As the highest applicable percentage ratio of the
proposed annual caps under the 2022 Financial
Framework Agreement exceeds 25% but is less than
75%, the 2022 Financial Framework Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder constitute
(i) a major transaction of the Company subject to the
reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules;
and (i) continuing connected transaction of the
Company subject to the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(2)
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During the year under review, deposits placed with
Poly Finance did not exceed the maximum daily
balance of RMB2,500,000,000. For the year ended 31
December 2022, the maximum daily balance of
RMB2,498,953,000 were placed with Poly Finance.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.60(1) of the Listing

Rules

Huizhou Poly Jianye Real Estate Development Co.,
Limited (“Huizhou Poly Jianye”) is held as to 30% by
an individual Mr. Li Yun Sheng (“Mr. Li”) and 70% by
Poly Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. (“Poly Real Estate”).
As at 14 December 2020, Huizhou Poly Jianye has
provided funds of RMB1,472,385,946 to Poly Real
Estate, of which Poly Real Estate arranged to provide
funds in the amount of RMB350,000,000 to Mr. Li.
Huizhou Poly Jianye was an insignificant subsidiary of
the Company under Rule 14A.09(1) of the Listing
Rules for the year ended 31 December 2020, and
therefore, Mr. Li was not considered as a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
However, based on the annual results announcement
of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2021, the applicable percentage ratios (as defined
under Rule 14A.09(1) of the Listing Rules) in relation
to Huizhou Poly Jianye exceeded 5% for the year
ended 31 December 2021, and accordingly, Huizhou
Poly Jianye has ceased to be an insignificant
subsidiary of the Company under 14A.09(1) of the
Listing Rules and Mr. Li has become a connected
person of the Company at the subsidiary level, the
Company is required to comply with the annual
review and disclosure requirements pursuant to Rule
14A.60(1) of the Listing Rules.

Further details of the transaction are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 1 April 2022.
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ANNUAL REVIEW AND CONFIRMATION
REGARDING CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS IN
PURSUANCE OF RULE 14A.55 AND
14A.56 OF THE LISTING RULES

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
continuing connected transactions (the “Transactions”) set
out above and confirmed that:

1.  the Transactions were entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group;

2. the Transactions were conducted on normal
commercial terms or better; and
3. the Transactions were entered into in accordance with

the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The board of Directors of the Company has engaged the
auditor of the Company and the auditor of the Company
had reviewed the Transactions and provided an unqualified
letter to the board in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules and confirmed, alia, that the
Transactions have been entered into in accordance with

inter

the relevant agreements governing the Transactions, the
Transactions have not exceeded their respective annual
caps as disclosed
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group in all

in the relevant announcements, in

material respects and it has been approved by the board
of Directors.

In respect of the Transactions, the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules in
force from time to time, and has followed the pricing
policies and guidelines as laid down in the guidance letter
HKEx-GL73-14 issued by the Stock Exchange when
determining the price and terms of the transactions
conducted during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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A summary of significant related party transactions during FRMNEAEEALRSBMER AR FRLEEA I
the year are disclosed in note 46 to the consolidated — T3R5 M FE461% 5 o 47 A B 75 3R 3% M 5E46(a) [ £2
financial statements of this annual report. Transactions as HFEBRFEE 22 5 K& S| T# E N 56
disclosed in note 46(a) “Transactions and balances with BKEE HEBEEX S (ESR EHHRAE
China Poly Group” to the consolidated financial statements  14AE) °

also constitute connected/continuing connected

transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure ZAARAREBRE LEMRAFLAE  FARAEER
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the AFEMFIVMNBEERIZRIFEBERFEST
Listing Rules (where applicable) with respect to the HWEERK(HEMA) o

connected transactions and continuing connected

transactions entered into by the Group during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION BEFBEMKRX

During the financial year and as at the date of this report, RAFBFEREZARHEHE  AAFER
a qualifying indemnity provision made by the Company for E=Fm 2 & ERBMEBRXBEDRTEEM(E
the benefit of the Directors is in force as required by  622%F) 2 GEHI 47015 2 MR E £ o

section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) of the

laws of Hong Kong.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN BEEAERZ ZTHEIEREHAZ
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR s
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director nor any entity connected with a Director is or EEEREEFTFHEENTNEEETZE M
was materially interested, either directly or indirectly, in HBEREAEENEZEMEBEEE - BA QA K
any transaction, arrangement or contract, which is of EEMMEAR SR F KR RQEHKEARR]
significance to the business of the Group and to which the AFHHG MREBEZE_T_—_F+_HA=+—
Company or any of its subsidiaries, its parent company B IE%F E &) K ok i3 F A AE A 5 B 08 B B
and the subsidiaries of its parent company was a party, FARXZ LHhIEHNTFHEXESHEEEARE
subsisting at the end of, or at any time during, the year i °

ended 31 December 2022.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FEEFREHED

During the year, both the aggregate sales attributable to F A AREB R AR (h 2 HERE AR
the Group’s five largest customers and the aggregate AKEBERAANEEEAGCEELTE HH5D
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers A EHERE L EEE 230% °

were less than 30% of the Group’s sales and purchases,

respectively.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
set up by the remuneration committee on the basis of
their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
remuneration committee, having regard to the Company's
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a Share Option Scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of
the scheme is set out in this report and note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Articles of Association, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to
20 April 2023, being the latest practicable date prior to
the issue of this annual report.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 have been audited by
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited (“Baker Tilly Hong Kong”).
The term of office of Baker Tilly Hong Kong will expire
upon the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

A resolution will be submitted at the forthcoming AGM of

the Company to re-appoint Baker Tilly Hong Kong as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

WAN Yuqing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AV Y iR =5
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—E——Ff+_H=+—HIFE

@ pakertilly
K B [ P

Independent auditor’'s report to the members of
Poly Property Group Co., Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Poly Property Group Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 139
to 366, which comprise the consolidated statement of
December 2022, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated

financial position as at 31
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes
to the consolidated financial

statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 2022 and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

December
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’'s “Code of Ethics for
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other

Professional

ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

(i) Revenue recognition from sales of
properties
The Group recognised revenue arising from sales of
properties of RMB39,047,665,000 for the year ended
31 December 2022.

Revenue is one of the key performance indicators of
the Group which gives rise to an inherent risk that
revenue could be recorded in the incorrect period or
subject to manipulation.
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Sales of properties are recognised as revenue at the
point in time when the buyer obtains the control of
the completed property. Determination of this point
the
arrangements for a sale, the laws in the relevant

in time is dependent on contractual

jurisdiction and may require management judgment.
Refer to note 8 to the consolidated financial

statements and the accounting policies set out in
note 2(u)(i)(a).

Our response:

Our procedures involved sampling revenue
transactions of sales of properties and specifically

included:

o Obtaining evidence regarding the transfer of the
control of properties (including, where relevant,
completion certificates, occupation permits and
acceptance letters);

o Reviewing signed sales and purchase
agreements to identify contractual
arrangements;

o Reconciling sales amounts from ledgers and

agreeing the corresponding contracted terms to
the signed sales and purchase agreements; and

° Agreeing deposits, final payments or mortgage
receipts to bank statements.

Valuation of investment properties
Management has estimated the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties to be
RMB9,666,939,000 at 31 December 2022, with a
revaluation loss for the year ended 31 December
2022 recorded in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss of RMB168,550,000.

Estimations of fair value are dependent on certain
key assumptions and unobservable inputs that require
significant management judgment, including
capitalisation rates and market transaction prices for

comparable properties.

(ii)
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Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in fair value of
the Group’s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the gain or loss
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. As a result, the financial performance can be
greatly affected by the assumptions and
unobservable inputs.

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies set out in
note 2(h).

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s
valuation of investment properties included:

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of independent external valuers;

J Obtaining external valuation reports and
discussing with external valuers to understand
the results of their work. We assessed and
challenged the valuation methodologies used
and the appropriateness of the significant
assumptions, including market transaction prices
for comparable properties and capitalisation
rates. We benchmarked these assumptions to
relevant market evidence including specific
property sales and other external data; and

° Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used as supporting
evidence.

The significant inputs have been appropriately
disclosed in note 16.
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(iii) Impairment of properties under

development and held for sale

The total net carrying amount of the Group's
properties under development and held for sale as at
31 December 2022 was RMB131,838,322,000.
Impairment loss of RMB543,264,000 was recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Estimations of net realisable value of the Group’s
properties under development and held for sale are
dependent on certain key assumptions that require
significant management judgment, including current
schedules of the projects, construction progress by
contractors, estimated costs to completion, intended
use and management’s expectation on future
property market.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in change in net realisable
value of the Group’s properties under development
and held for sale and the corresponding adjustments
to the impairment recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. As a result, the financial
performance can be greatly affected by the
assumptions.

Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies set out in
note 2(I)(i)

(iii)
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Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management'’s
assessments of the net realisable value of the
properties under developments and held for sale
included:

J Assessing the valuation methodologies used,
and challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions, specifically including future market
value, estimated costs to completion, intended
use and current market environment, based on
our knowledge of the Group's business and
property industry; and

° Reconciling, on a sample basis, the input data
used as supporting evidence, such as approved
budgets of the project and most recent
transaction prices of comparable properties in
the market with comparable nature and
locations, and considering their reasonableness.

J We also assessed the recoverable amount of
properties we deemed at high risk of
impairment by reviewing independent publicly
available information, such as property industry
reports for potential impairment triggers. Where
the market environment or estimated costs to
completion changed significantly, we challenged
management as to whether this indicated
impairment had occurred.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information
included in the Company’s annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,

responsibility is to

based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of the other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process. The Audit Committee
assists the directors in discharging their responsibility in
this regard.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if,
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

individually or in the

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or

error, design and perform audit

procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
intentional

fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.
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obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and, to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be

matter or when, in extremely rare

communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Gao Yajun.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023

Gao Yajun
Practising certificate number P06391
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2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
i3 AR¥ TR ARBTTT
(Restated)
(mE5)
Revenue A 8 41,127,316 30,305,411
Cost of sales HEKA (30,046,776) (20,044,764)
Gross profit E7 11,080,540 10,260,647
Decrease in fair value of investment BEWMEZATE
properties D 16 (168,550) (566)
Increase in fair value of financial assets CREEZAFELEM 45,779 62,118
Other (loss)/gains, net Hit (B18) WA F 8 9 (80,384) 608,970
Selling expenses HER X (1,227,352) (1,134,036)
Administrative expenses THRAX (1,266,358) (1,409,109)
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—HeEbEzlaE 20 - 252,000
Gain on disposal of net assets classified as HEHFEEIFIELE 2
held for sale BEFE M= — 17,896
Impairment loss on properties under BERPRFELE
development and held for sale W% 2R EEE 23 (543,264) (204,226)
Other operating expenses Hih & B (368,449) (347,478)
Finance costs BB KA 10 (1,605,049) (1,535,277)
Share of results of associates DIEBE DR EE (8,680) 56,561
Share of results of joint ventures DHEELEER (22,816) 71,995
Profit before income tax expense Bk AT 13 54 B8 3 Al i A 13 5,835,417 6,699,495
Income tax expense PGB F < 14 (4,826,091) (4,535,931)
Profit for the year FR& A 1,009,326 2,163,564
Attributable to: TofEAh :
Owners of the Company VIN/NEEIE Z N 816,148 2,059,116
Non-controlling interests I I 25 193,178 104,448
Profit for the year F W F 1,009,326 2,163,564
Earnings per share Tz 2 A
(expressed in RMB cents) (AARESF7R) 15

— Basic and diluted — EAR#E 21.71 55.90
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Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:

Exchange differences arising on translation
of financial statements of foreign
operations

Items that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss:

Surplus arising on revaluation of properties

Other comprehensive income
before income tax effect

Deferred tax liability arising on revaluation
of properties

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

FRER

HitZHE WA

HEAREEN 7 B E R
HIEE

BINEE 2 M RRIBE
EEZERLER

TEEH S EEE
B#1IEE -
W) % E (&

E>|:

FrEstmzEMaEmEB A

MEBGELE ZELERHE
=R

FREMEEE A - MR
BEAXE

FAZEBABE

T 51 :

ZN/NCIEZ 2SN
FEIE AR 2

2022 2021
—E-C —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETTT
(Restated)

(LE5)

1,009,326 2,163,564
611,153 (161,420)
265,384 92,010
876,537 (69,410)
(66,346) (23,002)
810,191 (92,412)
1,819,517 2,071,152
1,696,792 2,030,858
122,725 40,294
1,819,517 2,071,152




RMNEXxESEER AT —MH
ZEFFRHR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR MR
As at 31 December 2022
REF——F+-A=+—H

Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Interests in associates

Interests in joint ventures

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Loan receivables

Deposits paid for acquisition of
land use rights

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Properties under development
Properties held for sale
Other inventories
Contract costs
Trade and other receivables

Amounts due from associates
Amounts due from joint ventures

Amounts due from non-controlling

shareholders of subsidiaries
Taxation recoverable
Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances, deposits and cash

Assets classified as held for sale

Total current assets

HRBEE

REME
M- BB R

EREEE

N NG P

REELEZER
BAFEFABRSZ
EREE

& W & R

Wi Tt BREE
Be

RIETRIRE E

FRBEELR

RBEE

BRERAPWE
FEH &M
HFHE
BHRA
FEURE 5 K E A
AR
& iz Bk 22 ) B 5RIA
FE U & & b X 5RIA
JRE 2 B /B8 B FE#E A
R RIR
] 4 [B] i 2R
BEHEMRITHER
RITERF  FRR
Re

DEBFEHEZ
BE

Notes

it &E

16
17
18
19
20

21
27(a)

22
40

23
23
24
25
26
19
20
31
32(a)

32(a)

53

31 December 31 December 1 January
2022 2021 2021
—EC-C-F —E-—F —E-—F
+=ZA=+-B +ZA=+-—H —H—H
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREFT AREFTT
(Restated) (Restated)

(L&) (&)

9,666,939 9,832,723 8,959,508
3,411,831 2,885,454 2,761,598
597,668 518,986 293,546
1,603,728 1,424,775 210,818
6,050,172 5,813,446 6,450,099
643,763 597,795 567,613
234,761 175,335 184,583
1,214,373 1,471,756 3,112,383
239,518 245,078 226,602
23,662,753 22,965,348 22,766,750
105,321,305 102,658,341 78,802,662
26,517,017 18,124,489 15,551,064
41,611 86,919 79,976
509,474 471,516 408,250
5,353,157 8,334,732 9,515,817
1,123,551 2,471,682 1,084,751
4,176,617 4,188,234 3,914,814
2,012,361 1,033,828 799,691
2,761,744 2,918,522 2,403,907
444,639 265,431 578,563
31,173,332 29,747,851 36,089,446
179,434,808 170,301,545 149,228,941
17,630 — 652,758
179,452,438 170,301,545 149,881,699
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e R R
As at 31 December 2022
REF_ZF+-A=+—H

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Contract liabilities

Property rental deposits

Amounts due to associates

Amounts due to joint ventures

Amount due to the ultimate
holding company

Amount due to an intermediate
holding company

Amount due to a fellow subsidiary

Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Taxation payable

Note payable

— due within one year

Bank and other borrowings

— due within one year

Liabilities associated with assets
classified as held for sale

Total current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

RBEE

e B 5 KA M AR 5K

AHAaE

MERESRE

&1~ B 2 R B 5ROR

& & R FRIR

JE A BR A FE B R A
IR

JE& A — ] AR R R R 2
Ik

FE 5 — R 2 B 8 &
Ik

JE {51 I /B8 & B BEHE AR
P R 1A

J& A A5 TR

e =iz

— —FAREH

RITEEMEER

— —FAREH

HAOEBFIEHEZ
BEEMBNER

mE B AEAER

REBEEFRE

HEERRDRE

Notes
(i

33
36

19
20

28

29

30

31

35

34

53

31 December 31 December 1 January
2022 2021 2021
—E-CF& —E-—F —_ET-—F
+t=A=+-R ft-A=t-8 ~A—H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR ARBFTT AREFTT
(Restated) (Restated)

(& =51) (L&)

30,144,306 27,707,168 21,930,077
34,988,848 44,068,692 32,497,990
86,454 92,741 144,692
736,392 460,803 121,503
674,278 585,258 1,588,843
18,508 18,704 14,760
2,792 380,021 2,791

485 485 485
4,952,080 3,370,991 2,384,180
7,926,281 7,260,422 6,391,851
— — 3,976,000
18,363,445 19,008,280 19,633,965
97,893,869 102,953,565 88,687,137
14,262 — 703
97,908,131 102,953,565 88,687,840
81,544,307 67,347,980 61,193,859
105,207,060 90,313,328 83,960,609




Capital and reserves attributable to
owners of the Company
Share capital
Reserves
Accumulated profits

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Bank and other borrowings — due
after one year
Note payable — due after one
year
Lease liabilities

Loan from a fellow subsidiary

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

RAINBEEBER QA 143
—E-FER
31 December 31 December 1 January
2022 2021 2021
—EC-CE —E - —F —E-—F
+=ZA=+-B +-A=+-—H —A—H
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & ARETR AREFT ARBFT
(Restated) (Restated)
(L&) (&)
KATEE AEAMG
EAXREE
[N 37 15,712,159 15,550,825 15,462,847
& 3,829,073 2,435,073 2,246,094
2505 7 13,389,012 13,514,929 12,064,044
KATEEAEML
B #E 32,930,244 31,500,827 29,772,985
JEERER 8,859,700 6,644,598 3,161,731
BAEAEE 41,789,944 38,145,425 32,934,716
FERBEE
RITREMEE —

— F1& 5 H3 34 49,587,211 46,606,289 45,851,498
EBNEE — —F1%&

ZI| 54 35 12,097,000 3,824,000 3,276,000
HEaE 18 41,647 38,843 —
—RHRRMNE R A

B 39 180,000 180,000 180,000
BEERIBEAE 40 1,511,258 1,518,771 1,718,395

ERBBERE 63,417,116 52,167,903 51,025,893
105,207,060 90,313,328 83,960,609
RZEBE_=Z=F=ZA -+ \BHEHEZTSHEK

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 28 March 2023.

Wan Yugqing

BFE

Chairman

FE

BT -

Wang Jian

42

Managing Director
EFEEE
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Notes:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

RABEEEER QA
R FFR

145

Statutory reserves are reserves required by the relevant laws in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and are applicable to the
Group's PRC subsidiaries.

Included in other capital reserve at 31 December 2022 is deemed
capital contribution arising on acquisition of subsidiaries of
RMB141,528,000 (2021: RMB141,528,000)
contribution arising from interest-free loans provided by a fellow
subsidiary of RMB67,065,000 (2021: RMB67,065,000).

and deemed capital

Other reserve represents the difference between the fair value of
consideration paid and payable and the carrying amount of net
assets attributable to the changes in ownership in the subsidiaries
being acquired or disposed from non-controlling interests without
change of control.

The share options reserve represents the cumulative expenses

recognised on the granting of share option during the period.

P &E -

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

RFEREBIITEARKME (T4 B B RDE B AR E
BERNASEZHEMERRBRHE -

RZTE-_—F+-—A=+—H HtELAFHERER
EUR ST B A R FTEE &£ & 2 A R ¥6141,528,0007T
—T - —F: AR¥141,528,0007T) & i — R &K
BRAAREBETTEERMELEZLEZARE
67,065,0007T (=& = — & : AR #67,065,0007T) °

HipfEfis B KRN R E QT ERE K EZ %
ZERTHIFEREEBARBEZMBE QR ERE
BYRE2FEERANEME ZHNER -

BREFRGNHRAREIBRENZRGAFAXERS
e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
,\\T\/\Eﬁﬂiﬁgﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE T —Ff+_H=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-CF —_E-—F
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
Bt 5% AR¥T T ARBTFT
(Restated)
(& =71)
Cash flows from operating activities %Eiﬁé‘*‘ FEEHNRS
Y I.r
Profit before income tax expense & BT 15 %4 B9 X2 AT o 5,835,417 6,699,495
Adjustments for: MATIER (EHAE :
Interest income from banks RITH B A 9 (374,473) (330,465)
Interest income from loans to associates /\TA%H?#%?’&Q%%Z
8 A 9 (28,867) (58,842)
Interest income from loans to BERTRECETKZ
joint ventures F B U A 9 (88,429) (61,019)
Interest income from amounts due from FE W BT B A B FE IR AR
non-controlling shareholders of IR R R 2
subsidiaries A S A 9 (19,348) (28,652)
Gain on lease modification HEEE] 2 W 9 (4,333) —
Dividend income from financial assets at ~ E A F{EaT A8
fair value through profit or loss ZERMEEZ
i B WA 9 (15,067) (15,078)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRREENE 18 41,033 20,163
Depreciation of property, plant and M- BE REE
equipment e 17 153,595 145,590
(Reversal of)/recognition of equity- VARE 25 45 S DARR 9 2 A-F
settled share-based payment B (BE),/
expenses TR (15,509) 7,196
Finance costs B & Bk AR 10 1,605,049 1,535,277
Reversal of impairment loss on trade JEWE 5 K B AR 2
and other receivables VEREN SR EZgE] 13 (3,318) (695,971)
Reversal of impairment loss on BERPRFELEYE
properties under development and Z B E A
held for sale 13 (61,313) (76,502)
Impairment loss on properties under BERPRFIEHEDE
development and held for sale ZBEEE 23 543,264 204,226
Impairment loss on trade and other B E 5 Rk AR 2
receivables VERI=N R 13 39,409 20,386
Impairment loss on goodwill PéﬁEEZ/Jﬁk@EﬁTE 9 —_ 110,446
Decrease in fair value of investment REMEZ RTE
properties VR 16 168,550 566
Gain on disposal of financial asset HEEMEE 2 W 9 — (51,107)
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—HeEEREZ
U 7% 20 — (252,000)
Increase in fair value of financial assets EMEBEEZRATE
30 (45,779) (62,118)
Loss on disposal of investment HEREMEZEE
properties 9 28,620 107,166
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BE R&ZHE
equipment Z 1 13 5,380 7,445
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZEIR 9 3,892 —
Loss on disposal of associates SRS QR EE 9 438 —
Gain on disposal of net asset classified HESHARELEZ
as held for sale EEFEZz W — (17,896)
Share of results of associates DI E R R E A 8,680 (56,561)
Share of results of joint ventures DIHEELEER 22,816 (71,995)
Amortisation of incremental commission BN e 25 562,574 452,890
Increase in capitalisation of incremental 1R A5R & 78 B 75 3 45 22 A
commission according to HKFRS 15 EI155R L ME S 2
B AL AN (594,195) (495,355)

Operating profit before working capital &E& BB K =
changes Y Al 7,768,086 7,037,285
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(Increase)/decrease in deposits paid for
acquisition of land use rights

Increase in properties under development
and held for sale

Decrease/(increase) in other inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade and other
receivables

(Decrease)/increase in trade and other
payables

(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities

Decrease in property rental deposits

Cash (used in)/generated from
operations

Income taxes paid

Interest paid

Net cash used in operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Investments in joint ventures

Proceeds from disposal of associates

Proceeds from disposal of a joint venture

Net cash inflow arising on disposal of
subsidiaries

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash
acquired

Acquisition of additional interests in
subsidiaries

Acquisition of associates

Net cash outflows arising on
de-registration of subsidiaries

(Increase)/decrease in loan receivables

(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank
deposits

Bank interest income received

Interest income received from loans to
joint ventures

Interest income received from loans to
associates

Interest income received from amounts
due from non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries

Dividend income received from financial
assets at fair value through profits or
loss

Dividend income received from a joint
venture

Dividend income received from associates

Repayments from joint ventures

Advance to non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries

Repayments from/(advance to) associates

Proceeds from disposal of investment
properties
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets

R FFR
2022 2021
—E-CF —_E-_—F
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000
k=2 ARBET T ARET T
(Restated)
(x&E5)

U 8% + i (5 A A9 B A

me (Em md 22 (615,680) 557,964
BRARBELEME

0 (2,695,670) (13,913,840)
Hpramd /(32 mn) 896 (5,420)
EWE 5 & H R R

B () 2,974,881 (119,899)
BB 5 R H AR

CR ) /3 A0 (3,367,413) 579,659
AHBECRD) #Ein (9,089,639) 7,760,758
MERERS D (6,377) (51,925)
K (A FBR$

(5,030,916) 1,844,582
=R (4,071,811) (4,302,776)
B F 8 (4,335,186) (3,348,341)
RETBHRARSTEH (13,437,913) (5,806,535)
REREZHNES

KRB

BEWE BERZE

17 (459,442) (49,484)
REEDEZRE (994) (926,990)
HEBERNRZME

FKIA 809 —
HE—REECEZAHE

K38 — 252,000
HEMBRARELAZES

mA 52 18,104 —
U EEKT B AR - Mk

BN EER S 51 — 3,665,146
HEEK B AR R

5,732 (61,935)
Uiz B B 42 N ) (68,609) (791,829)
EHEMBRARELEZRS

piaape ] (37,511) (756,156)
FEU B ZR (38 hn) R (44,458) 4,853
ERARITEROGEM)

Ve (179,208) 313,132
B YR 17 A S A 374,473 330,465
ERTEECELRZ

BWAIE YA 88,429 61,019
BERTHEQNRERZ

247 B A 28,867 58,842
JE s B B 1 m) FE AR AR R

RIER R 2 B WA Bk

A 19,348 28,652
BUIEAFEETFABEZ

TRHMEEZRBERA

15,050 15,078
El—MEEERS

A 943 1,104,927
B EE N R Z BB

A 51,000 —
BEDEENR 213,844 275,205
BT B QR IR

g (978,533) (132,070)
B NRER(BRT

RN ) 1,177,030 (1,386,961)
HEREYMEMBSRE

15,080 116,308
HESRMEEMBRE — 82,440
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= A AN =1
MEHERER
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-—F - —F+-F=+—HIFE

Net cash generated from investing
activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Borrowings raised

Note payable raised

Repayment of note payables

Repayments of borrowings

Capital contribution by non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Advances from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Payments of lease liabilities

(Repayment to)/advance from the ultimate
holding company

Advances from/(repayment to) joint
ventures

Advances from associates

(Repayment to)/advance from intermediate
holding company

Dividends paid to owners of the Company

Dividends paid to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial
position
Add: Reclassified to assets of disposal
group classified as held for sale
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RERMEEFDNRERE

&l
I I

Pl 1
WMw

g
I

\
A

oI 4 5 o1

=
7
Il
\
L.
UL L

I [ 550 EE B8

m D> Al S o T

ol
0T TT

i 3

> Rl
\
TR
e O
2

25
ey
H&F
=
=

]

Q!

‘_J,\J

a0

S

=l

N>
¥ o
H N

b
S

Rl oR3

i
TiE 0)> I 450 &
P

D I
D
il
hil

A~
2
palla
\_J,(]
|
DI 535 o HEE M e
o
A
=
3]
™
el
AN

5
> fg
e

2t 2|

SRS

A SRR AR AR

o [
FABIH
B em Pt of

e B
]

@!
S i
k> B

BE (FA)
T

ReRERAASEM
(B D)
FHAZREREEARAS

ERGHURERER
ReEvgg

FRZ2BERER[AS

Notes

B =

85
85
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2022 2021
—E-CF —_E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR®EFTTT
(Restated)
(&)
239,954 2,202,642
31,073,283 24,214,690
8,000,000 626,000
—_ (3,937,000)
(28,569,466) (27,598,556)
2,305,020 3,860,596
1,536,989 999,410
(23,335) (6,740)
(196) 3,944
89,020 (997,735)
275,589 339,300
(409,432) 377,230
(269,788) (296,338)
(127,286) (62,454)
13,880,398 (2,477,653)
682,439 (6,081,546)
29,747,851 36,089,446
748,414 (260,049)
31,178,704 29,747,851
31,173,332 29,747,851
5,372 —
31,178,704 29,747,851
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B R MYt

31 December 2022
—E-—Ff—A=1—H

GENERAL

Poly Property Group Co., Limited (the “Company”) is
a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporate Information” section of the annual
report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are engaged in
property development, property investment and
management, hotel operations and its related
services, and manufacturing and sales of digital discs
and others. The principal activities and other
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 49.

The directors consider the Company’'s immediate
holding company is Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings
Limited (“Poly Holdings"”), a company incorporated in
Hong Kong. The ultimate holding company is China
Poly Group Corporation Limited (“China Poly”), a
state-owned enterprise established in the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC"). China Poly and its
affiliated companies, other than members of the
Group, are hereinafter collectively referred to as
China Poly Group.
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GENERAL (Continued)

Change in presentation currency

In prior years, the functional currencies of the
Company and its subsidiaries are Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") and Renminbi (“RMB") while the Group's
consolidated financial statements were presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"). Having considered that
most of the Group’s transactions and business
activities are settled in RMB and conducted in
Mainland China and in view of the recent fluctuation
of the exchange rate of RMB against HKS$, the
Company considers that changing the presentation
currency from HK$ to RMB would help to eliminate
fluctuation on the reported results caused by
exchange rate fluctuation which does not have any
direct relationship to the Group’s financial
performance. The Company considers that it is more
appropriate to use RMB as the Group’s presentation
currency for its consolidated financial statements and
this will enable the shareholders of the Group to
better understand the actual financial performance of
the Group.

In view of the above, the Company has decided to
adopt RMB as the presentation currency for the
consolidated financial statements of the Group
effective from 1 January 2022. On the basis that the
functional currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries remain unchanged, the change of
presentation currency and restatement of the
comparative figures from HK$ to RMB are not
expected to give rise to any impact on foreign
exchange gains and losses.
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GENERAL (Continued)

Change in presentation currency
(Continued)

The change in presentation currency has been
applied retrospectively. The comparative figures in
the financial statements were then translated from
HK$ to RMB using the applicable closing rates for
assets and liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position and applicable average rates that
approximated to actual rates for items in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Share capital, share premium and reserves
were translated at the exchange rate at the date
when the respective amounts were determined (i.e.
historical exchange rates). The Group has also
presented the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 1 January 2021.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622). These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”). Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are disclosed below.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Statement of compliance
(Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 2(c) provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current accounting period
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2022 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group”) and the Group's interest in
associates and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and
liabilities are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out
below:

—  investment property, including interests in

leasehold land and buildings held as
investment property where the Group is
the registered owner of the property

interest (see note 2(h));

—  hotel
amounts (see note 2(i)); and

properties carried at revaluated

— financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (see note 2(g)).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements (Continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for
sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell (see note 2(x)).

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying
liabilities that are not

Actual

values of assets and
readily apparent from other sources.
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant
effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed
in note 5.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies
Overview of amended standards

adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
to these financial statements for the current
accounting period:

o Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant
and equipment: Proceeds before intended
use

° Amendments to HKAS 37, Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets:
Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a
contract

The Group has not applied any new standard or
amendment that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period. None of these
amendments to HKFRSs has a material impact
on the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior period. The Group has not
adopted any other new or amended HKFRSs
that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held
by the Group and other

parties) are

considered.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 FEEFHBE(GE)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling (d)

MEARARFEZERERS

interests (Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there

impairment.

is no evidence of

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having a
contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the
Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
at the

non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of

interests either at fair value or

the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the

consolidated statement of financial
within equity, separately from

attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests
results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities
consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 2(p) or (q) depending on

the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made
to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see note 2(g)) or, when appropriate, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture (see note 2(e)).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, investments in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(k)),
unless the investments classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale) (see note 2(x)).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
the Company has significant influence, but not
control or joint control, over its management,
including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the
Group or Company and other parties
contractually agree to share control of the
arrangement, and have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement.

(d)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method, unless it is
classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale)
(see note 2(x)). Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee's
identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment
includes purchase price, other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the
investment, and any direct investment into the
associate or joint venture that forms part of the
Group’s equity investment. Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group's share of the investee’s
net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (see notes 2(f) and 2(k)(iii)). At
each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group's
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the joint venture,
the Group's interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s is the
carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method,

interest

together with any other
long-term interests that in substance form part
of the Group's net investment in the associate
applying the
expected credit loss (“ECL") model to such
other long-term interests where applicable (see
note 2(k)(i)).

or the joint venture, after

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint venture are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Associates and joint ventures

(Continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate or
joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss.
interest retained in that former investee at the

date when significant influence or joint control

Any

is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial
position,
venture are stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(k)), unless classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is

investments in associates and joint

classified as held for sale) (see note 2(x)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling in the
acquiree and the fair value of the Group's

interest

previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree's
identifiable assets and liabilities measured
as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
Goodwill
business combination

impairment losses. arising on a
is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination and is

tested annually for impairment (see note 2(k)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and
equity securities

The Group’s policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are
set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are
recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investment.
The investments are initially stated at fair value
plus directly attributable transaction costs,
except for those investments measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL") for which
transaction costs are recognised directly in
profit or loss. For an explanation of how the
Group determines fair value of financial
instruments, see note 7(c). These investments
are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Other investments in debt and
equity securities (Continued)
(i) Investments other than equity

investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

—  amortised cost, if the investment is
held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment
is calculated using the effective
interest method (see note 2(u)(ii)(c)).

—  fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI") — recycling, if the
contractual cash flows of the
investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash
flows and sale. Changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of expected credit losses,
interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the
investment is derecognised, the
amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from
equity to profit or loss.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Other investments in debt and
equity securities (Continued)

(i)

Investments other than equity

investments (Continued)

—  fair value through profit or loss
("FVPL") if the investment does not

meet the criteria for being measured
FVOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value

at amortised cost or
of the investment (including interest)
are recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments
An investment in equity securities is
classified as FVPL unless the equity
not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the
the

irrevocable election to designate the

investment is

investment Group makes an
investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised comprehensive
income. Such elections are made on an

in other

instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is
made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the
investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the
(non-recycling) is
transferred to accumulated profits. It is not

fair value reserve
recycled through profit or loss. Dividends
from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at
FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or
loss as other income in accordance with

the policy set out in note 2(u)(ii)(b).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest (see note 2(j)) to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation but not held for
sale in the ordinary course of business. These
include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as
investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
still
construction or development at the end of the

unless they are in the course of
reporting period and their fair value cannot be
reliably measured at that time. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value or from the
disposal
property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental
income from investment properties is accounted
for as described in note 2(u)(ii)(a).

retirement or of an investment

Property, plant and equipment

The hotel properties held for own use are
stated at their revalued amount, being their fair
value at the date of the revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of
these assets does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at
the end of reporting period.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Changes arising on the revaluation of hotel
properties held for own use are generally dealt
with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the hotel
revaluation The only

properties reserve.

exceptions are as follows:

—  when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will
be charged to profit or loss to the extent
that it exceeds the amount held in the
reserve in respect of that same asset
immediately prior to the revaluation; and

—  when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will
be credited to profit or loss to the extent
that a deficit on revaluation in respect of
that same asset had previously been
charged to profit or loss.

Other than hotel properties and construction in
progress, the other items of property, plant and
equipment, including leasehold land held for
use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administration purposes, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 2(k)):

—  right-of-use assets arising from leases over
freehold or leasehold properties where the
Group is not the registered owner of the
property interest; and

— items of plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets arising from leases of
underlying plant and equipment (see
note(2(j)).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

In prior years certain land and buildings held for
own use were revalued to their fair value. In
preparing these financial statements, advantage
has been taken of the transitional provisions set
out in paragraph 80AA of HKAS 16 “Property,
plant and equipment” issued by the HKICPA,
with the effect that these land and buildings
have not been revalued to their fair value at the
end of the reporting period.

The cost of self-constructed items of property,
plant and equipment includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on
which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and

borrowing costs (see note 2(w)).

ltems may be produced while bringing an item
of property,
location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by

plant and equipment to the

management. The proceeds from selling any
such items and the related costs are recognised
in profit or loss.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related
transferred from the
accumulated profits and is not reclassified to
profit or loss.

revaluation surplus is

revaluation reserve to

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
or valuation of items of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives at the rates disclosed in note 17.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are

reviewed annually.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct
the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from
that use.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset and
a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low-value
assets. When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalised are recognised
as an expense on a systematic basis over
the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the
present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease
or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which

they are incurred.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

— right-of-use

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred.
the cost of the
right-of-use assets also

Where applicable,
includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see notes 2(i) and 2(k)
(iii)), except for the following types of
right-of-use asset:

— right-of-use assets that meet the

definition of investment property are
carried at fair value in accordance
with note 2(h); and

assets related to
interests in leasehold land where the
in the land
inventory are carried at the lower of

interest is held as

cost and net realisable value in
accordance with note 2(l).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The initial fair value of refundable rental
deposits is accounted for separately from
the right-of-use assets in accordance with
the accounting policy applicable to
investments in debt securities carried at
amortised cost (see notes 2(g)(i), 2(u)(ii)(c)
and 2(k)(i)). Any difference between the
initial fair value and the nominal value of
the deposits is accounted for as additional
lease payments made and is included in
the cost of right-of-use assets.

The Group presents right-of-use assets
that do not meet the definition of
investment property separately in the
consolidated statement of financial

position.

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or rate,
or there is a change in the Group's
estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee,
or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this
case the lease liability is remeasured
based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are rent concessions that
occurred as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and met the
conditions set out in paragraph 46B of
HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the
Group has taken advantage of the
practical expedient not to assess whether
the rent concessions are lease
modifications, and recognised the change
in consideration as negative variable lease
payments in profit or loss in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers
the rent concessions occurred.

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the
present value of contractual payments that
are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.

TEE

(j)

Bt

a
A

z

BUR (#8)

il

HEEE(E)

(i)

EREBAANE)

HEHEHREXBEES QLI
EEBHE AR REYL ER
ENHERELRZE ((HE
g&]]) HERABIRTAERH
FE-RUEBERT HERE
RELETHEN K LER -
B A BRI RE IR RIS ET £
HHIEHGTE - fE—HISMER
REHNERBEERELANA
BEVBHREENFE16RHEE
FABEFTH KT H & &
B-RZFBAT  AREF
RERBE AT EZEFHM
CEEREENEERET I
REFELZSHEBENSE
HaIEREERRARBREARK
REZHHERARATIHEE

=5
N

REZEMBARNEKA - REHE
S EMRHE D k&R E R
TZEAABBENE LN
RBEEE -



-| 72 POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB M HRARM

31 December 2022

—E-—Ff=A=+—H

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(j) Leased assets (Continued)

(ii)

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether
each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a
finance lease if it transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of an underlying assets to the
lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and
non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The rental income from
operating recognised in
accordance with note 2(u)(ii)(a).

leases is

(k) Credit losses and impairment of
assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments and lease

receivables
The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECLs"”) on the
following items:
— financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including pledged
bank deposits, cash and cash
trade

receivables, including amounts due

equivalents, and other
from associates, joint ventures and
non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries, which are held for the
collection of contractual cash flows
which represent solely payments of
principal and interest); and
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments and lease

receivables (Continued)
—  lease receivables.

Other financial assets measured at fair
value, including equity and debt securities
measured at FVPL, are not subject to the
ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
Credit
measured as the present value of all
shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to

of credit losses. losses are

expected cash
the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments and lease
receivables (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs
(Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following discount
rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

—  fixed-rate financial assets, trade and
other receivables: effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition
or an approximation thereof;

—  variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate;

— lease receivables: discount rate used
in the measurement of the lease
receivable.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments and lease
receivables (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs
(Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

—  12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to
possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which
the ECL model applies.

result from all

Loss allowances for trade receivables are
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.
assets are estimated using a provision

ECLs on these financial

matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at
the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments
(including loan commitments issued), the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial
recognition,
allowance is measured at an amount equal

to lifetime ECLs.

in which case the loss
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments and lease
receivables (Continued)
Significant increases in credit
risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument (including a loan
commitment) has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on
the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the
date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held). The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments and lease
receivables (Continued)
Significant increases in credit
risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal
or interest on their contractually due
dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the
debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments and lease
receivables (Continued)
Significant increases in credit
risk (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or
a collective basis. When the assessment is
performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as

past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment

recognition.

gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for
all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments and lease
receivables (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest

income

Interest income recognised in accordance
with note 2(u)(ii)(c) is calculated based on
the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is

credit-impaired, in which case interest

income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is

credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

—  significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

—  a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;

— it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments and lease
receivables (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest

income (Continued)
— significant changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset and lease receivable is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when
the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that
was previously written off are recognised
as a reversal of impairment in profit or
loss in the period in which the recovery
occurs.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(ii)

Credit losses from financial
guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
(the

loss the holder incurs

beneficiary of the guarantee
"holder”) for a
because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially
recognised at fair value, which is
determined by reference to fees charged
in an arm'’s length transaction for similar
services, when such information is
obtainable, or to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged by
lenders when the guarantee is made
available with the estimated rates that
lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where
reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received
or receivable, an immediate expense is

recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount
initially recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term of
the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued (see note 2(u)(ii)(e)).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(ii)

Credit losses from financial
guarantees issued (Continued)
The Group monitors the risk that the
default on the
contract and recognises a provision when

specified debtor will
ECLs on the financial guarantees are
determined to be higher than the carrying
amount in respect of the guarantees (i.e.
recognised, less

the amount initially

accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers
changes in the risk of default of the
specified debtor since the issuance of the
guarantee. A 12-month ECL is measured
unless the risk that the specified debtor
will default has increased significantly
since the guarantee is issued, in which
case a lifetime ECL is measured. The same
definition of default and the
assessment of significant increase in credit

risk as described in note 2(k)(i) apply.

same

As the Group is required to make
payments only in the event of a default by
the specified debtor in accordance with
the terms of the instrument that is
guaranteed, an ECL is estimated based on
the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less
any amount that the Group expects to
receive from the holder of the guarantee,
the specified debtor or any other party.
The amount is then discounted using the
current risk-free rate adjusted for risks

specific to the cash flows.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBE(E)

POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of (k)
assets (Continued)
(iii) Impairment of other non-current

FEEEREERME(E)

(i) HtbERBEERE

assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end of
identify

indications that the following assets may

each reporting period to
be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment (other
than hotel
revalued amounts);

properties carried at

—  right-of-use assets;
—  goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the
Company's statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or

not there is any indication of impairment.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)
(iii) Impairment of other non-current
assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable

amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not
largely
independent of those from other
assets,
determined for the smallest group of

generate cash inflows

the recoverable amount is

assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit). A portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (for
example, head office building) is
allocated to an individual
cash-generating unit if the allocation
can be done on a reasonable and
consistent basis, or to the smallest
group of cash-generating units if

otherwise.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)
(iii) Impairment of other non-current
assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment

losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment

losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro

carrying value of an asset will not be

rata basis, except that the

reduced below its individual fair

value less costs of disposal (if

measurable) or value in use (if

determinable).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)
(iii) Impairment of other non-current
assets (Continued)
— Reversals of impairment

losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset's carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year
in which the reversals are
recognised.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I) Inventories and other contract costs

(i)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for
sale in the ordinary course of business, in
the process of production for such sale or
in the form of materials or supplies to be
consumed in the production in process or
in the rendering services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value as follows:

— Properties under
development
The cost of properties under
development for sale comprises
specifically identified cost, including
the acquisition cost of interests in
freehold and leasehold land,
aggregate cost of development,
materials and supplies, wages and
other direct expenses, an
appropriate proportion of overheads
and borrowing costs capitalised (see
note 2(w)). Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling
price less estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred
in selling the property.

— Properties held for sales
The cost of completed properties
held for sale comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location
and condition.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I) Inventories and other contract costs
(Continued)
(i) Inventories (Continued)

Properties held for sales
(Continued)

In the case of completed properties
developed by the Group which
comprise of multiple units which are
sold individually, the cost of each
unit is determined by apportionment
of the total development costs for
that development project to each
unit on a basis that is representative
of the cost of the specific unit. Net
realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less costs to
be incurred in selling the property.

Other inventories

Other inventories are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method.

When inventories are sold, the carrying

amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I) Inventories and other contract costs
(Continued)

(i)

Inventories (Continued)

The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or
loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as an expense in

the period in which the reversal occurs.

Other contract costs
Other the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract

contract costs are either

with a customer or the costs to fulfil a
contract with a customer which are not
capitalised as inventory (see note 2(l)(i)),
and property, plant and equipment (see
note 2(i)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
are those costs that the Group incurs to
obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract
had obtained

incremental sales commission. Incremental

not been e.g. an

costs of obtaining a contract are
capitalised when incurred if the costs
relate to revenue which will be recognised
in a future reporting period and the costs
are expected to be recovered. Other costs
of obtaining a contract are expensed

when incurred.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I) Inventories and other contract costs
(Continued)

(ii)

Other contract costs
(Continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if
the costs relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract; generate or enhance
resources that will be used to provide
goods or services in the future; and are
expected to be recovered. Costs that
relate directly to an existing contract or to
identifiable anticipated
contract may include direct labour, direct

a specifically

materials, allocations of costs, costs that
are explicitly chargeable to the customer
and other costs that are incurred only
because the Group entered into the
(for payments to
sub-contractors). Other costs of fulfilling a
which are not capitalised as
property,
equipment, are expensed as incurred.

contract example,

contract,

inventory or plant and
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

(m

Inventories and other contract costs
(Continued)
(ii) Other contract costs
(Continued)
Capitalised contract costs are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and
Impairment losses are
recognised to the extent that the carrying

impairment losses.

amount of the contract cost asset exceeds
the net of (i)
consideration that the Group expects to
receive in exchange for the goods or

remaining amount of

services to which the asset relates, less (ii)
any costs that relate directly to providing
those goods or services that have not yet
been recognised as expenses. The Group
has taken the practical
recognise the incremental costs of obtains

expedient to

a contract as an expense when incurred if
the amortisation period of the asset that
the entity would otherwise have
recognised is one year or less.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs
is charged to profit or loss when the
revenue to which the asset relates is
recognised. The accounting policy for
revenue recognition is set out in note
2(u).

) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays non-refundable consideration
before the Group recognises the related
(see note 2(u)). A contract liability

would also be recognised if the Group has an

revenue

unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see note
2(n)).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Contract liabilities (Continued)

When the contract includes a significant
financing component, the contract balance
includes interest accrued under the effective
interest method (see note 2(u)(ii)(c)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component are initially
measured at their transaction price. Trade
receivables that contain a significant financing
component and other receivables are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs. All
receivables are subsequently stated at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method and including an allowance for credit
losses (see note 2(k)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks
and other financial institutions, and short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the group’s cash
management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated cash flow statement. Cash and
cash equivalents are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2(k)

(i).

(m)
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Trade and other payables
Trade and other
recognised at fair value. Subsequent to initial

payables are initially
recognition, trade and other payables are
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case

they are stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured
initially at fair value less transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy

for borrowing costs (see note 2(w)).

Interest expense is recognised in

Employee benefits
(i) Short term employee benefits
and contributions to defined

contribution retirement plans
Salaries, paid annual
to defined

contribution retirement plans and the cost

annual bonuses,

leave, contributions
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services
Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the

are rendered by employees.

effect would be material, these amounts
are stated at their present values.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
share option reserve within equity. The
fair value is measured at grant date using
the binomial lattice model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair
value of the options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior
years is charged/credited to the profit or
loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of
options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the
either the
option is exercised (when it is included in
the amount recognised in share capital for

the shares issued) or the option expires

share option reserve until

(when it is released directly to

accumulated profits).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and

when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets

recognised in profit or loss except to the extent

liabilities.
and liabilities are
that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)
The
deferred tax assets and liabilities are those

limited exceptions to recognition of
temporary differences arising from goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes, the
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided

initial

they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that

they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their
fair value in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2(h), the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of those
assets at their carrying value at the reporting
date unless the property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale. In all other cases, the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets
rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and

and liabilities, using tax

liabilities are not discounted.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented
separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax
liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Income tax (Continued)

in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

—  different taxable entities, which, in
each future which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and

period in

settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle

simultaneously.

(t) Provisions, contingent liabilities and
onerous contracts

(i)

Provision and contingent
liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(t) Provisions, contingent liabilities and
onerous contracts (Continued)

(i)

Provision and contingent
liabilities (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the
non-occurrence of one or more future

occurrence or

events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure
required to settle a provision is expected
to be reimbursed by another party, a
separate asset is recognised for any
expected reimbursement that would be
virtually certain. The amount recognised
for the reimbursement is limited to the
carrying amount of the provision.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

(u)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and
onerous contracts (Continued)

(ii) Onerous contracts
An onerous contract exists when the
group has a contract under which the
unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the
expected to be

received from the contract. Provisions for

economic benefits

onerous contracts are measured at the
of the
expected cost of terminating the contract

present value of the lower
and the net cost of fulfilling the contract.
The cost of fulfilling the contract includes
both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract and an allocation of other costs
that
contract.

relate directly to fulfilling that

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of properties and
goods, the provision of services or the use by
others of the Group's assets under leases in the
ordinary course of the Group's business.

The Group is the principal for its revenue
transactions and recognises revenue on a gross
building
income and hotel

basis, including the sales of goods,
management services
operations that are sourced externally. In
determining whether the Group act as a
principal or as an agent, it considers whether it
obtains control of the products before they are
transferred to the customers. Control refers to
the Group’s ability to direct the use of and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits

from the products.

2 FEEFHBE(GE)

(t)

(u)

BE -REEBREES

l%"J(/‘E)

m)%EA&

Z’»‘E@Fﬁxau ,Z’JEF‘}Ef:I

B K TS H) B AN A AT 5 b R
BB ZE AMERNEE
Mam AeghBiEBEEaN B
BEANBESBERLZE
HWIBEAR A FIBITE IR A F
BERFREENSRGEEK
E-BOEAKABIERITZ
BRIBEKRARRERBITZE R
BEEMABENEMKERDE -

LN SRR (1 N
AEEBRAAFEBHBRPHE
MERER BERB LA LMT
ERAEBRERETNAEREE
SINONZE Y ONE

REBRHEWARGH EBIIRE
BEEEIABA BEERESE
BT EIERB WA KK B B E B
FEE REEASEERE B
KERK HEEEREREZETEFR
Al 2 A JE1S 72 on B0 18 I 4 o 45 A
EBEASBEERELMARTERSE®
BRI RERTIZREVEE N o




20 POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iRe ISR M EE
31 December 2022
—E-—Ff=A=+—H

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Revenue and other income
(Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and

other income recognition policies are as
follows:
(i) Revenue from contracts with

customers

Revenue is recognised when control over
a product or service is transferred to the
customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third
parties such as value added tax or other
sales taxes.

(a) Sale of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of
properties developed for sale in the
ordinary course of business is
recognised when legal assignment is
completed, which is the point in time
when the customer has the ability to
direct the use of the property and
obtain substantially all of the
remaining benefits of the property.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Revenue and other income
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

(i)

(a)

Sale of properties
(Continued)

When residential properties are
marketed by the Group while the
property is still under construction,
the Group may offer a discount
compared to the listed sales price,
provided the customer agrees to pay
the balance of the consideration
early. Otherwise, the customer is
required to pay 5%-70% of the
contract value as a deposit upon
signing the sale and purchase
agreement (“SPA”) with the rest of
the consideration being no later than
on completion of the SPA. Deposits
received on properties sold prior to
the date of revenue recognition are
included in the statement of financial
position under contact liabilities (see
note 2(m)).

To the extent that the advance
payments are regarded as providing
a significant financing benefit to the
Group, interest expense arising from
the adjustment of time value of
money will be accrued by the Group
during the period between the
payment date and the completion
date of legal assignment. This
accrual increases the balance of the
contract liability during the period of
construction, and therefore increases
the amount of revenue recognised
when control of the completed
property is transferred to the
customer. The interest is expensed
as accrued unless it is eligible to be
capitalised under HKAS23, Borrowing
costs, in accordance with the
policies set out in note 2(w).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Revenue and other income
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

(i)

(b)

Sales of goods
Revenue is recognised when a
customer takes possession of and

accepts the goods.

Building management

service income

Building management service income
is recognised over the relevant
period in which the services are

rendered.

Hotel operation

Revenue from hotel operations and
related services is recognised when
the relevant services are provided.

Revenue from other sources and
other income

(a)

Rental income from

operating leases

Rental income receivable under
operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an

alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are

earned.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Revenue and other income

(Continued)
(i) Revenue from other sources and
other income (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Dividends

— Dividend income from unlisted
investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to

receive payment is established.

—  Dividend listed
investments is recognised when
the
investment goes ex-dividend.

income from

share price of the

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it
accrues under the effective interest
method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of the financial
asset. For financial assets measured
FVOCI

are

at amortised cost or
(recycling) that
credit-impaired, the effective interest

not

rate is applied to the gross carrying
the
credit-impaired financial assets, the

amount of asset. For
effective interest rate is applied to
(i.e. gross

net of loss

the amortised cost
carrying amount
allowance) of the asset (see note

2(k)(i)).

2

TEE

(u)

a
A

z

iy

BUR (#8)

WA R E AW A ()

(ii)

B E AR 2 WA
REMBA(E)
(b) A& B

(c)

— FLETRENES
U A BCER Ui R A
TR 2 K T B 5L By B
RBARR

— LETRENKREK
ARKBEERB 2K
BB R ER
BE o

B HEA
MBWARELERIAE
IR FOXRE R A EFER
KREWABBERE
ERG AP LEELIT
BReREEZKREA
B2 FERER - HRK
BEEEREN R H
AR RFEFT AR
fi, 2 H WA (F] 31 88) &y
TREE REENK
EHAEBEBEBRERNE-
HREBHLEEERED
TREE HKEENE
A (BIHORR B R B A
B B T 4818 58 A B R A
(R HEEE2(k)(0))



206

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB M HRARM

31 December 2022
—E-—Ff+-_A=+—H

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Revenue and other income

(Continued)

(ii)

Revenue from other sources and

other income (Continued)
(d) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in
the statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised
as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group
for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss
over the useful life of the asset by
way of reduced depreciation

expense.

Income from financial
guarantees issued

Income from financial guarantees
issued is recognised over the term of
the guarantees (see note 2(k)(ii)).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

Translation of foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
The transaction date is the date on which a
group company initially recognises such
non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates

ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated

into Renminbi at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into
Renminbi at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the

resulting exchange differences are recognised in

reporting period. The

other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is
classified as held for sale if it is highly probable
that its carrying amount will be recovered
through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group)
is available for sale in its present condition. A
disposal group is a group of assets to be
disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated
with those assets that will be transferred in the
transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the above
criteria for classification as held for sale are
met, regardless of whether the Group will retain
a non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after
the sale.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(x)

Non-current assets held for sale
(Continued)

Immediately before classification as held for
sale, the measurement of the non-current assets
(and all individual assets and liabilities in a
disposal group)
accordance with the accounting policies before

is brought up-to-date in

the classification. Then, on initial classification
disposal, the
non-current assets (except for certain assets as
explained below), or disposal
recognised at the lower of their carrying
The
principal exceptions to this measurement policy

as held for sale and until

groups, are
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

so far as the financial statements of the Group
and the Company are concerned are deferred
tax assets, assets arising from employee
(other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
and These

assets, even if held for sale, would continue to

benefits, financial assets

ventures) investment properties.
be measured in accordance with the policies set
out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held
for sale, and on subsequent remeasurement
while held for sale, are recognised in profit or
loss. As long as a non-current asset is classified
as held for sale, or is included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale, the
non-current asset is not depreciated or

amortised.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(y)

Asset acquisition

Groups of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are assessed to determine if they are
business or asset acquisitions. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
chooses to apply a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is an asset rather than business acquisition,
when substantially all of the fair value of the
gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable
assets.

When a group of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed do not constitute a business, the
overall acquisition cost is allocated to the
individual identifiable assets and liabilities based
on their relative fair values at the date of
acquisition. An exception is when the sum of
the individual fair values of the identifiable
assets and liabilities differs from the overall
acquisition cost. In such case, any identifiable
assets and liabilities that are initially measured
at an amount other than cost in accordance
with the Group’s policies are measured
accordingly, and the residual acquisition cost is
allocated to the remaining identifiable assets
and liabilities based on their relative fair values
at the date of acquisition.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(z) Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person,

or a close member of that

person’s family, is related to the Group if

that person:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

2 FEEFHBE(GE)

()

BAEAL

(a)

ETIBERT

—BALTHZ

AETREZORERNEE AR

3

(iii)

A TR E G BIES

BASEAEH g K
[F] 2 7l 4

HEAKEBEEATE
7 ER

RASERAEEFR
AlZETEEEAR -

;3

k

HEAREEERE

i) ZEBMAEEARR-—
SEzKERF (ER
IR = NGNS )
BRAIZBEERHE) -

(i)

(iii)

—HEBRZ BB
R NEHAE R (K
REBRERBZEE
ARAIHAEEREMS —
ERREKBERA]
RRA—%F=7




212

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iRe ISR M EE
31 December 2022
—E-—Ff=A=+—H

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(2)

Related parties (Continued)
(Continued)

(b)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of the key

management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person

are those family members who may be

expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(aa) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each
item in the financial

segment reported

statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating

assessing the performance of, the Group's

resources to, and
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the
and the

regulatory environment.

products or provide the services,
nature of the
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION
CURRENCY

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates
functional currency of the Company and its Hong
Kong subsidiaries is HK dollars (“HK$"). The
functional currency of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries is

(“the functional currency”). The

Renminbi (“RMB"”). As the major operations of the
Group are within the PRC, the Group determined to
present its consolidated financial statements in RMB.
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4 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments,
and a new standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts,
which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2022. None of the new standard and
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MBRERTPERS - WEEBBEATA
BEEAKREERE -

amendments were adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on
or after

SRR Rt S

PR < St IR AN

HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts 1 January 2023

EEMBREERNETR — RERAEL —BE==%=F=[F

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Classification 1 January 2024
of liabilities as current or non-current

BB ENEIRBTAR)— BBBROEN  RPIERPEELIE —“T_ME—-HF—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
BB ENEIR(BITAR)— WERFENFERDERE —E_HWFE-HA—H

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Making materiality judgements: Disclosure of accounting policies
BB ENEIR (BTN — MBBRROEIRBEUBRELEYNEB RS F25%

— FHEXRMEAE et BRRE
Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and
errors: Definition of accounting estimates
BBt ERESR(BFTA)— T BER S G EPHRER StEAtNESR —T-=%—HF—H
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities 1 January 2023
arising from a single transaction
BERGTEAE12R(BAIA)— N BE-RXFELNEEREERENEEHRE —T-=—-A—H
Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sales and Leaseback 1 January 2024

1 January 2023
—T_=%—-H—H

1 January 2023

ERMBRELENFE165 (BFIA)— ERERNEEEE —E_HmMFE-HF—H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of Assets between an  To be determined by
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture the HKICPA
ERMBREENE10W REB S ERE28H (BRI A)— REFEHABERAIHAE HEEGHMAE
PEZENBELEXRA ErE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these developments is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So
far it has concluded that the adoption of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statement.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
the directors of the Company are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Critical judgement in applying policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors of the Company have made in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgement in applying policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised over
time when the Group's performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date; otherwise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the buyer
obtains the control of the completed property. The
Group may not change or substitute the property
unit or redirect the property unit for another use due
to the contractual restrictions with the customer and
thus the property unit does not have an alternative
use to the Group. Significant management’s
judgments were involved in determining whether
there is an enforceable right to payment which
depends on the terms of sales contract and the
interpretation of the applicable laws governing the
sales contracts. The Group obtained legal counsel
opinion regarding the enforceability of the right to
payment for sales contracts. Management uses
judgments in interpreting the applicable laws, based
on legal counsel opinion, to identify sales contracts
with right to payment and those without such right.

Sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated net realisable value of
properties under development and held

for sale

Management reviews the net realisable value of the
Group's properties under development and held for
sale with reference to its estimated costs to
completion, intended use and current market
environment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
the assets exceeds its net realisable value.
Appropriate write-off to estimated net realisable
value is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

In determining whether write-off of properties under
development and held for sale is required, the Group
takes into consideration the intended use of the
properties, the estimated costs to completion, the
current market environment, the estimated market
value of the properties and/or the present value of
future cash flows expected to receive. Write-off is
recognised based on the higher of estimated future
cash flows and estimated market value. If the market
environment/circumstances or estimated costs to
completion changes significantly, resulting in a
decrease in the net realisable value of these
properties interest, additional write-off loss may be
required. As at 31 December 2022, the total carrying
amounts of properties under development and held
for sale are RMB131,838,322,000 (2021:
RMB120,782,830,000) net of accumulated impairment
loss of RMB1,558,866,000 (2021: RMB1,076,915,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of loan
receivables and trade and other

receivables

The Group makes allowances on receivables based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group used judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the credit
loss calculation, based on the past 3 years, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. As at
31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of loan
receivables and trade and other receivables are
RMB234,761,000 (2021: RMB175,335,000) (net of
allowance for credit loss of RMB22,358,000 (2021:
RMB20,600,000) and RMB5,353,157,000 (2021:
RMBS8,334,732,000) (net of allowance for credit loss of
RMB116,651,000 (2021: RMB80,596,000)),
respectively. More details are given in notes 7(b), 26
and 27.

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties

Investment properties were revalued as at
31 December 2022 based on the appraised market
value by independent professional valuer. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which
are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results.

A 52 = 51 > i & fh 5 B3 B
HEZEERRGE)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties (Continued)

The fair value measurement utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs
used in determining fair value measurements are
categorised into different levels based on how
observable the inputs used in the valuation
technique utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy”):

o Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

o Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs
other than Level 1 inputs;

. Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived
from market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has
a significant effect on the fair value measurement of
the item. Transfers of items between levels are
recognised in the period they occur.

A 52 = 51 I i & {h 5 1 85 BB
AEZEERR(GE)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties (Continued)

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for similar properties. In the absence of
such information, the amount is determined within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates. The valuers
have relied on the income capitalisation method or
the market approach. The fair value derived from
income capitalisation approach is based upon
estimates of future results and a set of assumptions
specific to each property to reflect its cashflow
profile, while the direct comparison approach
considers the recent prices of similar properties with
adjustments to reflect the difference in characteristics
of the properties.

Details of the estimates and assumptions have been
disclosed in note 16.

The carrying amount of investment properties at
31 December 2022 was RMB9,666,939,000 (2021:
RMB9,832,723,000). More details are given in note
16.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
PRC enterprise income tax and deferred

taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in Mainland
China. As a result of the fact that certain matters
relating to the income taxes have not been
confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective estimate
and judgment based on currently enacted tax laws,
regulations and other related policies are required in
determining the provision of income taxes to be
made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts originally recorded, the
differences will have impact on the income tax and
tax provisions in the period in which the differences
realise.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

The Group is subject to LAT in Mainland China. The
provision of LAT is based on management’'s best
estimates according to the understanding of the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject
to the determination by the tax authorities upon the
completion of the property development projects.
The Group has not finalised its LAT calculation and
payments with the tax authorities for its certain
property development projects. The final outcome
could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to owners of the
Company through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes the asset-back securities, bank
and other borrowings, and note payable disclosed in
notes 33, 34 and 35, lease liabilities disclosed in
note 18, bank balances, deposits and cash. Total
equity comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated profits and non-controlling interests.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this
review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total asset-backed
securities, bank and other borrowings, note payable
and lease liabilities less bank balances, deposits and
cash. Total capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position,
plus net debt.
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(Continued)
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2022 and 2021 R CFRE_—F+_A=1+—
were as follows: HEBEEBGBLERNMT :
2022 2021
—E-C—F —_T—-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT T ARBET T
(Restated)
(&)
Total bank and other borrowings RITREMEE
(note 34) 4258 (P 7E34) 67,950,656 65,614,569
Note payable (note 35) J& A R 4% (P 7£35) 12,097,000 3,824,000
Asset-backed securities (note 33) BEERES
(KF3E33) 588,000 —
Lease liabilities (note 18) HE A E (M E18) 60,475 49,643
Less: Bank balances, deposits B RITER  FRK
and cash (note 32(a)) & (M 5E32(a)) (31,173,332) (29,747,851)
Net debt (EGPE - 49,522,799 39,740,361
Total equity L #E 4B R 41,789,944 38,145,425
Total capital BARfaE 91,312,743 77,885,786
Gearing ratio BEEAMFBLX 54% 51%
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7

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Categories of financial instruments

The following table shows the carrying amount

of financial assets and liabilities:

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost

— Loan receivables
— Trade and other receivables

— Amounts due from associates

— Amounts due from non-
controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries

— Pledged bank deposits

— Bank balances, deposits and cash

Assets classified as held for sale

Financial liabilities
Liabilities at amortised costs

— Trade and other payables
— Asset-backed securities

— Property rental deposits
— Amounts due to associates

— Amounts due to joint ventures

— Amount due to the ultimate
holding company

— Amount due to an intermediate

holding company
— Amount due to a fellow
subsidiary

— Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

— Bank and other borrowings
— Note payable

— Lease liabilities

— Loan from a fellow subsidiary

Liabilities associated with assets

i, classified as held for sale

— BEAEITHER
— RITEF FREK
B
PERBHELEZ
BE

TRIAE

&E&{ﬁfﬁizﬁﬁiz

— ENEZRAEM
BR 3K

— BEERE
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— BB AR FRIE

— ENEEERE

— BN HAEERR A
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— B — AR EER
A AlFRIE

— BN —RR RN E
YNCIE L]

— FETOTE A B FEE
A% A% 3R 518

— RITRHEMEE

— BREE

— HEAR

— *F'EJIT%WJ%

(a)

TRITARMKERER

14,262

EMIAED
TRITEHEELRBENRAE :
2022 2021
—Eg=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBEFIT
(Restated)
(&&E7)
643,763 597,795
234,761 175,335
4,947,401 7,969,344
1,123,551 2,471,682
4,176,617 4,188,234
2,012,361 1,033,828
444,639 265,431
31,173,332 29,747,851
17,555 —
29,487,786 27,640,094
588,000 —
86,454 92,741
736,392 460,803
674,278 585,258
18,508 18,704
2,792 380,021
485 485
4,952,080 3,370,991
67,950,656 65,614,569
12,097,000 3,824,000
60,475 49,643
180,000 180,000
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7 STRIARMBERERE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (%)

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management (b) ¥ REMEEBEERBE
objectives and policies
Exposure to market risks (currency risk, interest Kéﬁ EEAEXRBBETEETIS
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and i (B R b ﬂtﬂ e S H At (B
liquidity risk arises in the normal course of the W}—LEA) FERBERBEER
Group's business. The policies on how to % /ﬂﬁ%gx—rﬂ ﬁZBZ fﬁ%ﬁﬁ']ﬁﬂ
mitigate these risks are set out below. The T BEEBENEE AR
management manages and monitors these L/\ﬁﬁ{%Tﬁﬁvﬁxﬁiﬁﬁmﬂ;ﬂaﬁmC’

exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk h 35 B

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the AEB 2 EBFEZEEEE  FIX
financial risks of changes in foreign currency & NS %FT&H@ZW%H
rates, interest rates and equity security prices. misEBE—FUBKE DN a‘l’
Market risk exposures are further measured by BoARE @@%ﬁZﬁ%ﬂ e HE
sensitivity analysis. There has been no BRAERBRzAXTEERE
significant change to the Group’s exposure to o BREMBARZFBFEHMNT

market risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risk. Details of each type of
market risks are described as follows:

(i) Currency risk (i) maﬁgﬂgﬁ

Currency risk refer to the risk that the fair BE¥REREeRIANAFE
value or future cash flows of a financial SRR & 7 BRI R R
instrument will fluctuate because of R EAR AEEFEERE
charges in foreig